o o WYOMING
STATE BOARD
OF EDUCATION

ACTION SUMMARY SHEET

DATE: November 17,2017
ISSUE: Approval of Agenda
BACKGROUND:
SUGGESTED MOTION/RECOMMENDATION:

To approve the Agenda for the November 17, 2017 State Board of
Education meeting. SUPPORTING INFORMATION ATTACHED:

e Agenda

PREPARED BY: Kylie Taylor
Executive Assistant

ACTION TAKEN BY STATE BOARD: DATE:

COMMENTS:



O O WYOMING
STATE BOARD
OF EDUCATION

Wyoming education partners support a student-centered learning system in
which all Wyoming students graduate prepared and empowered to create and
own their futures.

November 17, 2017
Teleconference
1:00 p.m.-2:00 p.m. State Board of Education

e Callto Order
e Pledge of Allegiance

e Roll Call
Approval of Agenda Tab A
Action Item: TabB
e Performance Rating Appeal — Weston #7
2:00 p.m.-3:00 p.m. Minutes: Tab C
e QOctober 18, 2017
State Superintendent’s Update TabD
Coordinator's Report TabE
3:00 p.m.- 5:00 p.m. Board Reports and Updates- TabF
e Accreditation
Committee Updates: Tab G

e Administrative Committee
Communications Committee
Finance Committee
Legislative Committee Tab |
NASBE Update
Action Items:

e Technology Options

Other issues, concerns, discussion, public comment:
Adjourn the State Board of Education

Tab H




MEMORANDUM

To: State Board of Education

From: Dicky Shanor, Chief of Staff

Date: October 23, 2017

Subject: WDE Recommendation for Weston #7 Informal Review Request

Meeting Date: November 17, 2017  Item Type: Action: _ xx__ Informational:
Background:

On August 24, 2017, Weston County School District #7 submitted a request for an informal
review on behalf of Upton High School. (Attachment A). The school’s performance on the
indicators under Academic Performance and Overall Readiness earned the school an overall
performance rating of “meets expectations.”(Attachment B). The rating was lowered to
“partially meets expectations” because the school failed to meet the 95% participation rate,
which is required as part of Wyoming’s state accountability model. (Attachment C pgs. 17-20).

In its letter, the district requested an exception to the application of the business rule for the 95%
participation requirement. Two students who were enrolled at Upton High School during the
ACT test dates did not take the test, thus lowering the school’s participation rate to 90%. The
business rule for participation rate states when schools do not meet the 95% participation
requirement, but meet the 90% threshold, the overall school performance rating is docked by one
level. This rule has been in place since 2013 and was developed according to the Advisory
Committee’s 2012 report, which was codified in 2012. (Attachment D).

In a follow-up letter from Weston #7 on October 4, 2017, the district states that it wants to

“petition that [Weston #7 staff] had worked at length || R
|
I (A ttachment E). The letter

I cocumented the student’s absence on the official
ACT state test day, April 19th. The student arrived late on the ACT make-up day, May 3rd, and

was not permitted to take the test due to ACT’s test administration regulations.

The district contends that no recourse is provided to smaller schools for circumstances like these,
and that the administration window for the ACT state test days decreases a district’s ability to
ensure all students take the exam.

The district is seeking an exception to the participation rule and suggests that the exception be
based on a “preponderance of evidence from a district that the participation rate was atypical
(running three year participation rate for example) exemplifying that the district does not use
‘non-participation’ tactics to boost results.”



Considerations:

A 2015 opinion from the attorney general points out that the statute pertaining to an informal
review under W.S. 21-2-204(d) provides “very little guidance on the scope of the Board’s
reviews of a school’s performance rating” and that the statute “does not explicitly provide for
changing a school’s performance rating based on the review.” (Attachment F). In contrast, other
areas in statute clearly provide parameters under which an agency can change a determination
(i.e. Hathaway Scholarship Program W.S. 21-16-1303, 21-16-1304, 21-16-1307, 21-16-1308). In
the Hathaway example, it is also clear where exceptions cannot be granted due to the absence of
such a provision. For instance, where there is a provision in statute to grant an exception when a
student does not graduate from a Wyoming high school — which is a requirement for earning a
Hathaway Scholarship — there is no provision to grant an exception when a student fails to meet
the ACT requirement. The attorney general goes on to cite case law that prohibits agencies from
having authority and power that is not “expressly given to them by their enabling statutes.”
Granting an exception to the laws set forth under W.S. 21-2-204 (WAEA) is not a provision that
is expressly given to either the Wyoming Department of Education or the State Board of
Education.

Recommendation:

Given the nature of Weston 7’s request and the absence of known authority to grant an
exception, the WDE recommends maintaining the school performance rating of Partially
Meeting Expectations for Upton High School.

Additional Supporting Documents:
e Education Chapter 3 Rules (Attachment G)
e WDE Request for More Info (Attachment H)
e Notification Request is Complete (Attachment I)

Proposed Motion:
Option 1: I move to maintain Upton High School’s performance rating of “partially meets
expectations” for the 2016-17 school year.

For questions or additional information:
Dicky Shanor at dicky.shanor@wyo.gov or 307.777.7690.



mailto:dicky.shanor@wyo.gov

WESTON COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 7

P.O. BOX 470 304 WH.LOW STREET

DR. SUMMER STEPHENS UPTON, WYOMING 82730 CLARK COBERLY
SUPERINTENDENT PHONE: (307) 468-2461( EL'MS PRINICPAL
468- 2461 468-9331

GARY GLODT

EILEEN SCHILLER SPECIAL EDUCATION: LANDA CRAWFORD
BUSINESS MANAGER TRANSPORTATION DIRECTOR. HS PRINCIPAL
468 2461 468-9331 463-2361

August 24, 2017
Dear WDE Informal Review Committee,

We are writing to request a review of our School Accountability Rating for Upton High
School. Due to unfortunate circumstances, we were penalized for 90% participation on
the ACT, which lowered our entire ranking one level based on the criteria of the WAEA
indicators. This was disappointing and, as we believe, not characteristic of our high
school.

Our first consideration is that we are a small school who doesn’t meet the extremely
small school rules. In our case, however, one student in this class equals 5%.
Unfortunately, we do not appear to qualify for a break with the one additional non-
participant rule. Due to illness and to the rules of the ACT exam, we had two students
who did not take the test on either of the only two days it was allowed to be offered
(which is extremely concerning given that the PAWS and Aspire window for assessing
students is much longer). For us, that resulted in 10% not testing to take us from 100% to
90% participation. This is not the trend that we have proven in the past three years across
our high school.

Tn 2014-2015 and 2015-2016, we have had 100% participation at the 11" grade for ACT.
In 2015-2016 and 2016-2017, we had 100% participation on the Aspire for all 9*" and
10" graders. In 2014-2015, we had a 100% participation for all 9™ and 10" graders who
took the Explore and PLAN respectively. This is an indicator that we believe these
assessments are extremely important and did not intend for two students to miss the
statewide assessment. In this instance, the additional non-participant rule also fails us at
this time, as the application of that rule does not exceed 95%, rather is 95%.

Learner-Centered. Future-Focused



We
stress the importance of taking these assessments seriously and the potential that a
student’s performance on this assessment can have as they move beyond the HS walls.

In addition to the penalty for participation, which as a member of the PJP, I understand is
set in the decision rules for WAEA, we also have concerns as this year we noted that we
would have been Meeting Expectations with those results. The program and cohort data
that is used to determine the rating showed promise. In the 2016 WAEA rating, Upton
High School received Meeting Expectations with the following results:

Equity: 35.5—Below Targets

Achievement: 8%--Below Targets

Growth: 42-—Below Targets

Graduation Rate: 95.7%--Exceeding Targets

Additional Readiness: 71—Meeting Targets

Participation Rate: Met (100%)

This year’s results, in our analysis, are extremely exciting, showing Meeting
Expectations in Achievement (up 28%), Growth (up 8), and Additional Readiness
(up 5) while continuing to exceed the targets in Graduation Rate. We did not make as
many gains in equity. In a year where the results look strikingly different for the better,
we are receiving a lower performance rating. Unfortunately, we don’t know performance
scores for those students who did not take the ACT this year. However, results from the
10™ grade Aspire for each of those students indicated a predicted ACT range of 20-23,
which is within the range of basic to proficient. Their 9* grade Explore scores were
below those predictions, indicating to us that through their time in our programs, they
have grown,

Please consider applying the rating that is earned from the other indicators (Meeting
Expectations) and not dropping us a rating level due to 90% participation (Partially
Meeting Expectations). Thank you for your time. If you need additional information,
please contact me.

Sincerely,

@TJ(MW L. %%)W@/
Dr. Summer E, Stephens Mors. Linda Crawford
Superintendent Upton High School Principal

Learner-Centered. Tuture-Focused



DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

2016-17 High School Performance Report

Schools in Wyoming may fall within one of four performance levels
based on their pattern of performance on three indicators:
Academic Performance, Overall Readiness, and Equity.

The FOUR performance levels are:

. EXCEEDING EXPECTATIONS

. MEETING EXPECTATIONS

. PARTIALLY MEETING EXPECTATIONS
. NOT MEETING EXPECTATIONS

Click this link for more information about the Wyoming

School Accountability Implementation Handbook

Accountability in Education Act (WAEA).

Note: In order to have an indicator score, a school must have 10 students with evidence on the indicator.
When available up to two years of prior data was included to meet this minimum student count.

School Indicator Performance
Only students enrolled at the school for a full academic year were included.
Full Academic Year is October 1st through the midpoint of the state
assessment window.

Indicator Category Count of

Students

Description

ACADEMIC PERFORMANCE

13 Equity is the median student growth percentile (MGP) in reading
and math combined for a subgroup of grade eleven students who
had low reading and math test scores in the prior year.

Achievement is the percent of student test scores proficient or
above in grade 11 on ACT subject area tests of mathematics,

reading, science, and English/writing.

Achievement Meeting 18
Targets

Growth Meeting 37
Targets

Growth is a median student growth percentile (MGP) in reading
and math combined for all students during grades ten and eleven
as measured on subject area tests of the Aspire and ACT.

Additional Readiness Meeting 19

Targets

Graduation rate is a measure of the extended rate (i.e.,four year
on-time cohort plus five, six and seven year graduates).

Additional ReadinessHathaway index based on unweighted GPA,
highest ACT composite score, and the success curriculum level

reported on the transcript(weight = 40%).Tested readiness is an
index based on composite scores on the ACT (weight =
30%).Percent of grade 9 students earning 1/4th of the credits
needed for graduation (weight = 30%).

The participation rate requirement is 95%. The participation rate
threshold is 90%. When a school's participation rate is below the
requirement but at or above the threshold, the school is docked
one performance level. When a school's participation rate is below
the threshold the school is considered not scorable and is assigned
to the not meeting expectation performance level.

Contact Information:
Julie Magee
307-777-8740

Page 1 Of 2

Print Date 10/19/2017 6:08 PM



https://1ddlxtt2jowkvs672myo6z14-wpengine.netdna-ssl.com/wp-content/uploads/2017/05/2017-SCHOOL-PERFORMANCE-RATING-MODEL_071216-1.pdf
http://edu.wyoming.gov/educators/accountability/state-school-accountability/

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

2016-17 High School Performance Report

Performance Categories and Associated Scores

Indicator Catergories BelowTargets Meeting Targets | Exceeding Targets
ACADEMIC PERFORMANCE
Equity < 47 >=47 and < 60 >= 60
Achievement <32 >= 32 and < 45 >=45
Growth <45 >=45 and < 60 >=60
OVERALL READINESS
Graduation Rate Indicator* <80 >=80and < 90 >=90
Additional Readiness Indicator** <68 >=68 and <79 >=79
* Cut scores for schools vary based on the sub-indicators
available.

Performance Level Descriptors for High Schools

Exceeding Expectations

This category isreserved for schools considered models of performance. These schools demonstrated high achievement and
exceeded target on at |east one other performance indicator — equity or readiness — while meeting target on the other indicator.
Meeting Expectations

Schools in this category demonstrated performance that met or exceeded target on multiple performance indicators. These
schools typically had acceptable or better levels of achievement, student readiness, and/or in promoting equity for students with
bel ow-proficient achievement.

Partially Meeting Expectations

Schools in this category demonstrated either unacceptable levels of achievement or were below target on improving the
achievement of below-proficient students and on graduation rate and tested readiness. Many schoolsin this category showed
acceptable performance in promoting equity based on growth for low achieving students and/or met target for student readiness.
Not Meeting Expectations

Schoolsin this category had unacceptable performance on all indicators. For schoolsin this category, improvement is an urgent
priority. These schools have low levels of achievement, fall short of targets on graduation and tested readiness, and have large
achievement gaps that show little or no improvement.

Contact Information:

Julie Magee Page 2 Of 2 Print Date 10/19/2017 6:08 PM
307-777-8740




WYOMING SCHOOL ACCOUNTABILITY
2017 WYOMING SCHOOL PERFORMANCE RATING MODEL
IMPLEMENTATION HANDBOOK
(July 12, 2017)

The Wyoming School Accountability was piloted following the 2012-13 school year.
Operational implementation began following the 2013-14 school year. The Wyoming
Accountability in Education Act (WAEA) established a requirement to develop procedures for
assigning all Wyoming public schools to one of four performance level categories: Exceeding
Expectations, Meeting Expectations, Partially Meeting Expectations and Not Meeting
Expectations. Each school’s performance level determination was based upon the school’s
performance on various indicators that were prescribed by statute. The methodology for
evaluating each schools performance on the indicators was established in accordance with the
January, 2012, Education Accountability Report®. A professional judgment panel (PJP)
composed of Wyoming stakeholders as prescribed by statute engaged in a standard setting
process to establish cut-points and other parameters for a school performance rating model. This
handbook describes the 2017 operational implementation of Wyoming School Accountability.

ALTERNATIVE SCHOOLS

Per Enrolled Act No. 64, Section 1, of the sixty-third legislature of the State of Wyoming,
alternative schools are receiving informational reporting under WAEA and they are exempt from
target level and school performance level determinations.

INDICATOR CATEGORIES

The student assessment used in grades three through eight is the Proficiency Assessment for
Wyoming Students (PAWS) which measured math and reading skills in grades three through
eight and science in grades four and eight. The assessments used in high school were from the
ACT suite of tests. Specifically the Aspire test was administered in grade nine and ten and the
ACT test was administered in grade 11. Because of the different measures and different
statutorily requirements there are two accountability models; one for schools serving grades three
through eight and one for high schools.

e Indicators for Schools that have Grades Three through Grade Eight
0 Achievement
o Growth
o Equity

¢ Indicators for High School

1 Marion, S. & Domaleski, C. (2012). The Wyoming Comprehensive Accountability Framework: Phase I. Produced for
the Wyoming Select Committee on Statewide Education Accountability.

Page 1 of 31



o0 Academic Performance
= Achievement
=  Growth
=  Equity
0 Overall Readiness
=  Graduation
= Additional Readiness
e Tested Readiness
e Grade Nine Credits Earned
e Hathaway Scholarship Eligibility

Some schools have grade configurations that include both grades nine through 12 and grades
eight and lower (e.g., schools with grades K-12). These schools will have two school
performance levels computed; one for grades eight and below and one for grades nine through
12. The schools receive two reports (i.e., a grade 3-8 report and a high school report). The
school’s official performance level will be the lower of the two computed performance levels.

INDICATORS AND SCORES FOR GRADES THREE THROUGH EIGHT
ACHIEVEMENT

There is one overall school achievement score for each school that represents student
performance on the state assessment in all tested grades and content areas at each school that
serves students in grades three through eight.

e The Proficiency Assessment for Wyoming Students (PAWS)
0 Reading in grades 3 through 8
o0 Math in grades 3 through 8
0 Science in grades 4 and 8

The achievement indicator score for schools was the percent of proficient or above test scores in
all three tested content areas on the PAWS. An illustration of how school achievement scores
were computed is presented in Table 1. Assume the hypothetical school represented in Table 1
was an elementary school with grades kindergarten through six with 20 students per grade level.
Science would only be tested in grade 4 at this school.

Table 1. lllustration of Computation of a School Achievement Score.

Content Count of Tested Students ~ Count of Proficient Students School
Math 80 65 Achievement
Reading 80 60 Score
Science 20 12
Column Totals 180 137 137/180 =
76.1%

Page 2 of 31



The school achievement score (i.e., the total percent proficient on all achievement tests) is used
for assigning schools serving grades three through eight to one of three target levels for
achievement using the cut-points established by the PJP.

Cut points for grade three through eight achievement:
e Meets Target =52
e Exceeds Target = 69

GROWTH

Student Level Growth. Growth is measured in schools serving grades 4 through 8. Growth
refers to a change in the achievement within students as they progress from year to year. In order
to compute growth scores, students must have at least two consecutive years of state test scores.
Since the Wyoming state test is first administered in grade three, growth is first measured in
grade four. Growth is computed separately for math and reading on the Wyoming state test for
students in grades four through eight.

The model implemented to measure growth produces student growth percentiles? (SGPs). SGPs
indicated how an individual student’s growth compared with that of all Wyoming public school
students® from that particular year in the same grade who had similar math/reading scores in
previous years. Students in the same grade with a similar test score history may be referred to as
a student's academic peers. SGPs range from 1 to 99 with lower scores indicating lower growth
and higher scores indicating higher growth relative to the academic peers. An SGP of 50 would
indicate the student scored as well as or better than 50 percent of her academic peers. This
measure of growth is independent of the prior achievement level performance of students®.
Students with low achievement may have low or high growth. Likewise, students with high
achievement may have low or high growth. Regardless of how high or low a student’s test scores
in past years were, they still may earn any of the SGPs from 1 to 99 depending upon how the
changes in their scaled scores compare to that of their academic peers.

Students Included in the Growth Modeling Data Set. Only Wyoming public school students
are included in the SGP norm cohort for a given year. The data set included the current year
public school students with all of their prior public school test scores.

School Level Growth. The school growth score is the median SGP at a school (i.e., the school’s
MGP). To compute the MGP for the school all reading and math SGPs for full academic year
students at the school are combined and the SGP that 50% of SGPs fall below and 50% of SGPs
fall above is the MGP.

2 See Betebenner, D. W. (2008). Norm- and criterion-referenced student growth. Available at http://www.nciea.org.
3 Some private school and home school students take the PAWS test. If these students are not enrolled in a public
school at the time of the testing, their score will not be included in the norm sample.

4 Correlation coefficients for prior achievement with SGPs at the student level in Wyoming were all very near r =
0.00.

Page 3 of 31



MGPs at each school are further be placed into one of three target levels: (a) below target, (b)
meets target and (c) exceeds target. The PJP established the following cut-points for the MGPs in
September 2013 that separated these three categories from one another. The same cut points
were used again in 2014.

Cut points for grades four through eight growth:
e Meets Target = 45
e Exceeding Target = 60

EQUITY

An important goal of WAEA is to “minimize achievement gaps” [Wyoming Statute 21-2-
204(b)(vi)]. The equity indicator is designed to encourage schools to do as well as possible with
the students who are most at risk. The school equity score was based upon the growth in math
and reading of students identified as belonging to a consolidated subgroup at the school.

Students with low performance on the PAWS math or reading test in the prior school year are
assigned to the consolidated subgroup. Students were in the consolidated subgroup for only the
subject area tests where they met the score criterion. As such, some were in the consolidated
subgroup for mathematics, some were in the consolidated subgroup for reading and some were in
the consolidated subgroup for both mathematics and reading.

The 2014 PAWS served as a baseline year and the scale scores from this baseline year in reading
and math that were at the 23rd percentile® were identified and are presented in Table 2. These
scale scores are the cut-points in reading and math that are used for assigning students to the
consolidated subgroup. When reading or math test performance for a student was below the cut-
points presented in Table 2, the student was placed into the consolidated subgroup.

Table 2. PAWS Scale Score Cut-Points for Consolidated Subgroup Identification.

Grade Math Reading
3 566 567
4 602 586
5 620 596
6 642 602
7 655 618

Technical analyses performed after the 2014 WAEA school performance levels were established
documented suitable stability of school equity scores across years when the equity score was
based on the MGP of the consolidated subgroup®. Therefore, a school's score for equity is the
median student growth percentile (MGP) for the school's consolidated subgroup students in
reading and math combined and for all grades combined.

5 See the 2015 School Performance Rating Model Implementation Manual for more information about the
selection criteria for consolidated subgroup membership.
6 Flicek, M. (2015). Evaluation of an equity indicator. Prepared for the Wyoming Department of Education.

Page 4 of 31



Cut points for grades four through eight equity
e Meets Target =47
e Exceeds Target = 60

GRADE THREE THROUGH EIGHT
SCHOOL PERFORMANCE LEVEL ASSIGNMENT

The decision table in Table 3 is used to identify the performance level for each school serving
students in grades three through eight. The decision table has a cell that represents all possible
combinations of target levels on achievement, growth and equity. Each school’s pattern of the
three target levels is represented by a cell in the decision table. Each cell in the table is associated
with a specific performance level (i.e., exceeds expectations, meets expectations, partially meets
expectations and does not meet expectations). The performance level associated with each cell in
the decision tables were established by the PJP. The median of PJP member judgments for each
cell on a second round of making judgments were used to identify the performance level
associated with each cell.

Table 3. School Performance Level Decision Table for Schools with Grades Three through Eight

with Achievement, Growth and Equity Target Levels.

Achievement Achievement Achievement
Below Meeting Exceeding
Equity Below Growth Below NOT PARTIALLY | PARTIALLY
Growth Meeting PARTIALLY MEETING MEETING
Growth Exceeding PARTIALLY MEETING MEETING
Equity Meeting Growth Below PARTIALLY PARTIALLY MEETING
Growth Meeting PARTIALLY MEETING MEETING
Growth Exceeding PARTIALLY MEETING EXCEEDING
Equity Growth Below PARTIALLY MEETING MEETING
Exceeding Growth Meeting PARTIALLY MEETING EXCEEDING
Growth Exceeding PARTIALLY EXCEEDING | EXCEEDING

Some schools do not have a consolidated subgroup that meets the minimum n criteria of ten
students. These schools do not have an equity target level. When schools have target levels on
achievement and growth but not on equity, the decision table in Table 4 is used for determining
the school performance level. The PJP determined which performance levels were represented
by each cell in the decision table.

Page 5 of 31



Table 4. School Performance Level Decision Table for Schools with Grades Three through Eight
without an Equity Target Level.

Achievement Achievement Achievement

Below Meeting Exceeding

Growth Below NOT PARTIALLY MEETING
Growth Meeting PARTIALLY MEETING EXCEEDING
Growth Exceeding PARTIALLY MEETING EXCEEDING

INDICATORS AND SCORES FOR HIGH SCHOOLS
ACADEMIC PERFORMANCE

ACHIEVEMENT. There is one overall school achievement score for each high school that
represents student performance on the subject area tests of the ACT in grade 11. The
achievement tests used for high school state accountability in Wyoming is:

e The grade 11 ACT subject area tests of:
o0 Reading
0 Mathematics
o Science
o Combined English/Writing

The achievement indicator score for schools is the percent of proficient or above test scores on
these four subject area tests of the ACT in grade 11. The computation of the high school
achievement indicator is similar to that presented in Table 1.

The school achievement score (i.e., the total percent proficient on the subject area tests) is used
for assigning high schools to one of three target levels for achievement using cut points
established by the PJP:

Cut points for high school achievement:
e Meets Target = 32
e Exceeds Target =45

GROWTH. Student growth in mathematics and reading is measured in grades ten and eleven.
Growth refers to the change in the achievement within students as they progress from year to
year. In order to compute growth scores, students must have at least two consecutive years of
mathematics scores for math growth and two consecutive years of reading scores for reading
growth. Grade ten growth will be measured from the prior year Aspire test in grade nine to the
current year Aspire test in grade ten. Grade eleven growth will be measured from the grade nine
Explore test two years prior to the grade ten Aspire test one year prior to the current year grade
eleven ACT test.

Page 6 of 31



The traditional score scales on the ACT suite mathematics and reading tests are quite coarse and
not well suited to the measurement of growth. ACT has provided Wyoming with student level
parameters from a three parameter IRT that permitted Wyoming to construct a Wyoming Scale’
for the mathematics and reading subject area tests used for the grade eleven ACT test in the
current year. On the Wyoming Scale a score of 150 is equivalent to proficient performance and
the scales have a standard deviation of 20. The fit of the growth model for grade 11 is improved
when the Wyoming scale is used. For the current year grade ten growth, the Aspire scale will be
used. Growth is computed separately for mathematics and reading for students in grades ten and
eleven.

The method used to measure growth in high school is the same method used in grades four
through eight. As such, a growth model is implemented to produce SGPs. SGPs indicate how an
individual student’s growth compared with that of academic peers that come from all Wyoming
public school students from that particular year in the same grade who had similar math/reading
scores in previous years. The SGPs range from 1 to 99 and growth is independent of a student'’s
prior achievement level. The data set included the current year public school students with all of
their prior public school test scores.

The school level growth score for the high schools is the MGP for all reading and math SGPs at
the school. MGPs at each school are further be placed into one of three target levels: (a) below
target, (b) meets target and (c) exceeds target. The PJP established the following cut points for
the MGPs used to assign school to the three target levels.

Cut points for the high school growth:
e Meets Target =47
e Exceeding Target = 60

EQUITY 2017. High school equity is measured for students in grade eleven. A consolidated
subgroup was established that consisted of all students with grade ten Aspire subject area test
scores at or below 420 in mathematics (bottom 25% of students in 2016) or at or below 418
(bottom 26% of students in 2016) in reading. Students were in the consolidated subgroup for
only the subject area where they met the score criterion. As such, some were in the consolidated
subgroup for mathematics, some were in the consolidated subgroup for reading and some were in
the consolidated subgroup for both mathematics and reading. The high school equity score was
the MGP for mathematics and reading combined of the consolidated subgroup.

Cut points for the high school equity for 2016:
e Meets Target =47
e Exceeding Target = 60

ACADEMIC PERFORMANCE TARGET LEVEL. Each high school was placed into an
overall target level for academic performance. There are three target levels: below target, meets
target and exceeds target. To identify the school's target level for academic performance, the
target levels assigned to them for achievement, growth and equity were entered into the decision

" Wyoming Department of Education. (2014). 2014 Wyoming ACT Performance.

http://edu.wyoming.gov/download/assessments/\WWyomingACT ScalelLV2updDec2014.pdf

Page 7 of 31


http://edu.wyoming.gov/download/assessments/WyomingACTScaleLV2updDec2014.pdf

table in Table 5. The PJP determined which academic performance target level was associated
with each cell in the decision table.

Some schools may not meet the minimum n requirement for equity. For example, the school may
not meet the minimum n requirement for their consolidated subgroup even after two years of
look backs were applied. These schools will not have a target level for equity. When schools
have target levels for achievement and growth but do not have a target level for equity, the
decision table in Table 6 is used for determining the school's performance level.

Table 5. Academic Performance Target Level Decision Table for Schools with Achievement,
Growth and Equity Target Levels.

Achievement Achievement Achievement
Below Meeting Exceeding
Equity Below Growth Below BELOW BELOW MEETS
Growth Meeting BELOW MEETS MEETS
Growth Exceeding BELOW MEETS MEETS
Equity Meeting Growth Below BELOW MEETS MEETS
Growth Meeting MEETS MEETS MEETS
Growth Exceeding MEETS MEETS EXCEEDS
Equity Growth Below BELOW MEETS MEETS
Exceeding Growth Meeting MEETS MEETS EXCEEDS
Growth Exceeding MEETS EXCEEDS EXCEEDS

Table 6. Academic Performance Target Level Decision Table for High School without an Equity
Target Level.

Achievement Achievement Achievement
Below Meeting Exceeding
Growth Below BELOW MEETS MEETS
Growth Meeting BELOW MEETS EXCEEDS
Growth Exceeding MEETS MEETS EXCEEDS

When a school had either an achievement target level or a growth target level but not both, the
target level on the one indicator became their academic performance target level.

OVERALL READINESS

There are two categories of readiness indicators on which target levels are established. The first
is graduation and the second is additional readiness. Additional readiness has three subparts,
each of which is prescribed by state statute. The subparts for additional readiness include
Hathaway scholarship eligibility level, grade nine credits earned and tested readiness.

GRADUATION. Schools have two pathways for earning a graduation target level. The first
pathway is their four year on-time graduation rate. The four year on-time graduation rate is a
measure of graduation rate for a cohort of students attending a school who entered grade nine

Page 8 of 31



four years earlier. The student is included in the cohort for the last school that had an enrollment
record for that student. Figure 1 illustrates computation of the four year on-time graduation rate.

The second pathway for earning a graduation target level is an extended graduation rate.
Students included in the extended graduation cohort include all students in the four year on-time
cohort plus any other student at the school that graduated during that same school year. Typically
these will be five year, six year or seven year graduates. The one exception is early graduates
whose four year on-time cohort will graduate in the following year. The graduation of these early
graduates will be credited to the school during the year that their four year on-time cohort
graduates. In all cases the extended graduation rate will equal or exceed the four year on-time
cohort graduation rate.

Figure 1. Formula for Four Year On-Time Graduation Rate.

4 year adjusted
cohort graduation ~ Number of four year on-time cohort members who earned a regular high
rate = school diploma by the end of the graduation year

Number of first-time 9"" graders in the fall of the school year 4 years
prior to the graduation year (starting year) plus students who transfer in,
minus students who transfer out, emigrate, or die prior to the graduation

year

Cut points for high school graduation:
e Meets Target = 80
e Exceeds Target = 90

ADDITIONAL READINESS. In addition to graduation, three other readiness indicators were
prescribed by statute. A school's performance on these indicators is combined into one overall
score that is referred to as additional readiness. Additional readiness consists of Hathaway
scholarship eligibility level, grade nine credits earned and tested readiness (i.e., based on
composite scores on the grade nine Explore, the grade ten Plan, and the grade eleven ACT).

A Hathaway scholarship level for accountability was assigned to each student who graduated
during the prior school year. This includes early graduates and four, five, six and seven year
graduates. Each graduate was assigned to one of five Hathaway levels for accountability based
primarily upon information on their transcript. This level may or may not be their true Hathaway
scholarship eligibility since the true eligibility is determined by a Wyoming higher education
provider based upon a review of student transcripts and other information.

The Hathaway eligibility level for accountability is based upon three criteria: (a) unweighted
high school grade point average (GPA), (b) the best composite ACT score or Work Keys total
score and (c) completion of the success curriculum at a particular level. These three eligibility
criteria are considered in a conjunctive fashion to determine a student's Hathaway eligibility
level. The student’s scholarship level is the level associated with that one of the three eligibility

Page 9 of 31



criteria where the student's performance was the lowest. The eligibility criteria are presented in
Table 7.

Table 7. Hathaway Scholarship Eligibility Levels and Criteria.

Scholarship Level

Criteria Not
Eligible  Provisional Opportunity Performance Honors
Unweighted GPA <25 2.5 2.5 3.0 3.5
Minimum ACT* <17** 17%** 19 21 25
Success Curriculum Level None Provisional ~ Opportunity ~ Honors/Performance

*ACT can be the student’s best ACT score from the student's transcript of from the Wyoming
census administration in grade 11.

**|If there is a WorkKeys score it is less than 12.

**A WorkKeys score of 12 also qualifies for provisional level.

The Wyoming Department of Education collects student transcripts for all high school graduates.
A student's unweighted GPA is obtained from the student's transcript. Graduates without
transcripts and graduates without an unweighted GPA are assigned to the not eligible scholarship
level for accountability. When the unweighted GPA was less than 3.0 but at or above 2.5 the
opportunity scholarship level is assigned for that criteria.

The ACT composite score used for the Hathaway scholarship eligibility level is the best ACT
composite score from the transcript or the composite score from the Wyoming census
administration of the ACT to grade eleven students. The highest ACT composite score is used
for accountability. If a student was not enrolled in a Wyoming school during the census
administration date for their cohort and does not have an ACT score on their transcript, the
student's Hathaway scholarship eligibility level for accountability will be based upon their
unweighted GPA and their success curriculum level only.

WorkKeys scores from a student's transcript are also considered. When the WorkKeys score is
12 or higher, the student can be placed at the provisional level. When a student has both a
WorkKeys score and an ACT composite score, the student's level on the test score criterion is the
higher of the levels represented by those measures.

Finally, a required field for the transcript collection is a success curriculum level that is assigned
by the high school's analyses of the student's high school course of study and performance in
classes. This school determined success curriculum level that appears on the transcript is used as
the success curriculum level for accountability.

Once a student's Hathaway scholarship eligibility level for accountability is established, that
level is converted to an index value for the purpose of computing an additional readiness score
for the school. The index points associated with each Hathaway scholarship eligibility level are
presented in Table 8. The school’s score for the Hathaway scholarship eligibility level is the
average of the index points for all prior year graduates from the school.

Page 10 of 31



Table 8. Hathaway Scholarship Eligibility Index.

Student Eligibility Level Points*
Level 5: Honors 100
Level 4: Performance 90
Level 3: Opportunity 80
Level 2: Provisional 70
Level 1: Not Eligible 40

*Index point values were assigned by the PJP.

The grade nine credit indicator is a lagged indicator. The school's grade nine credit score is the
percent of prior year first time grade nine students who earned one fourth of the credits required
to graduate from the designated high school. Use of prior year grade nine credits permits the
inclusion of grade nine credits earned during the summer session. The Wyoming Department of
Education collects transcripts from the schools for all first time grade nine students. Grade nine
credits are obtained from the student transcripts.

A grade nine credit score is assigned to each high school. Grade nine may or may not be part of
the grade configuration for all Wyoming high schools. Some Wyoming high schools serve
students in grades ten through twelve even though most Wyoming high schools presently serve
students in grades nine through twelve. Grade nine credits earned is an indicator for all high
schools, regardless of the grade configuration of the school. The high schools that serve grades
ten through twelve are paired with the schools that feed grade nine students to them for this
indicator.

When grade nine is housed at the high school, grade nine credits earned are computed for all full
academic year students enrolled at the school at the end of grade nine. When grade nine is
housed in feeder schools, grade nine credits are computed for all students who were full
academic year students in a grade nine paired school (i.e., a feeder school). Table 9 presents the
list of high schools without a grade nine and their designated paired schools.

Page 11 of 31



Table 9. School Pairs for Grade 9 Credits during the 2012-13 School Year.

Accountability School

Grade 9 Credits Earned

School
District School School School School
# #
Albany #1 0101055 Laramie High School 0101050 Laramie Junior High School
0101030 UW Laboratory School
0101001 Snowy Range Academy
Fremont 0721055 Ft. Washakie Charter High 0721056  Ft. Washakie High School
#21 School
Fremont 0721056 Ft. Washakie High School 0721055 Ft. Washakie Charter High
#21 School
Campbell 0301055 Campbell County High 0301050  Twin Spruce Junior High
#1 School School
0301051 Sage Valley Junior High
School

Tested readiness is the third component of additional readiness. Tested readiness has been based
upon index scores derived from student composite scores on the ACT Explore test in grade 9, the
ACT Plan test in grade 10 and the ACT test in grade 11. Table 10 below is from the 2015
Implementation Manual. Table 10 shows how index points were assigned to schools based upon
student performance on the ACT tests. In 2016, the ACT Explore and Plan tests are no longer
available from the contractor for use. These tests have been replaced by grade specific version of
the ACT Aspire tests.

Table 10. Initial Tested Readiness Score Ranges and Index Point Values.

Composite Score Ranges

Wyoming Tested Readiness  ACT Explore ACT Plan ACT Test Index
Levels Grade 9 Grade 10 Grade 11 Points*
Level 4 >20 >21 >24 100
Level 3 18-20 19-21 21-24 80
Level 2 15-17 16-18 17-20 50
Level 1 <15 <15 <17 20

*The index points associated with each level were established by the PJP in September, 2013.

The process of identifying index score ranges on the grade 9 Aspire test and grade 10 Aspire test
was as follows:

e The composite scores from the 2016 grade 11 ACT, grade 10 Aspire and grade 9 Aspire
tests for all Wyoming students served as baseline scores to be used for establishing the
new tested readiness index.

e The previously used cut-points for the grade 11 ACT were applied to the 2016 results and
the percentage of students in each of the four tested readiness index levels was
determined.

Page 12 of 31



e Cumulative frequency distributions were computed for the grade 10 Aspire and
separately for the grade 9 Aspire.

e Score ranges were identified that resulted in the proportion of students within each tested
readiness level in grades 9 and 10 matched those obtained for the Grade 11 ACT test as
closely as possible.

e Table 11 shows the composite score ranges for each of the three grades. The grade 11
score ranges and index point values remained unchanged (i.e., identical to those in Table
10).

Table 11. New Tested Readiness Score Ranges and Index Point Values.

Composite Score Ranges

Wyoming Tested Readiness ~ ACT Aspire ACT Aspire ACT Test Index
Levels Grade 9 Grade 10 Grade 11 Points*
Level 4 >432 >434 >24 100
Level 3 427-432 429-434 21-24 80
Level 2 420-426 422-428 17-20 50
Level 1 <420 <422 <17 20

*The index points associated with each level were established by the PJP in September, 2013.
These new cut-points were applied to the 2016 test results for grades 9 through 11. Table 12
shows the proportion of students within each tested readiness level on each of the three tests
when the score ranges in Table 11 were applied.

Table 12. Proportion of All Wyoming Students at each Tested Readiness Level in 2016.

Composite Score Ranges

Wyoming Tested Readiness ~ ACT Aspire ACT Aspire ACT Test Index
Levels Grade 9 Grade 10* Grade 11 Points*
Level 4 18% 18% 18% 100
Level 3 25% 27% 25% 80
Level 2 33% 30% 33% 50
Level 1 25% 25% 25% 20

*Approximately 4% to 5% of students were at each score point near the cut-points. This is why it
was not possible to have an exact match of the percentages from the grade 10 Aspire with those
from the ACT.

In order to compute a schools’ tested readiness score, the school was assigned 20 points for each
student at a school who performed at level 1, 50 points for each student who performed at level
2, 80 points for each student who performed at level 3 and 100 points for each student who
performed at level 4. These index point values were assigned by the PJP in September 2013. The
school’s tested readiness score was the mean index score for all full academic year students
across all tests from this suite.

The comparability of the tested readiness index scores based upon the 2016 Aspire scores in
grades 9 and 10 versus those from the 2015 grade 9 Explore test and grade 10 Plan test was

Page 13 of 31



assessed by computing Cohen’s d effect sizes comparing the grade specific tested readiness
index means from 2015 and 2016 for each tested grade. The results are presented in Table 13. As
can be seen from Table 13, the effect sizes are all near zero suggesting the tested readiness
means were comparable across years even though the Aspire tests replaced the Explore and Plan
tests in grades 9 and 10.

Table 13. Cohen’s d Effect Size Comparisons of the 2016 Tested Readiness Mean Scores for
Grade 9, 10, and 11 with the 2015 Tested Readiness Mean Scores from those Same Grades.

Pooled SD
GRADE (2015 & 2016) Mean - 2015 Mean - 2016 Effect Size
9 28.1 58.2 59.2 0.04
10 29.0 60.7 60.6 0.00
11 28.5 59.3 60.0 0.03

Students who take the alternate assessment are included on the tested readiness sub-indicator.
Alternate assessment students are included in the participation rate calculation. Tested readiness
index scores for students who take the alternate assessment are based upon the percentage of
subject area tests on which they were proficient or better. The number of alternate tests taken
may vary for a variety of reasons. Students eligible for the alternate assessments may take
anywhere from zero to four alternate assessments. Specifically, a school is assigned the index
points associated with Level 4 (i.e., from Table 5) for each student who earns a proficient or
better score on all subject area tests that they take. A school receives index points associated with
Level 3 for all students who earn a proficient or better score on 66 percent to 75 percent of
subject area tests they take on the alternate assessment. Some students may earn scores of
proficient or better on 50% of subject area tests administered. When this happened the school is
assigned the number of index points that is the average of the index points associated with Level
2 and Level 3 (i.e., 65 points). This is equivalent to a Wyoming Tested Readiness Level of 2.5.
Level 2.5 is only possible for students who take the alternate assessment. A school is assigned
the index point associated with Level 2 for all students who were proficient or better on 25% and
33% of the alternate assessment subject area tests taken. Finally, a school is assigned the number
of index points associated with Level 1 performance for all students who take the alternate
assessment and are proficient or better none of subject area tests that they take.

The additional readiness score for high schools is an aggregate score which combines the
Hathaway scholarship eligibility score, the grade nine credit score and the tested readiness score
into one additional readiness score. To obtain the additional readiness score the component score
is multiplied by a weight established by the PJP. As such the Hathaway scholarship eligibility
score is multiplied by .40, the grade nine credit score is multiplied by .30 and the tested readiness
score is multiplied by .30. The PJP then established cut points that were used to assign schools to
the categories of below target, meeting target and exceeding target on additional readiness.

Additional readiness cut points:

0 Meets Target = 68
0 Exceeds Target =79

Page 14 of 31



There are some schools that have one or two of the additional readiness sub-indicators but not all
three of them. These schools get an additional readiness target level based upon the sub-indicator
or sub-indicators on which they met the minimum n requirement. This is accomplished by
adjusting the meets and exceeds target cut-points so that the proportion of all schools (i.e.,
including those with all three indicators) within each target level is consistent with the proportion
of three indicator school within each target level.

Assume, for example, that 50 high schools have all three indicators and 30% of those schools
were below target level and 20% were in the target level for exceeds. Assume further that ten
additional schools had only tested readiness because they were missing grade nine credit and
Hathaway scholarship eligibility. These 10 schools would be combined with the 50 schools with
scores on all three sub-indicators and cut-points for additional readiness only would be identified
by finding the tested readiness only scores for these 60 schools that resulted in 30% of the
schools in the below target category and 20% of the in the exceeds target category.

OVERALL READINESS TARGET LEVEL ASSIGNMENT. Each high school is placed into
a target level for overall readiness. To identify the school's target level for overall readiness, the
target levels assigned to the school for graduation and additional readiness are entered into the
decision table in Table 14. The PJP determines which overall readiness target level is associated
with each cell in the decision table.

Table 14. Overall Readiness Target Level Decision Table.

Graduation Graduation Graduation Graduation
Below Meets Exceeds Undefined
Additional Readiness BELOW MEETS MEETS BELOW
Below
Additional Readiness BELOW MEETS EXCEEDS MEETS
Meets
Additional Readiness MEETS MEETS EXCEEDS EXCEEDS
Exceeds
Additional Readiness BELOW MEETS EXCEEDS
Undefined

Some schools may not have a target level on both graduation and additional readiness due to not
meeting a minimum n requirement. In order to receive an overall readiness target level a school
must have a target level for either graduation or additional readiness and the target level they
have becomes their target level for overall readiness.

HIGH SCHOOL PERFORMANCE LEVEL ASSIGNMENT

Each high school's target levels for academic performance and overall readiness are used to
determine a school's performance level. Table 15 presents the decision table that was used to
establish a high school's performance level (i.e., exceeding expectations, meeting expectations,
partially meeting expectations or not meeting expectations). The PJP assigned the cell decision

determinations.

Page 15 of 31




Page 16 of 31



Table 15. The High School Performance Level Decision Table.

Academic Academic Academic
Performance Performance Performance
Below Target Meets Target Exceeds Target
Overall Readiness Below Target BELOW PARTIALLY MEETING
Overall Readiness Meets Target PARTIALLY MEETING MEETING
Overall Readiness Exceeds Target | PARTIALLY MEETING EXCEEDING

STUDENTS INCLUDED IN STATE ACCOUNTABILITY

Students included in state accountability at a particular school were those who have been
reported by their districts with an active primary enrollment on the accountability date for a
particular test under consideration (e.g., PAWS, ACT). Primary enrollment means a student was
reported by the district (on the WDEG684) as “no” in both the home school and concurrent
enrollment fields. When a student is reported as “yes” in either of these fields it means the
student is primarily home schooled or primarily enrolled at another school. Students can only
have one “primary” enrollment.

PARTICIPATION RATE

Rules for minimum participation rate are important to assure that test results used as
accountability indicators are representative of the performance of students receiving instruction
at a school. Non-participation in testing is unlikely to be randomly distributed among students
attending a school. Non-participation is more likely to be systematic. When a sample of non-
participants in testing at a school is systematic (e.g., when the students who are non-participants
are those likely to have low test scores), selection bias occurs and the validity associated with
using those scores in school performance computations is called into question (Marion &
Domaleski, 2012). The accountability conclusions about school performance will not match
actual school performance.

There is a participation requirement of 95% and a participation threshold of 90%. When a school
does not meet the participation threshold, the school is considered not scorable and the school is
assigned to the not meeting expectations performance level. When a school meets the
participation threshold but does not meet the participation requirement, the school is docked one
school performance level. For example, a school with meeting expectations performance level
that does not meet the participation requirement would drop to the partially meeting expectation
performance level. Participation rate is computed for all students with an active enrollment in the
school during the test window. There is no full academic year requirement for participation rate.

A simple participation rate is the number of students who tested divided by the number of
students who should have tested at the school. For example, if a school has 10 students who were
expected to test and only 9 tested, the school's simple participation rate would be 90%. In this
illustration the school's simple participation rate was below the 95% requirement. The school had

Page 17 of 31



one student that did not test. When one student not testing yields a participation rate score of
90% the school is really being held to a participation rate requirement of 100%. When 100% of
students did not test the school would not meet the 95% requirement. For this school, then, the
actual participation rate requirement to which they would be held is 100%. This illustrates the
need for an adjustment rule to be employed when determining a school's participation in testing.

Whenever this actual participation rate for a school is above the requirement of 95% or the
threshold of 90% the one additional non-participant rule® will be applied. The school will be
allowed to have one additional non-participant student and still be considered to have met the
requirement/threshold. In the above example, the school was being held to an actual participation
rate requirement above 95% (i.e., it was 100%), therefore the school is allowed one additional
non-participant. Since the school had only one non-participant the school met the participation
rate requirement. The school had a simple participation rate of 90% but the school met the
requirement because it was allowed one additional non-participant. The one student who did not
test is the one additional non-participant.

In another example, assume a school had 25 students with two non-participants. The school'’s
simple participation rate would be 92%. If only one student was a non-participant the school
would have a simple participation rate of 96%. Without the one additional non-participant rule
the 95% requirement for this schools is actually a 96% requirement. The requirement is above
95%. Because 96% is above 95%, the one additional non-participant rule is applied. The school
would be allowed one additional non-participant. Because of the one additional non-participant
rule, the school with 25 students can have two non-participants and still meet 95% participation
requirement.

8 The actual implementation of this rule is accomplished by setting a target for each subject in terms of the number
of tests that need to be administered and scored at the school for the requirement R(s) to be met in each subject s:

R(s) = floor(.95 X number of expected tests in s)
And similarly for the threshold T (s):
T(s) = floor(.90 x number of expected tests s)

Then a requirement R and threshold T for the school is identified by summing these individual subject
requirements and thresholds

R=Y,R(s)and T =Y, T(s)
So if there are 10 students who need to test in two subjects m and r.

R(m) =9, R(r) =9
and
R=18
There are multiple ways this requirement can be met:
a) non-participation on one math test and one reading test
b) full participation in math and non-participation on two reading tests
c) non-participation on two math tests and full participation on reading

Case a) is the ‘one additional non-participant rule’, but this can be stretched to a subject specific ‘two additional
non-participant rule’.

Page 18 of 31



Participation rates are computed at the test score level rather than the student level. In the
example where the school had 25 students, assume they were consolidated subgroup students for
the equity indicator. The equity indicator uses math scores and reading scores. For 25 students
there would be 50 test scores involved. If two student did not test, there would be 46 test scores.
The simple participation rate would still be 92%. By applying the one additional non-participant
rule the school would be allowed two additional missing test scores, one for each of the two tests
associated with the one additional non-participating student (e.g., a reading test and a math test).
At the test score level this school would still be considered to have met the 95% participation
requirement.

This one additional non-participant rule assures no school has an actual required participation
rate requirement that is above the requirement/threshold. Whenever the one additional non-
participant rule is applied, the school is allowed to have a simple participation rate below the
requirement or the threshold.

This approach was implemented for each school by computing:

e Test scores needed to meet the requirement
e Actual tests with scores

When the actual tests with scores equaled or exceeded the test scores needed to meet the
requirement/threshold the school “met” the requirement/threshold. The school was scored as “not
met” on the requirement/threshold when the actual test scores were lower than the test scores
needed to meet the requirement or threshold.

The participation requirements/thresholds are applied to the all students group and to the
consolidated subgroup of students. As a group, consolidated subgroup students have high needs
and it is important that they not be systematically excluded from testing. In the case of small
schools where look backs to previous years are used to increase the school's n count,
participation rate will be based upon current year students only.

For high schools, a participation requirement/threshold is applied for tested readiness also.
Tested readiness uses composite scores from the Explore, Plan and ACT.

Exemptions

In rare instances, districts may petition the Wyoming Department of Education for an exemption
from testing for students with the most significant cognitive disability who are assessed on the
alternate assessment when they move into the school from another school district after the
beginning of the alternate assessment window. Students moving between schools within a
district are not eligible for an exemption. Eligibility for an exemption should not be based on the
disability category, the amount of time for which the students receives service, the location or
delivery of service or the level of functioning of the student.

The Wyoming Department of Education will consider the amount of time left in the testing
window to prepare for and administer the assessment. There must be evidence that the amount of

Page 19 of 31



time left in the testing window is not adequate to allow for a valid administration. The Wyoming
Department of Education may consider evidence about the individual student’s response time
when demonstrating academic knowledge if such evidence is provided. For approved exemptions
the performance of the student is not considered in participation rate computations or in school
performance level computations.

Testing Status

e Testing status values (by subject):

(0]

Exemption Types

X = Exempt: The student has an approved exemption from this subject (or a
pending exemption where ELL is the exemption type), as discussed in the
“Exemption Type” section below.

T = Tested: The student has been reported by ETS to have taken the test free
of any conditions expected to invalidate the test. That is, a valid scale score
and proficiency level will be reported later this summer for this student and
subject.

N = Not Tested: The student does not have a valid test result. In most cases,
this will simply mean the student was not tested. One particular case,
discussed in the “Grade Enrolled (WDEG684 collection) vs. Grade Tested
(ETS)” section below, is that where a student has been tested in a different
grade than reported as enrolled.

e Exemption Type

o

Grade Tested

If you have requested an exemption from testing for a student and the
exemption has been approved, the exemption type will be reported (e.g. ELL,
Medical, etc.).

ELL exemptions require ACCESS testing of the student.

ELL exemptions only apply to the reading portion of the assessment.

e Grade Enrolled (WDE®684 collection) vs. Grade Tested (Test Contractor)

o
o

Grade Enrolled, Grade Tested, and a comparison field will be reported.
Where a student has tested, but was reported as enrolled in a different grade
than tested, the comparison field will indicate a grade mismatch AND the
testing status value will be N (Not Tested).
= Students with an N in the tested status field are counted as non-
participants
= |f the district determines that the student was tested at the proper grade
level and that the reported WDEG684 grade was incorrect the district
may correct this discrepancy during the WDE684 vetting period

ONE PERCENT ALTERNATE ASSESSMENT CAP

Page 20 of 31



Wyoming is imposing a 1% district-level cap on the percent of enrolled students in tested grades
whose proficient and advanced scores on an alternate assessment count in school accountability
calculations. This cap does not serve to limit the percent of students who participate in an
alternate assessment or the percent of students who can earn a score of proficient/advanced,
rather, the cap is placed on the proficient/advanced scores that “count” in calculating the school
performance levels under WAEA.

For example, in a district with 500 students enrolled in tested grades, staff could test, say, 10
students with significant cognitive disabilities using the ALT, assuming the test is appropriate for
the students. If 7 of the 10 earned scores of proficient and advanced, the 1% rule dictates that
only the scores of 5 ALT-takers (5/500 = 1%) can be used in calculating AYP on the reading and
math indicators. The remaining two scores are randomly reassigned as "basic™ only for purposes
of calculating WAEA school performance levels, and they are displayed in the field called
ACCOUNTABILITY_PERFORMANCE_LEVEL in the confidential student level data file
available to districts on Fusion.

It's important to note that the actual scores the students earn, regardless of the 1% cap, are
printed on the Individual Score Report and returned to the district in their Fusion assessment files
(and should be uploaded to district Student Information Systems). Students are not in any way
penalized with the cap.

Districts that exceed the 1% cap can request an exemption by submitting the WDE 659 form and
appropriate documentation. When a district submits evidence that the students were assigned the
ALT per an IEP team decision based on participation in alternate curricula, then an exemption
from the cap is granted. Evidence is required for all ALT participants in the district, not just for
the number of students who bumped the percent over the cap.

This year, since the test scores will be delivered to districts in the early fall because of PAWS
standard-setting, the WDE 659 will not be due until mid-September.

TRANSCRIPT COLLECTIONS

Two transcript collections are used for the high school readiness sub-indicators. One sub-
indicator requiring transcripts is ninth grade credits and the other is Hathaway scholarship
eligibility. It is expected that transcripts will be available for all students on the Wyoming
Department of Education developed roster of students to be included on these indicators.

e Students included on the WDE developed rosters will be:

o0 Transcripts for Grade 9 Credits — Full academic year students at the designated
school who were continuously enrolled from October 1% through the end of the
school year. This will include any student with an exit date within 10 days of the
final day of the school year. Only students attending grade nine for the first time
are included.

o0 Transcripts for Hathaway Eligibility Level — This will include all students with a
graduate exit code for the year in question. This includes all students who

Page 21 of 31



graduated between September 15" one year and September 14™ the following
year.

The absence of transcripts for included students can alter a school’s score on an indicator. For
example, a pattern of systematic exclusion of transcripts at some schools but not at others would
raise the issue of fairness, particularly if some exclusion were systematic for students that would
have a negative impact on a particular school’s score. For this reason, the following transcript
inclusion rule will be applied to both transcript collections.

e For the grade nine credit indicator, students for whom a transcript is missing will be
considered to have not earned 1/4™ of the credits required for high school graduation in
grade nine.

e For the Hathaway eligibility indicator, students for whom a transcript is missing will be
considered to not have been eligible for any level of Hathaway eligibility award.

Both of these sub-indicators are lagged, meaning that data from the prior year are applied to the
current year’s indicator. This is done to permit the summer progress that students make to be
counted. For example, the school performance level for the 2013-14 school year will use grade
nine credits and Hathaway eligibility from the 2012-13 school year.

FULL ACADEMIC YEAR

When computing school scores, only students who were present at the school for a full academic
year (Marion & Domaleski, 2012) are included. “Full academic year” is defined for Wyoming
accountability as being enrolled in the same school on October 1 and on the day that is the
midpoint of the testing window for each test used in the computation of school performance
levels. Students who were not at the school for the full academic year will be excluded from
school performance level computations.

For the grade nine credit sub-indicator, full academic year status is defined as being continuously
enrolled from October 1% of the given school year until ten days from the last day of the school
year in the school they are attending.

Most small (< 10 day) gaps in enroliments obtained from district student information systems
have been identified as being due to reporting requirements and system related administrative
reasons. Thus, in automated processes, these small breaks do not constitute an immediate break-
in-enrollment unless an enrollment record exists in a different school during the short break.
Identification of students as mobile or full academic year also has significant funding
implications, which were addressed with WDE Finance and the School Finance Data Advisory
Committee in the development of status determination processes. As such, there may be cases
where challenge of an automated status determination will make sense. Challenges will be
evaluated individually based on enrollment details to be provided as a part of the challenge.

Home schooled and concurrent enrollment students are not included in accountability
calculations.

Page 22 of 31



MINIMUM n FOR ACCOUNTABILITY

The minimum n is 10 students for all indicators. A look back will occur independently for each
indicator at a school that does not meet the minimum n provided the data required for the look
back is available. The minimum n look back procedure is to first look back one year and see if
the minimum n is reached. If the minimum n is not reached with a one year look back, the look
back will go back a second year. If the minimum n is still not reached by looking back two years,
the school will not have a score on that indicator.

On the achievement indicator, any student tested in reading, math, or reading and math will be
counted to determine the schools n. No student will be counted more than once.

SMALL SCHOOL DEFINITION AND PROCEDURES

For schools with grades three through eight, a school will be considered a small school when the
school does not have at least ten students on at least two of the WAEA indicators. To put it
another way, in order for a school to be assigned a school performance level the school must
meet the minimum n of ten students on at least two indicators. Schools with scores on just one
indicator or no indicators will undergo a small school review.

High schools must have a target level on both academic performance and overall readiness in
order to receive a school performance level. Schools that do not have target levels assigned on
both academic performance and overall readiness will undergo a small school review.

Procedures for a small school review are included as Appendix C.

SCHOOLS WITH ONE OR NO TESTED GRADES

There are schools in Wyoming with grade three as their only tested grade. When schools have
grade three as their only tested grade, they have an achievement indicator, but they do not have
data for the growth indicator or the equity indicator. For the purpose of accountability these
schools are “paired” with the school their students feed into after grade three that includes a
grade four. This ensures school performance levels are based upon more than just one indicator.
The grade three achievement scores from these schools are combined with the achievement
scores from their paired school when determining school performance levels. In other words, the
combined school is treated as a single school for accountability calculations and both schools are
assigned the same performance level.

In Wyoming there are schools with grade configurations that do not include any tested grade.

For example, several LEAs have organized their elementary schools so that students attend grade
K-2 in one building and then move to a different building for grades 3-5. In this case, the school
performance level for the 3-5 school is also applied to the K-2. In these situations, collaboration
across buildings is important to the success of the students involved.

Page 23 of 31



Table 16 is a list of Wyoming schools that do not contain any of the currently assessed grades
and the school with which they are paired for accountability purposes. This table will be updated

each year.

Table 16. Accountability School Pairings for Schools without Tested Grades.

School ID School Name Grades Accountability Grades School ID
Served Related School Served
0501002 Douglas Primary K-1 Douglas Upper 4-5 0501010
School Elementary
0501013 | Douglas Intermediate 2-3 School
0701007 | North Elementary & K-1
Baldwin Creek 4-5 0701009
0701008 Gannett Peak 2-3 Elementary
Elementary
0706001 Crowheart K-3 Wind River K-5 0706002
Elementary Elementary
0725002 | Ashgrove Elementary 1-3
School
0725009 Aspen Park K Rendezvous 4-5 0725007
Elementary School Elementary
0725008 | Jackson Elementary 1-3
School
0725010 Willow Creek 1-3
Elementary
0801007 | Lincoln Elementary K-2 Trail Elementary 3-5 0801006
1001006 Meadowlark K-3 Clear Creek 4-5 1001002
Elementary Elementary
1101021 Lebhart Elementary K-2 Fairview 3-6 1101013
Elementary
1101010 | Deming Elementary K-3 Miller 4-6 1101022
Elementary
1201004 Kemmerer K-2 Canyon 3-6 1201051
Elementary Elementary
1202001 Afton Elementary K-3 Osmond 4-6 1202005
Elementary
1202003 Thayne Elementary K-3 Etna Elementary 4-6 1202004
1601003 Libbey Elementary K-2 West Elementary 3-5 1601005
2001010 | Jackson Elementary K-2 Colter 3-5 2001009
Elementary
2301003 Newcastle K-2 Gertrude Burns 3-5 2301001
Elementary Intermediate

Page 24 of 31




APPENDIX A
COMPUTING “AGP” — Technical Documentation

e From SGP Package in R
o0 Obtain “Lagged” Projections
= Projections are the SGPs needed to remain within or get to a particular
performance level on a future test
= Lagged indicates that projections were based upon the prior year’s test
e Assuch the YEAR_1 projection is a projection of the SGP needed
this year to assure a particular performance level
e YEAR_2 projection is a projection of the SGP needed to assure a
particular performance level in the year after the current year and
soon
0 A student’s prior year performance level is not considered in the computation of
the lagged projections
0 There are 3 levels of projections
= LEVEL_1 projections give the SGP needed to remain/become Basic
= LEVEL_2 projections give the SGP needed to remain/become Proficient
= LEVEL_3 projections five the SGP needed to remain/become Advanced

e SGP_TARGETS were obtained from SGP Package. (The SGP target for a given year is
the SGP needed in the current year to become/remain proficient in the current year or a
given future year)

0 Lagged projections from SGP Package
= LEVEL_2 SGP_TARGET_YEAR_1
e SGP needed in the current year to become/remain proficient
= LEVEL_2 SGP_TARGET_YEAR_ 2
e SGP needed in the next year to become/remain proficient
= LEVEL 2 SGP_TARGET_YEAR 3
e SGP needed in 2 years to become/remain proficient
= LEVEL 2 SGP_TARGET_YEAR_ 4
e SGP needed in 3 years to become/remain proficient
0 Lagged projections from SGP Package were used to compute SGP_TARGETS
for the CURRENT_YEAR, YEAR_1, YEAR_2 and YEAR_3

Work below here is completed in the Wyoming Department of Education Oracle data base.
e CUKU_TARGETS (Catch Up Keep Up) take into consideration the proficiency status of
the student on the prior year’s test were as lagged projection do not take this into
consideration

0 CUKU_TARGET_CURRRENT_YEAR
= Thisequalsthe LEVEL 2 SGP_TARGET_YEAR_1 for all students

0o CUKU_TARGET_YEAR_1
= For below proficient students is the lowest of:

e LEVEL_2 SGP_TARGET_YEAR 1

e LEVEL_2 SGP_TARGET_YEAR 2

Page 25 of 31



= For proficient and above students is the highest of:
e LEVEL_2 SGP_TARGET_YEAR_1
e LEVEL_2 SGP_TARGET_YEAR_ 2
0 CUKU_TARGET_YEAR 2
= For below proficient students is the lowest of:
e LEVEL_2 SGP_TARGET_YEAR_1
e LEVEL_2 SGP_TARGET_YEAR_ 2
e LEVEL 2 SGP_TARGET_YEAR_3
= For proficient and above students is the highest of:
e LEVEL_2 SGP_TARGET_YEAR_1
e LEVEL_2 SGP_TARGET_YEAR_ 2
e LEVEL_2 SGP_TARGET_YEAR_3
0 CUKU_TARGET_YEAR 3
= For below proficient students is the lowest of:
e LEVEL_2 SGP_TARGET_YEAR_1
e LEVEL_2 SGP_TARGET_YEAR_ 2
e LEVEL 2 SGP_TARGET_YEAR_3
e LEVEL_2 SGP_TARGET_YEAR_ 4
= For proficient and above students is the highest of:
LEVEL 2 SGP_TARGET_YEAR_1
LEVEL 2 SGP_TARGET_YEAR_ 2
LEVEL 2 SGP_TARGET_YEAR_ 3
LEVEL 2 SGP_TARGET_YEAR 4

AGP (Adequate Growth Percentile) by grade
0 Isthe CUKU_TARGET_CURRENT_YEAR for grade 8 students
0 Isthe CUKU_TARGET_YEAR_1 for grade 7 students
0 Isthe CUKU_TARGET_YEAR_2 for grade 6 students
0 Isthe CUKU TARGET_YEAR 3 for grade 4 & grade 5 students

MET_AGP
o Trueif SGP-AGP=>0
o Falseif SGP-AGP <0

Page 26 of 31



APPENDIX B
2015 Performance Level Descriptors for Schools with Grades 3-8

Exceeding Expectations

Schools in this category are considered models of performance. These schools typically exceeded target
in achievement and at least one other performance indicator - equity or growth —

while meeting target on the other indicator.

Meeting Expectations

Schools in this category demonstrated performance that met or exceeded target on multiple performance
indicators. All of these schools met or exceeded state targets in achievement. They typically met or
exceeded targets on student growth and promotion of equity or fell below target on

growth or equity while exceeding target on achievement.

Partially Meeting Expectations

Schools in this category typically performed below target on the growth and equity performance
indicators or were below target in achievement. Many schools in this category met or exceeded state
target levels in student growth and/or promoting equity for low-achieving students.

Not Meeting Expectations

Schools in this category had unacceptable performance on all indicators. Improvement is an urgent
priority for these schools. These schools had below-target levels of achievement and student

growth and showed insufficient academic improvement for low-achieving students.

2015 Performance Level Descriptors for High Schools

Exceeding Expectations

Schools in this category are considered models of performance. These schools exceeded state target levels
in overall readiness for college and careers and in the academic performance indicator combining the
school’s achievement, student growth and equity.

Meeting Expectations

Schools in this category demonstrated performance that met or exceeded target on multiple indicators.
All of these schools met or exceeded target in academic performance, combining achievement, student
growth and equity. Their performance also met or exceeded target in overall readiness or exceeded target
in the achievement/growth/equity indicator while being below target in overall readiness.

Partially Meeting Expectations

Schools in this category typically were below target on the academic performance indicator combining
achievement, student growth and equity. Some schools met state target for achievement/growth/equity
but performed below target in overall readiness for college and careers.

Not Meeting Expectations

Schools in this category performed at unacceptable levels on all indicators. Improvement is an urgent
priority for these schools. These schools had below-target levels of academic performance, combining
achievement, student growth and equity and fell below state targets in overall readiness for college and
careers.

Page 27 of 31



APPENDIX C
WYOMING SCHOOL ACCOUNTABILITY
PROCESS
SMALL SCHOOL DEFINITION

Wyoming has many very small schools. At times there are schools in Wyoming that have just one
student. For the purpose of this small school review process a school serving students in grades three
through eight will be considered a small school when the school is unable to meet the minimum n
requirement on more than one indicator. High schools will be considered small schools when they do not
have a target level on both academic performance or overall readiness.

PURPOSE OF SMALL SCHOOL REVIEWS

By definition, small schools lack standardized and stable data to inform a comparable school performance
level determination. Therefore, the objective of a small school review is to review any applicable
information and evidence that the school can produce to inform judgments about the extent of support and
improvement the school may require.

OPERATIONAL DETAILS

e An accountability review team at the Wyoming Department of Education (WDE) will complete
the review. WDE has had a review team in place for several years to review federal school
accountability decisions. This same team will complete the small school reviews.

e Upon completing the review, the review team will forward recommendations to the State Board
of Education.

e Timeline for submission and review will be as follows:

o Schools will be notified by October 1% if the school is deemed a “small school.”
o By November 1%, schools must submit a school improvement plan via the ASSIST
platform.
0 The WDE review team will read the school improvement plan.
= If no additional information is required, the WDE review team will determine the
outcome of the review and notify the school.
= If additional information pertaining to the accountability indicators is needed, the
WDE will make a request to the school by November 15,
e The school shall submit additional information pertaining to indicators
by December 1%,
e The WDE review team will review additional evidence provided by the
school, determine the outcome of the review, and notify the school of the
outcome by December 15™,

EVIDENCE PROVIDED BY THE SCHOOL

School improvement plans are presently due on November 1% each year. The department of education has
access to these school improvement plans. These plans will be reviewed as part of the small school
review. The attached Checklist for Small School Review will be used for reviewing the school
improvement plans. This checklist provides guidance to the schools about the criteria that will be used in
judging the improvement plans.

Page 28 of 31



Schools serving students in grades three through eight may submit additional evidence relevant to the
following indicators (e.g., evidence from Measures of Academic Progress [MAP]):

Achievement

Growth

Equity

Other relevant evidence

Schools serving students in high school grades may submit additional evidence relevant to the following
indicators (e.g., evidence from ACT testing outside of the grade 11 census administration):
e Academic Performance
0 Achievement
o Equity
o Growth
e Overall Readiness
0 Graduation Rate
0 Additional Readiness
= Grade nine credits
= Hathaway Scholarship Eligibility
= Tested Readiness

The Department team conducting the review may consider the student performance evidence for small
numbers of students or individual student if requested to do so by the school. Any public report prepared
by the Department review team must not reveal any personally identifiable student performance
information.

OUTCOMES OF A REVIEW

e Approved — The process is complete once a school gets this outcome
e Approved with Recommendations — The process is complete once a school gets this outcome

¢ Revise and Resubmit — additional support to the school may be required or made available when
a school gets this outcome

In order for a school to be granted “approved” status it should receive a minimum rating of acceptable on
all reviewed elements.

Page 29 of 31



Checklist for Small Schools Review

Review criteria for each school improvement plan requirement:

e Limited or no evidence in plan (0 points earned per item)

= Revise & Resubmit (0-12 total points earned)
e Some evidence in plan (1 point earned per item)

= Approved w/Recommendations (13-24 total points earned)
e Strong evidence in plan (2 points earned per item)

=  Approved (25-36 total points earned)

PLAN REQUIREMENTS

1. How does the school improvement plan specifically address performance improvement on the
achievement indictor in the school performance report?

Evidence:
__0__ 1  2:Evidence that the schools examined student performance on the WAEA
indicators (i.e. PAWS, ACT)
__0__ 1 2:Wording in the plan shows that the school understands the indicator data
from WAEA
__0__ 1  2:Evidence of achievement data use beyond those from WAEA (i.e. MAP,
DIBELS)
__0__ 1  2:Evidence that the school has strategies for improving student achievement
on the WAEA indicator(s)
__0__ 1  2:The school has a systematic process for regular review of individual student
performance

Total points for achievement: /10 pts.

2. How does the school improvement plan specifically address the performance improvement on the
growth/readiness indicator in the school performance report?

Evidence for growth (non high schools only):
__0__ 1  2:Evidence that the schools examined student growth/readiness on the WAEA
indicators (i.e. PAWS, ACT)
__0__ 1 2:Wording in the plan shows that the school understands the growth of their
students and strategies for improving growth
__0__ 1  2:Evidence of growth data use beyond those from WAEA (i.e. MAP, DIBELS)
__0__ 1 2:The school has a systematic process for regular review of individual student
growth

Total points for growth: /8 pts.

(Continued on next page)

Page 30 of 31



Evidence for readiness (high schools only):
__0__ 1 2:Evidence that the schools examined student readiness on the WAEA sub-
indicators (| e. graduation rate, tested readiness, Hathaway eligibility, grade 9 credits)
__0__ 1 2:Wording in the plan shows that the school understands the readiness of their
students and strategies for improving readiness
__0__ 1 2:The school has a systematic process for regular review of individual student
readiness

Total points for growth/readiness: /6 pts.

3. How does the school improvement plan specifically address the performance improvement on the
equity indicator in the school performance report?

Evidence:

__0__ 1  2:Evidence that the school has a plan for addressing the needs of students
with low performance on the WAEA indicators
_0__ 1  2:Evidence that the school uses a tiered approach to academic intervention
(services for students that perform low on the WAEA achievement and growth indicators)
__0__ 1 2:Wording in the plan shows that the school understands which students meet
the definition for inclusion in the consolidated subgroup

__0__ 1  2:Evidence of measures of equity beyond those from WAEA (i.e. MAP,
DIBELS, ngh Schools Measures)

Total points for equity: /8 pts.

4. How does the school improvement plan address the needs of all at-risk groups?

Evidence:
__0__ 1 2:Evidence that the school has a plan for properly identifying and serving
students with u unique educational needs
__0__ 1 2:Evidence that the school has strategies in place or plans to implement
strategies to o reduce risk for students with unique educational needs

Total points for all at-risk groups: /4 pts.

District Name:

School Name:

Total Points: 136 pts.

Decision:

Page 31 of 31




THE WYOMING COMPREHENSIVE
ACCOUNTABILITY FRAMEWORK: PHASE |

Produced for the:

WYOMING SELECT COMMITTEE ON STATEWIDE
EDUCATION ACCOUNTABILITY

By
Scott Marion, Ph.D. & Chris Domaleski, Ph.D.

NATIONAL CENTER FOR THE IMPROVEMENT OF EDUCATIONAL ASSESSMENT

January 31, 2012

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012



TABLE OF CONTENTS

EXECULIVE SUMMIAIY ...ttt ettt sttt b e b e et enne et e e neesbeesbeeneenreas 6
GOalS OF The SYSTEIM ...t e e e e reeaeaneenneens 6
The Wyoming School Accountability SYStEM...........coceiviiiiiiiiic e 7

School Accountability INAICALOIS........coviiiiiieie e 7
The Performance Levels: Ratings for SCNOOIS...........ccccovviiiiiiie e 7
REPOMING SYSTEIM ...ttt e e sre e te e e e s reenaeeneesreeeeenes 8
CONSEQUENCES ANT SUPPOIES. ....eiveevietiesiesieesieetesieesteeste e steebesseesbeesbesseesbeesbesneesseeseesneesseas 8
Developing an Educator Accountability SYStem ..........cccoeviieiieii e 8
Developing a Student Accountability SYStEM .......ccccveieiiieiieieseece e e 8
Implications for Standards and ASSESSMENTS ..........ciuiiiriieiiiie e 9

SECtioN 1: BACKGIOUNG.......cviiiiiiiciicie ettt e e e e e te e esneenneaneenneas 10
INEFOAUCTION ... bbbttt b e bbbttt et nns 10
SENALE FHIE 70 ittt enes 11

STALEWIAE ASSESSIMENT ...ttt b e bbbt ee e 11
Statewide ACCOUNTADTIILY ......cveiieiieie e 12
Longitudinal data systems and repOrting .........cccceeeereeieiieenenie e 13
Policies, consequences, and SUPPOITS. ........eieeruerierierieeie e siee e siee e e sree e sae e sreeeesnes 13

Section 11: Conceptual FOUNTALIONS. .......cceiiiiieiiee e sae e nrees 14
Goals and INtended OULCOMES ........couiiieiiieiieie et b e sre e enes 14
GUIING PIINCIPIES ..ottt sttt e bt nre e e enes 16

INSEPUCTIONGAL COTE.....eiiiiiiiieee bbbt 16
(O00] g [T =] o o SRR 16
B GUITY ettt bt b et bttt r e e be e nreas 17
TTANSPAIEINCY ...ttt ettt ettt ettt ettt b e e st et e s b e e s b e e e sbe e e abb e e e nbb e e e nbb e e e be e e e bneeannneeas 17
SUPPOIt aNd IMPIOVEIMENT.....c.eiiiiiieie et et sre e enes 17
State-LocCal PartNership ........cocoiieiiiie i e 17
Shared ReSPONSIDIITY .......oovveiiiiecee e 18
TREOMY OF ACLION ...ttt sttt et nee b e 18
Major Goals (Intended Outcomes) of the SYStem.........cccovveiiiiieni e 19
ANTECRUBINTS ...ttt bbbttt bbb bbb b 19
Proximal indicators (numbers) and mechanisms (DUIEtS).........cccceveeieiiiiniie e 20
Intermediate indicators (numbers) and mechanisms (BUHELS) .........ccovveiiiiiiieieiieene, 20
DiISTAl INTICALOIS ...ttt bbbttt 20

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012 2



Consequences (intended and unintended)..........ccoeeiieieeienience s 21

Section I11: The Multiple Accountability INIALIVES..........c.oivveieie e 22
School Accountability FramMEWOIK .........cccveiveieiieiiee et sae e e 22
a1 g0 o [0 od o] o ISR PUR PRI 22
[0 [ oF: o] £ FO TSSO UR PP 22
ACRTBVEIMENT ... ettt bbb bbb e e e 24
Achievement Design HIUSTFAtIONS...........ooiiiiiiiriiee e 25
GIOWLN L.t bbbt s et bbb bbbt r e 26
REAAINESS ...t bbbttt bbb bbb 27
Readiness Design HIUSTIAtION ..........ccooiiiiiiiiiieeeeee e s 29

B GUITY ettt Re ettt e nre e teenreare e reaneennes 31
INCIUSTON ...ttt bbb sb et b e bt e et e e e 32
LC] 0111 1 [P PRR 32
GrOWLEN AREINATIVES ...ttt 32
GrOWEh EXPECIALIONS........eivieieitieiieeiie ettt e e ta e te s e s naenaeeneesreeeeenes 34
Student Growth PerCentiles..........ooviiiiiiie e s 35
Catch-Up/ Keep-UpP GIOWEN .......coiiiecic et 35
Growth Design HIUSTFAtION ......ccveiuieiecieiecic e 36
GrOWEN AN EQUILY ....oveeiiieiceece et st s 38
DESION DIBCISIONS ... itie ettt sttt ettt b et e st st eete s e e sbeebeeseenbeebeenbesbeenbeeneenneas 38
Single or MUIIPIE RALINGS ....c.viivieiice et 39
Recommendation: Trying to thread the needle.........ccooo e 41
Performance level descriptors (PLD) and Standard Setting ...........cccoevevinieiiiinieenenn 41
Approaches for Combing Multiple INdiCators ...........cccevveveiieiieiecere e, 43
Matrix Design HIUSTrAtION.......ccoiiiiieiiiie e 44
Compensatory Design HIUSTFAtioN ...........ccoooeiiiiiii e 46
Professional Judgment and APPEAIS .........c.ocveiiiii i e 48
] 00 1] o TSP SRRPR PRSP 48
CONSEQUENCES ANT SUPPOIT ...ttt sttt ettt sttt sb e et e ste st e beenbeeneesreeeeenes 50
EAUCALOr EVAIUBLION ........iiiiiiiiccee e 52
a1 g0 o U od o] o ISR PUR PP 52
MUILIPIE IMIBASUIES ...ttt ettt sb et et sbeenbesneenreas 52
Measuring Student PErfOrManCe...........coooviieiieie e 53
INCIUSION AN ALIITDULION ..o 54

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012 3



TEACHEI/LEART OF RECOIM. ...eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e e e e ennennes 54

MiSSING/ INCOMPIELE DALA.......cceceeiieiicie e ae e nneas 55
MUILIPIE EQUCALOTS ... eevieiieiiiecie ettt e e sneesteennessaenaaaneenneas 56
Causal ATEIDULION ..o e 56
Reporting Outcomes of Educator Evaluation Determinations.............ccccccovveveeieiiesveniennn, 57
SOUICES OF EFTON ...ttt bbbttt b e bbbt e e 58
Student Accountability CONSIAErAtiONS..........cccueiiiiiiiiiie e e 61
INEFOAUCTION ... bbbttt sb bbbt e e e 61
What is @ WYOMING GradUALE? ...........c.ecveiieieiie e see e sie e sae e saeeneesneas 62

A Process for Thinking About Student Accountability ...........ccooeiiiiiiiininiineenn 62
Relationship to the full aSSeSSMENt SYSIEM .........oiiiiieie e 64

A\ PIOCESS NMOTE ..ttt etttk sb e s b e st e e e ssb e e nbb e e e bt e e e be e e e bneeanneee s 64
Section IV: Support, Capacity Building, and CONSEqUENCES..........cccouevvieiieiiieeniee e, 65
Support, Interventions, and Capacity BUIldiNG..........cccocoeviviiiiiieiieie e 65
Building Capacity in WY0omIiNg SCNOOIS...........cccuoieiiiiiiic e 66
Capacity building for schools and diStriCtS..........coooviieiiiieiier e 66
Support/intervention for low performing StUENtS..........ccoveviieiiviii e 67
Support/mentoring for teachers needing to IMProve .........cccccevveie e 68
Support/mentoring for SChoOl 1eAdErS.........c.oiiiiie s 69
Capacity building for the state as a whole to support continuous improvement.............. 69

The relationship of consequences (response) and SUPPOIS ........eevvvevereereereesieerieereeseeneenns 71
Section V: validity and other teChNICAl ISSUES ..........coiveiiiiiiieie e 73
Standards: The Foundation Of the SYSTEM .........ccuiiiiiiiiiii s 73
ASSESSMENT CHATACTEIISTICS ...ttt bbbt 74
TeChNICal CharaCleriSTICS ......viviiie ettt nae e 74
ATIGNMENT ..ottt e st et e s e b e e beenbesbeesbeeneenreas 74
REITADTITY ...ttt et e e esre e te et e s reenaeeneenneas 75
SCaAliNG AN LINKING ..ot e 75
Other AssSesSMENt CONSIABIALIONS. ..........ciiiiiiiesieie et ne s 76
The High School ASSESSMENt SYSTEM..........ccviiiiieieciece e 77
Accountability Uses of Benchmark Adaptive ASSESSMENT...........cccevvriiiieiieie e, 77
PUIPOSES ANU USES......eieiieiiieitieitt ettt sttt re et et b e b e benneenreeeeenes 77
TeChNICAl QUAITLY ....c.veeieieieie ettt te e sra e sre e aneenneens 78
Campbell’s Law and CorruptiDiity ........cccoooueiiiiiiiiieee e 79

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012 4



RO COMIMIBNAALIONS .. 79

Evaluation of the Accountability SYSIEM .........ccoiiiiiiiii e 80
Evidence Supports Claims iNthe TOA ... 80
RESUItS are RelIabIe. ..o e 81
RESUILS @re VAl ......ccueeiicic et esae e e nneas 81

R E =T =] 0TSSP 83

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012 5



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Senate File 70, passed during the 2011 Wyoming legislative session, outlined sweeping changes
to Wyoming’s educational assessment and accountability systems. The legislation specified the
creation of a legislative Select Committee on Statewide Educational Accountability and an
Advisory Committee to support the Select Committee’s work. The Select Committee directed
the Legislative Service Office (LSO) to secure the services of the National Center for the
Improvement of Educational Assessment (Center for Assessment) to serve as technical
consultants to both committees on accountability design and development. The two committees
agreed that the first major task—referred to as Phase I in this report—was to create a
comprehensive accountability framework so that the major accountability and assessment
initiatives work together coherently to best improve Wyoming’s educational accountability
system. The second aspect of Phase | was to specify the general design of the school
accountability system. This report presents the Wyoming comprehensive accountability
framework which describes the fundamental elements that must be addressed to design,
operationalize, and evaluate a credible and technically defensible school accountability system
that supports Wyoming’s goals. The framework also addresses the key considerations essential
to establishing an educator and student accountability system.

Goals of the System

It is important for the framework to be guided by a well-articulated theory of action. This theory
of action specifies the goals, purposes and uses for each accountability system. Additionally, it
defines the assumptions, actions, and mechanisms hypothesized to bring about the desired
outcomes. Finally, the theory of action should support coherence across multiple accountability
initiatives. The first step in developing a theory of action is to specify the goals of the system.
The Select and Advisory committees articulated the following as the goals for the Wyoming
educational accountability system:

e Have Wyoming become a national educational leader among states
Have all students leave Wyoming schools “college or career ready”
Increase the rates at which Wyoming students learn
Reduce and eventually minimize gaps in achievement in Wyoming
Improve the quality of teaching and leading in Wyoming
Maximize fiscal and strategic efficiency of Wyoming education
Increase credibility of and support for Wyoming public education

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012 6



The Wyoming School Accountability System

School Accountability Indicators

Drawing from the priorities in the theory of action and aiming to meet the system goals, the
following indicators were proposed for the school accountability system.

Category Recommended Indicators

Achievement Performance on PAWS reading, mathematics, writing, and science.

Growth Measure of student progress for reading and mathematics anchored to a
standard based on attaining or maintaining proficiency.

Readiness Status and growth measures on EXPLORE, PLAN, and ACT; graduation

rate or index. Additionally, include a broader set of measures for
reporting only that includes post-secondary success.

Equity Additional measure of student progress for non-proficient students only
in reading and mathematics. Measure should be anchored to a standard
based on attaining proficiency.

Inclusion Student participation in PAWS, EXPLORE, and ACT.

The Performance Levels: Ratings for Schools

It is one thing to report school performance on each of these indicators, but it is another to
summarize the available data into an overall rating for each school. There were extensive
discussions with both the Select and Advisory committee about the most meaningful way to
report overall performance for each school. Most members of both committees wanted the state
to produce an overall rating for each school each year, while others indicated a strong and
justifiable preference for avoiding a single rating. The full report provides considerable
discussion about the tradeoffs with either approach. The Select Committee recommended
producing an overall rating that classifies school performance as follows:
Exemplary/Exceeding Expectations

Satisfactory/Meeting Expectations

Approaching/Partially Meeting Expectations

Priority Improvement/Not Meeting Expectations

The committees’ decision was based on both technical (e.g., a single rating that combines
multiple components are more reliable than any individual component) and policy related (e.g.,
producing outcomes in a manner consistent with policy values will mitigate the risk of misuse).
The Select Committee recommended the use of a “decision matrix” as the preferred method for
combining the multiple components into a single rating.

In addition to the overall rating, the Select and Advisory committees also recommended
producing indicator summaries for at least each of the following categories of school
performance:

e Mathematics achievement

e Mathematics growth

e Reading achievement

e Reading growth

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012



e Science achievement
e Writing achievement
e Readiness

Both committees recommended that the state engage in a deliberative “standard setting” process
to establish overall levels that are tied to important criteria of performance. This involves
generating descriptions of expected overall performance (performance level descriptors) at each
of four proposed overall levels outlined above.

Reporting System

The six indicator level subscores will help provide much more “actionable” information than the
overall rating, but even that level of information does not contain enough detail to fully inform
decisions about supports and program improvement. We argue that it is critical to develop a full
reporting system that equips educators, leaders, and stakeholders with ample information at
multiple levels. A well-designed and useful reporting system goes beyond static reports and
takes advantage of innovations such a dynamic reporting technology and data visualization.

Consequences and Supports

The committees outlined appropriate consequences and supports tied to outcomes in order to
promote continuous improvement. The framework presents a multi-tiered system where the
overall level triggers a general action, which is further specified according to the performance on
the various indicators. In general, schools with higher overall performance are granted greater
flexibility and schools with lower performance receive more intensive interventions that
correspond to the areas most in need of improvement. A system of supports is critical to
accountability system effectiveness and both committees recognize the need to do more design
and development in this area.

Developing an Educator Accountability System

The accountability framework also provides an overview of the elements that must be addressed
to implement an educator evaluation system. These include: defining purpose and uses, selecting
multiple measures, incorporating academic growth, addressing attribution, and quantifying
sources of error. This section of the framework provides recommendations for key operational
challenges such as defining teacher/leader of record, dealing with missing data, and addressing
the challenge of non-tested grades.

Developing a Student Accountability System

In response to the directive in Senate File 70 to review alternatives to the current body of
evidence (BOE) system, the framework presents a series of considerations for using end-of-
course (EOC) tests to determine if students are eligible for high school graduation. The
framework presented recommendation for using a defined process for making critical decisions
about the components of such a system. This process should include key stakeholders who
address key decisions that include:

e Defining a “Wyoming graduate”

e Clarifying the required knowledge, skills, and dispositions of a Wyoming graduate

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012 8



e How a set of EOC tests can serve a student accountability system

e Decisions about the many issues related to the development of an EOC assessment
system

e The types of support and interventions that must accompany such a student accountability
system.

Implications for Standards and Assessments

Standards and assessments are fundamental components of the school, educator, and student
accountability system. Therefore, the framework provided an overview of the essential
characteristics of a standards and assessment system best poised to support accountability goals.
The Select and Advisory Committees unanimously and strongly recommended that
Wyoming formally adopt and implement the Common Core State Standards (CCSS)
because of the standard’s strong link to college and career readiness, clear articulation of
knowledge and skills across grade levels, and support for comparability across states. In terms
of large-scale assessment, the framework discusses the importance of ensuring key criteria such
as alignment to the knowledge and skills associated with post-secondary readiness,
comparability, reliability, and validity.

Given that SF 70 authorized the use of benchmark computer adaptive testing to measure student
longitudinal growth as part of the state accountability system, the framework addresses
significant concerns with this approach. Specifically, we recommend not using a test such as
Northwest Evaluation Association’s (NWEA) Measures of Academic Progress (MAP) or similar
benchmark assessments for accountability purposes because:

e it iscontrary to the purposes for which the assessments are typically designed,

e of concerns about the technical quality of such assessments, and

e such uses degrade the instructional value of the assessments.

The final section of the framework discusses the critical need for a comprehensive evaluation of
the accountability system prior to and following implementation in order to maximize the
likelihood that the state’s objectives will be met. This evaluation should address the extent to
which evidence supports the claims in the theory of action and the degree to which results are
reliable and valid. In particular, it is critical to pilot the model in advance of high-stakes
accountability uses and study the outcomes to refine system decisions. Moreover, ongoing
monitoring and investigation should inform decisions to promote continuous improvement of the
system.

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012 9



SECTION I: BACKGROUND
Introduction

Wyoming Senate File 70 set forth an ambitious agenda to reform the ways in which Wyoming
schools, educators, and students are held accountable for academic performance. While this new
law will undoubtedly create some implementation challenges, Wyoming has the opportunity to
do something few states have done. By enacting such comprehensive accountability legislation,
Wyoming has the opportunity to create a coherent educational accountability framework to
improve the likelihood of realizing the goal of making Wyoming education the envy of the
nation. This coherence will not emerge simply by following the requirements of the legislation.
Rather, the State needs a comprehensive accountability framework to describe in much more
detail than can and should be presented in legislation the various components of each system—
school, educator, and student—and how they fit together to form the overall Wyoming
educational accountability system. This document presents this comprehensive accountability
framework to guide the development of current and future accountability systems in Wyoming.

The Wyoming legislature enacted this sweeping legislation out of a strong desire to increase the
quality and reputation of Wyoming’s educational system, to ensure that Wyoming students can
compete effectively in the “flat world” of the 21* Century, and to attract and foster economic
development in Wyoming. The sweeping accountability legislation was also motivated by a
desire to monitor and perhaps improve the financial efficiency of public education in Wyoming.
As several members of the legislature questioned, “are we getting the right bang for the
considerable number of bucks we are putting into the educational system?” To be clear,
legislators were not looking to reduce funding, they simply wanted to make sure that, as
responsible public stewards, they were spending the public’s money as wisely as possible.

SF 70 was an ambitious piece of legislation that was created under tight timelines as well as
other pressures. As such, it is not perfect. In fact, one of the main purposes of this
comprehensive framework is to help guide the development of new legislation during the 2012
session based on a luxury of a more deliberative approach followed during the 2011 interim.
Therefore, the reader will notice that many recommendations in this report are not perfectly
aligned with SF 70 and occasionally are at odds with the language of SF 70.

This comprehensive accountability framework provides an overview of the elements that must be
addressed to design, operationalize, and evaluate a credible and technically defensible education
accountability system that supports Wyoming’s goals. This is particularly important given the
broad reach of Senate File 70 and the multiple purposes and uses of assessment and
accountability described. The comprehensive framework outlines the fundamental requirements
for school and educator accountability with a focus on establishing coherence among all
components. The comprehensive accountability framework is organized in five major sections
with multiple chapters within each section, as follows:
. Background
Il.  Conceptual Foundations
1. The Multiple Accountability Initiatives
IV.  Consequences, Support, and Capacity Building

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012 10



V. Evaluation and other Technical Considerations

This framework was based on recommendations from the Wyoming Select Committee on
Statewide Educational Accountability during the 2011 interim. Additionally, this framework
benefited from guidance provided by the Advisory Committee to the Select Committee on
Statewide Education Accountability that met several times during the interim as well as
providing input via email and telephone conference calls. Given the short time frame during the
interim and the broad scope of Senate File 70, it is beyond the scope of this document to provide
detailed specifications and recommendations for all areas of the framework. The framework
presents a broad sketch of the entire system and outlines the steps necessary to further define
aspects of the system not explicated here. For example, in the section on student accountability,
we discuss some key considerations to help ensure coherence with the full system, but then
outline a process by which the specific decisions could be made.

Senate File 70

Senate File 70 created the “Wyoming Accountability in Education Act” and originally set forth a
two-phase approach to the development of a comprehensive accountability system. The first
phase directed the Wyoming Department of Education to take specific actions relative to an
accountability and statewide assessment system. The second phase established the Select
Committee on Statewide Education Accountability and an Advisory Committee of education
stakeholders to develop a long-term accountability system. In fact, the two phases have
essentially been reformulated such that Phase | has focused on the development of a school
accountability system, while Phase 1l looks to the longer term when educator and student
accountability systems are included in the larger framework. We summarize the provisions of
SF 70 by using the following categories:

Statewide assessment

Statewide accountability including required and recommended indicators

Longitudinal data systems and reporting

Policies, consequences, and supports

This report does not deal with aspects of SF 70 in this summary that focus on school funding
(e.g., School Finance Recalibration) or related matters. Additionally, the intent of this section is
to provide a brief summary of the provisions of the law. We offer comments about the
provisions in the appropriate sections of the report. For example, we discuss assessment issues in
Section XI of this report and in doing so, offer comments and recommendations about the
assessment provisions in SF 70.

Statewide Assessment

Most urgently, SF 70 required the Wyoming Department of Education (WDE) to eliminate the
open-response questions on the PAWS reading and mathematics tests and to use a writing
assessment comprised of a single writing prompt to be administered at a time of the year distinct
from the NCLB assessments. The legislature also directed WDE to issue a Request for Proposals
(RFP) to hire an assessment contractor to implement the requested changes for the school year
2012-2013.

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012 11



The legislature also directed the State Board of Education (SBE) to develop and implement
statewide benchmark adaptive assessments for the 2012-2013 school year to be administered at
the district level. Further, the law directed the SBE to use these assessments for evaluating
student growth in math and reading in grades K-8. The Advisory Committee recognized the
challenges of using the same assessment system for both instructional improvement and
accountability as well as the more powerful growth models available for the state summative
assessments and, therefore, recommended not using the benchmark adaptive system to fulfill the
accountability growth component. This is discussed in more detail in both the school
accountability and growth sections later in this report.

SF 70 directed the SBE to “align statewide assessment components” with the accountability
system. This recognizes the need to ensure that the assessment system is able to support the
requirements and demands of the accountability system. This is discussed in detail in a
subsequent section of this report. Additionally, the legislature directed the SBE to consider
alternatives to the current body of evidence system including the potential of using statewide
end-of-course exams to replace the body of evidence system. Section I11 discusses this in the
context of a student accountability system.

Furthermore, the legislature required the administration of two of ACT’s tests. The ACT will be
administered to all grade 11 students in reading, English, mathematics, and science, while the
EXPLORE will provide information about the performance of eighth graders in the same four
content areas, but may be administered in the fall of the ninth grade.

Statewide Accountability

The legislature suggested a two-phase approach to the development of the WY comprehensive
accountability system. Phase I directs the WDE to begin reporting the performance of Wyoming
schools on a variety of indicators, categorized as achievement (status), college readiness, and
growth/improvement, while Phase 11 authorizes the creation of a Select Committee on Statewide
Education Accountability along with an Advisory Committee to support the Select Committee to
review the indicators and other aspects of decisions that occurred as part of Phase I. In actuality,
Phase I and 11 have operated concurrently and have been somewhat reconceptualized. While
certain assessment aspects of SF 70 have been operating according to schedule, this
comprehensive accountability framework is being used to guide the development of all
accountability components, but presents a fairly detailed sketch of the school accountability
system. Again, we return to this in more detail in subsequent sections of the report. For now, we
summarize key aspects of the school accountability provisions as outlined in SF 70.
e Achievement (status)—reading as measured by PAWS in grades 3-8, and 11
e College readiness—percentage of students meeting/exceeding college readiness
benchmarks in English, reading, mathematics, and science in the EXPLORE and ACT
e Growth/Improvement—SF 70 specifies a fairly unique approach to measuring
improvement of performance of WY schools. The law directed WDE to compute “a
combined school score for each core indicator” and measure improvement from year to
year, beginning with school year 2011-2012. Since these indicators are computed at the
aggregate level, it is more appropriate to call these “improvement” indicators rather than
growth, which is often focused at the individual student level. The SF 70 improvement
model requires the use of 2010-2011 as the baseline year and then to compare the

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012 12



subsequent results such that “positive progress” means that the school achieved a “better
score than the year before,” if there was no change from the prior year, the school would
be considered “performance level unchanged,” and if the “score declined” from the prior
year, it would be called “negative progress.” Through the work of the interim, the Select
Committee and the Advisory Committee are recommending a different and more
sensitive approach to measuring improvement that is based on evaluating the growth of
each individual student. This will be discussed in considerable detail in subsequent
sections of this report.

SF 70 directed the Select Committee to design a system of measuring teacher and administrator
effectiveness including establishing components of effective teacher and leading. The legislation
called for a system to replace the performance evaluation currently in place and to have such a
system consider consequences and incentives for improved performance.

Longitudinal data systems and reporting

The legislation directed the WDE to adopt rules and regulations [note: only the SBE can adopt
rules] for establishing a system of reporting to include longitudinal data on all aspects of the
statewide education accountability system. Importantly, SF 70 directs WDE to create student-
teacher links so that assessment results can appropriately and fairly be linked to educators of
record.

Policies, consequences, and supports

Senate File 70 directs the SBE to consider consequences, starting in 2013-2014, for failure to
meet school accountability targets that focus on the development of improvement plans and then
escalate to varying levels of required technical assistance. The law wanted SBE to describe time
schedules within which underperforming schools should reasonably be expected to achieve
improvement targets. SF 70 also directed the SBE to consider failure to meet target
accountability targets in the accreditation process

In terms of educator accountability, SF 70 directed the Select Committee to review merit pay
methodologies related to teacher performance measures, including merit-based salary schedules,
bonuses, incentive pay and differential staffing practices. This is not a requirement, but is a
recommendation for the SBE to consider such consequences/rewards as part of the educator
effectiveness system.

The legislation recognized important systematic policy issues that could interact with having SF
70 fulfill its intended goals. First, it authorized the Select Committee to review and make
recommendations regarding school district board of trustees training needs. This is an important
issue considering that the provisions of SF 70 accountability systems will have significant
implications for local boards of education. Finally, SF 70 directed the Select Committee to
review the likely effect of current laws on student performance. In other words, if there were
existing statutes that might hinder the implementation of one of the accountability systems
described herein or otherwise negatively influencing student achievement, the Select Committee
should identify and make recommendations to ameliorate potential statutory conflicts.

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012 13



SECTION II: CONCEPTUAL FOUNDATIONS

Goals and Intended Outcomes

The assessment and accountability system design must be guided by the goals and intended
outcomes of the system. These goal statements, which are essentially making explicit the
legislative intent, also serve as a foundation for the evaluation of the validity of the policy and
associated accountability system. Therefore, a critical activity of both the Select and Advisory
Committees was to clearly articulate and come to agree on these goals.

The Select Committee was clear that they wanted to see Wyoming’s educational system become
recognized as a national educational leader among states. The feeling among committee
members, supported by data from national assessments, was that while Wyoming’s students
perform above average on national comparisons, they are still in the middle of the pack. Of
course, defining what is meant by a “top educational state” is not easy. States rank order
differently on any variety of indicators such as NAEP, ACT, AP, graduation, teacher quality, and
countless others. In fact, states often rank order differently on different components of NAEP
such as fourth grade reading and eighth grade math, for example. ACT and SAT scores are
notoriously tricky to use as indicators of statewide performance, because even if Wyoming were
to mandate that all 11™ grade students participate in the ACT, it would not be a fair comparison
with states that have voluntary participation. There is a notable negative relationship between
average state ACT/SAT scores and participation rate, such that the higher participation rates are
associated with lower average scores. Therefore, it makes most sense to use fourth and eighth
grade state NAEP results as one set of indicators for general educational achievement. Of
course, this does not include high school and so, in spite of earlier cautions about using ACT as
an indicator, Wyoming’s performance could be compared against the other five or six states
(e.g., CO, IL, KY, and UT soon) that require census ACT testing of 11th grade students.

Another major goal for Wyoming education expressed by both the Advisory and Select
committees was to improve overall levels of student achievement such that all students leave
Wyoming schools “college or career ready.” Of course, there is not universal agreement of
what is meant by this term, and both committees recognized the need to further define the
separate components of this phrase (college and career). But, both committees clearly expressed
the desire to ensure that all Wyoming students leave high school with legitimate options for a
career or postsecondary opportunities. The Select committee was particularly insistent that
career readiness did not get buried in the rush to define college readiness, because for Wyoming
both college and career readiness were equally valued.

If overall achievement rates are going to increase such that all students leave Wyoming schools
ready for college or careers, Select and Advisory Committee members recognized that a more
immediate goal would be to increase the rates at which Wyoming students learn in each
academic year. This is essentially a goal that focuses on improving the academic growth that
individual students make from year to year in Wyoming schools. Indicators related to this goal
can be evaluated using a variety of student longitudinal growth models, which are discussed later
in this report.

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012 14



An important equity goal for Wyoming’s educational system is to reduce and eventually
minimize gaps in achievement among students from historically underperforming student
groups. Therefore, a comprehensive accountability system for Wyoming should hold schools
accountable for the performance of these groups of students and efforts to reduce such gaps in
performance. Additionally, one member of the Select Committee suggested that given the
attempts to equalize funding across the state, according to need, we must eliminate the
performance gap among school districts. While schools and districts would not be held be
accountable for these reductions in gaps among districts, it would be an important goal for the
state system as a whole.

While it might go without saying, if all if the goals mentioned above are realized, then the
quality of teaching and leading in Wyoming schools would have to improve. The two
committees recognized the importance of teacher and leader quality as a goal, in and of itself,
and declared this to be an important goal of the system in its own right. In thinking through a
theory of action (discussed below), improving teaching and leading as a part of both the school
and educator accountability systems is a critical stepping stone on the way to improving student
learning. It seems obvious that any accountability system should focus on improving the quality
of educators in the system, but far too often such systems establish perverse incentives that can
actually lead to a decline in educator effectiveness. As part of the coherence principle
underlying the development of this comprehensive accountability system, it is critical that the
system lead to the positive development of teachers and leaders in Wyoming.

Wyoming lawmakers are proud of the support they have provided to public education, especially
over the last 15 years. This is in noticeable contrast to the decimated budgets of public education
in many states around the country. On the other hand, as good stewards for the public trust,
these same lawmakers are responsible, to the extent they can, for ensuring that public money is
well spent. To this end, the Select Committee has stated an efficiency goal for Wyoming
education such that the state is getting an appropriate “bang for its buck.” This should not be
read as a desire to scale back the relatively strong funding support experienced by Wyoming
schools, rather this goal is simply stating a desire to make sure that all funds allocated for
Wyoming to education contribute to the goals outlined above and throughout this document.

The legislature, through the Select Committee, has indicated a willingness to spend what it
would take to realize these goals, but as responsible lawmakers, would prefer not to spend more
than necessary.

Finally, if most or hopefully all of these are realized, the committees would hope to see the
credibility of and support for Wyoming public education increase among members of the
public. This is important for many reasons, but especially if the Wyoming legislature continues
its strong support of education, it will be vital that the public recognizes and appreciates the
value of this support. Public education is almost always well supported by parents or guardians
with students still in school, but as the proportion of the public in this category has shrunk from a
high of almost one-third down to less than a quarter of the voting public, it becomes critical that
support for education increases its base. As evidence emerges from other states and international
locations about the importance of a high quality public education system (actually a P-16 system)
for attracting and sustaining business, the policy leaders on both committees recognize that if the

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012 15



educational system improves to the point where it helps improve the business and economic
climate, broad-based public support for education will undoubtedly improve.

Guiding Principles

In addition the goals and intended outcomes, accountability system designs benefit by clarity of
the key principles used to guide such designs. This comprehensive accountability framework
tried to hold true to the following key principles:
e Instructional Core
Coherence
Equity
Transparency
Support and Improvement
State-Local Partnership
Shared Responsibilities

Instructional Core

One of the key design principles in our work has been the “Instructional Core.” The
instructional core® is a set of principles articulated by Richard Elmore and his colleagues that
focuses on the relationship among the students, teachers, and meaningful content (and skills). To
quote from City, et al (2003):

There are only three ways to improve student learning at scale:

You can raise the level of the content that students are taught. You can increase

the skill and knowledge that teachers bring to the teaching of that content. And

you can increase the level of students’ active learning of the content. That’s it.

Everything else is incidental. That is, everything that’s not in the instructional

core can only affect student learning and performance by, in some way,

influencing what goes on inside the core. Schools don’t improve through political

and managerial incantation; they improve through the complex and demanding

work of teaching and learning (p. 24).
This is a critical principle and challenges one to think hard about how best to honor this dynamic
in the context of designing a large scale accountability system. Nevertheless, the Advisory
Committee felt that it was important to maintain a focus on the instructional core throughout the
design deliberations.

Coherence

The systems, particularly the school and educator accountability systems must incentivize
common and mutually supportive behaviors among teachers and leaders in schools. Wyoming,
as a result of SF 70, has a unique opportunity to design school, educator, and student
accountability systems all within a short time frame. This will allow Wyoming to develop
mutually reinforcing and coherent systems, but this is easier said than done. There are many
ways to get tripped up on the way to coherence and the current and subsequent design

! City, E. A., Elmore, R. F., Fiarman, S. E, & Teitel, L. (2003). Instructional rounds in education: A network
approach to improving teaching and learning. Cambridge, MA: Harvard Educational Press. [see particularly, chapter
1: The Instructional Core].

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012 16



committees need to continually check design systems within any one of the systems against the
likely unintended negative consequences that could occur within that system as well as within
the other systems. For example, an indicator for the school accountability system is improved
student achievement in reading and mathematics, but if the educator evaluation system was
designed such that there was a “zero sum game” where only half or so of the educators in a
building could be rated high on the growth indicator, the two systems would be in direct conflict
because educators would not have an incentive to work together to improve the performance of
the overall school.

Equity

To match the intended outcome of improving the equality of educational opportunities for all
Wyoming students, the Advisory Committee recognized the importance of designing the
accountability system to support the reduction in gaps of performance/growth for specific groups
and individual students. This would play out in terms of a design principle by ensuring that key
indicators in the system are disaggregated by specific groups of students, that the accountability
metrics are not designed to mask underperforming groups, and the system incentivizes behaviors
to promote improved performance of all students in the system.

Transparency

Unfortunately a very simple accountability system is rarely fair and an extremely fair system is
rarely simple. Nevertheless, the Advisory Committee urged that the design of the system must
be only as complicated as necessary to support the major goals and guiding principles. No
matter how complex, the workings of the system should be as transparent as possible such that
anyone using the same data set and with appropriate technical understanding could replicate the
analyses for any school or the state as a whole. Further, the State must communicate the design
and results of the system in ways that can promote an accurate understanding of the system for as
many stakeholders as possible.

Support and Improvement

An accountability system can be designed to rate schools or teachers according to some criteria.
If that is all that occurred, the accountability would not fulfill the intended goals and outcomes
described above. Both the Select and Advisory Committees were clear that the systems should
be designed to maximize opportunities to support and improve schools’ and educators’
performance rather than focus on punitive sanctions. In fact, both groups recognized that it made
little differences regarding the accuracy with which the system could label or rank schools, if
there was not a parallel system of support, interventions and capacity building also in place. This
is discussed in considerable detail later in this document.

State-Local Partnership

Given the strong local control culture in Wyoming and to ensure that districts are encouraged to
play their critical role in improving and supporting schools, the systems will be designed to
incorporate district expertise and capacity in the accountability design. If the system is to
function as intended and realize the goals set forth herein, this cannot be seen solely as a top-
down state compliance mandate. Rather, districts and schools will have to be engaged and
included as partners in key aspects of the design, implementation, and support associated with

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012 17



the various accountability initiatives if the system will lead to improved outcomes for Wyoming
students.

Shared Responsibility

The Advisory Committee recognizes and wants to make clear that the issue of improving
Wyoming education is not solely a function of educators or even educational policy makers.
Rather, the committee was emphatic that this needs to be a shared responsibility among parents,
students, communities, and all policy makers. We use a few examples to illustrate this critical
issue. If the school accountability system is going hold high schools accountable for ensuring
that its student graduate, the state legislature could support this goal by requiring that students
not be eligible to legally drop out of school at least until their 18™ birthday. At least one state
that has increased the dropout age from 16 to 18 years has seen a noticeable reduction in the
dropout rate. A more exaggerated example can be seen in the discrepancy between the penalties
for having a truant child compared with getting a ticket for having a dog running at large. A
more substantial example involves the investment that would be required if the State was to
seriously attempt to address the gap in educational opportunities that are present before students
even enter kindergarten. To fully address this issue with universal, high-quality day care and
preschool, appropriate nutrition and medical care, along with a host of other opportunities would
require a significant policy and fiscal commitment. There is certainly a wealth of evidence to
suggest such investments in early childhood health and education is associated with significant
long term benefits to both individuals and society. These are just a few examples of how some
significant educational challenges can be addressed by both within school initiatives and external
policy support.

Theory of Action

A theory of action (TOA) is a useful tool for designing for accountability systems. A TOA
explicates the goals of the system, clarifies assumptions supporting or constraining the system,
and most importantly explicates the mechanisms by which the various components work together
that describe how the system will bring about the desired results. Several researchers (e.g.,
Bennett, 2010; Marion & Perie, 2009) have employed theories of action as a way to help states
and others both design and evaluate complex accountability and assessment systems. A theory
of action, drawn from the evaluation literature (e.g., Wholey, 1979), is intended to portray what
is essentially a logic or causal model that describes how programs are intended to work. A
theory of action lays out the inputs or antecedent conditions, proximal, intermediate and distal
outcomes, and importantly describes the mechanisms or processes that specify the logic by
which these components are sensibly related.

The general structure for a theory of action is seen below in Figure 1. Following this schematic,
we present the foundational principles for the entire system. We then outline the various
components of the theory of action for the school accountability systems. Subsequent reports in
Phase 2 should provide a theory of action of the educator and student accountability system.

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012 18



Figure 1. Basic Structure of a Theory of Action.

Assumptions

Antecedents

BINE]

Proximal Indicators
Indicators (Intended
Outcomes)

or

Activities Activities
and and Consequences
Mechanisms Mechanisms

Major Goals (Intended Outcomes) of the System

1.

NoOokowd

Improve overall levels of student achievement such that all students leave Wyoming
schools “college or career ready.”

Increase the rates at which Wyoming students learn in each academic year (growth).
Reduce and eliminate gaps in achievement and especially growth for key subgroups.
Improve teacher and leader quality in Wyoming.

Increase public credibility and support for Wyoming public education.

Increase the “efficiency” of schooling in Wyoming.

Have Wyoming viewed as a national education leader among states.

Antecedents

Schools are funded at levels adequate to support high levels of student achievement.
The learning targets (standards) are clear and support curriculum and instruction.
Educators (teachers & leaders) have the knowledge and skills necessary to improve
student learning.

The state summative assessments in ELA and mathematics provide technically defensible

student scores for reporting a “status” (proficiency) measure related to the state content

standards.

The state summative assessments in ELA and mathematics provide technically defensible

student scores for calculating the growth in student performance across consecutive
school years. The school accountability system supports a collective vision of school
improvement and responsibility.

Key stakeholders agree that the school accountability system represents a broad set of

indicators necessary for characterizing school quality, while focusing on those indicators

most likely to leverage positive change.

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012

19



7. Schools and districts have the capacity to support the data collection and improvement
efforts related to school accountability.

8. WADE has the capacity to implement and support the school accountability system
including working with schools to improve their performance over time.

Proximal indicators (numbers) and mechanisms (bullets)

1. Measuring and reporting student longitudinal growth provides information that educators
use to judge the quality (effectiveness) of educational programs.

> Educators and other stakeholders will use this information to fine-tune, alter,
and/or eliminate specific programs/interventions to focus on those with the
greatest likelihood of producing gains in student learning.

» Having access to high guality information on student progress will allow
educators to more easily develop cultures of data use for making educational
decisions.

2. Measuring and reporting student longitudinal growth provides information for students,
parents, and other key stakeholders to more accurately judge the progress each student is
making for each school year.

» Parents and others will advocate for more effective educational programs and
interventions for their students.

» Students will receive information that will enable them to better monitor their
OWnN progress.

3. District-selected interim assessments fully aligned to WY standards and/or CCSS and
administered at least multiple times throughout the school year are used to monitor
student learning throughout the school year.

> Teachers and others use the interim assessment results to monitor and adjust the
instructional programs for students.

Intermediate indicators (numbers) and mechanisms (bullets)

1. Clear and actionable assessment/accountability reports accurately portray schools in
terms of achievement (status), student longitudinal growth, and other key indicators (e.qg.,
graduation rates, college/career readiness).

> Data are used to improve the quality of interventions and programs at Wyoming
schools.

» The assessment system, accountability calculations, and reporting systems
provide information for school leaders to support and improve the quality of
teaching.

2. The data and decisions from the school accountability system contribute to local educator
evaluation systems in ways that allow excellence to be recognized and collaboration is
encouraged.

Distal indicators

1. The average teacher and leader quality statewide improves and the variance at the lower
ends of quality is reduced.

2. There is an increase in high quality applicants for open teaching positions.

3. Students grow at rates that lead to increased levels of college and career readiness
compared to current rates.

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012 20



4. Student achievement will improve statewide as evidenced by increases on state
assessments, NAEP, and related assessments.

Consequences (intended and unintended)

1. The system is designed in such a way as to maximize the likelihood of the distal
indicators being fulfilled.

2. Schools that do not meet prescribed state accountability standards are subject to
increasing levels of actions including filing school improvement plans, working with a
“distinguished educator,” replacing the school leader, and/or other consequences as
determined by the State School Board.

3. Schools that excel on school accountability indicators may be afforded certain flexibility
such as freedom from certain WDE or other requirements.

4. The accountability system does not lead to a narrowing of the curriculum or other
meaningful opportunities for students.

5. The accountability system does not lead to Wyoming teachers leaving the state for other
teaching opportunities

We note that there is a strong coherence between “Theory of Improvement” embedded in
the Wyoming Funding and the theory of action presented here as well as in the
accountability framework designed to create incentives for continuous improvement of
student performance in Wyoming. The “Theory of Improvement” in the Wyoming
Funding system stresses the foundational point that core instruction is the prime route to
improved student performance. In addition the Theory adds several elements that
together should operate to improve instructional practice. These include: very small
class sizes; high teacher salaries; school-based instructional coaches; and all the resources
needed for an ongoing professional development system. In addition, the Theory of
Improvement embedded in the Wyoming Funding system includes multiple resources for
both Tier 2 and Tier 3 (in a Response to Intervention model) extra help for students
struggling to meet performance standards. These include: adequate numbers of
professional staff for one-to-one as well as small group tutoring and other interventions;
extended day programs; summer programs; and one hundred percent reimbursement for
all special education costs.

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012 21



SECTION I1l: THE MULTIPLE ACCOUNTABILITY INITIATIVES

This section of the report presents information and recommendations for developing school,
educator, and student accountability system. As noted earlier, we provide considerably more
details on the development of and recommendations for the school accountability system since
that has been the focus of the Phase | efforts. We then outline key considerations and
recommendations for processes to develop educator and student accountability systems. As
discussed above, a key principle guiding the development of this section of the report was an
intention to create a coherent approach to educational accountability such that the important
goals set forth earlier might best be achieved.

As part of development a comprehensive accountability and support system, the Advisory
Committee worked from a theory of action focused on continuous improvement of the system.
As part of these discussions, the committee recommended clarifying the differences among data
collection, reporting, and accountability and supported an approach whereby more data were
collected and reported than might be used as accountability indicators. The intent is not to create
a “data dump,” but to collect information on targeted areas that could be useful to schools for
improving the performance on the accountability indicators. For example, graduation rate will
be a key indicator for the school accountability system, but the advisory committee
recommended collecting data and reporting results on indicators such a 9" grade credit
accumulation because of its strong relationship to dropping out of school. The reader may
question why we are not including 9™ credit accumulation in the accountability system if it is
such a good indicator, but the committee recognized quickly the highly corruptible nature of
such an indicator if used for high stakes accountability.

School Accountability Framework
Introduction

In this section we describe the overall framework for the school accountability system, possible
indicators that will likely comprise the core components addressed in the school accountability
system, and some initial thoughts about how the various indicators may be combined to create
overall determinations. This will be followed in subsequent sections by a more in-depth
treatment of design issues.

Indicators

The building blocks of an accountability system are the indicators or measures that produce
information about school performance. Indicators serve at least two critical functions in an
accountability system. First, the selected measures signal and, hopefully, promote the valued
behaviors for school leaders and educators. For example, if it is desirable to increase
achievement in mathematics, including performance on mathematics assessments should
encourage schools to focus on mathematics instruction. In this manner, the identified indicators
serve as a policy lever to promote desired actions. It should be clear, then, that the identification
of indicators must be closely linked with the theory of action for the accountability system.
Second, indicators contribute to overall measures or classifications of school performance.
Accordingly, measures should be selected that capture an important component of school quality

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012 22



linked to the intended use. For example, if the desire is to identify schools that are “failing’ and
should be considered for restructuring, indicators must be selected that provide information well-
suited to differentiate and classify schools that meet minimum performance expectations from
those that do not.

Naturally, to the extent that indictors are used to influence high-stakes accountability outcomes,
they must be reliable and trustworthy. There will almost certainly be dimensions of school
quality that are important to capture but are too variable or corruptible to be used for high-stakes
purposes. For example, policy makers may agree that “parent engagement’ is an important
dimension of school quality, but in the absence of a suitably meaningful and standardized
method for measuring this component, it would be unwise to include the indicator for high-
stakes decisions. This is not to suggest that schools should not attempt to measure or even, in
some circumstances, publicly report outcomes. Rather, our caveat pertains to use of ‘soft’
measures in high-stakes decision making.

In selecting and defining indicators there are a number of additional considerations that should
be carefully weighed. We can regard these considerations as being related to 1) the number of
indicators 2) type of information produced and 3) unit of analysis. With respect to the number
of indicators, it is certainly desirable to include varied information to better understand and
account for the many factors that define school effectiveness. Generally speaking, the inclusion
of multiple measures bolsters the validity of the outcomes. On the other hand, too many
elements may make the model complicated to understand and burdensome to implement. Taken
to the extreme, such an approach could be regarded as simply a “‘data dump’ where it is difficult
to detect the signal through the noise. There is a real risk that by including too much, policy
makers will lose sight of what is most important. For this reason, we recommend that the system
be built around indicators that reflect the most prominent values in Wyoming’s theory of action.

The second consideration is related to the measure or type of information one elicits from the
indicators. For example, when considering assessment results one might use a scale score or
classification with respect to an identified standard (e.g. basic, proficient, advanced) which can
be aggregated and reported as ‘percent proficient.” The latter approach carries the advantage of
being straightforward and easy to interpret. However this masks degrees of difference within
performance levels, which is conveyed with a scale score. Similarly, when working with
outcome measures, such as graduation, one can produce a broad measure, such as graduation
rate, which simply reports the percentage of students in a cohort who achieved this outcome in a
set period of time. Alternately, a more granular approach to including outcome indicators can be
adopted that provides detailed information, but may add to the complexity of the system.

Finally, it is important to consider the unit of analysis for the selected indicators. Critically,
decisions about unit of analysis should match the goals and priorities of the system. Because an
important outcome is to ensure equity of opportunity and achievement, it is essential to track
indicators for groups of students for whom equity concerns are most important (e.g. students
with disabilities, English language learners, economically disadvantaged students etc.). For
example, consider test performance as an indicator. This can be reported as percent proficient
and aggregated to the subgroup, grade, school, district, or state level (or some combination
thereof). If the decision is to report for relatively small units, such as subgroups within schools,

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012 23



there must be a high degree of confidence that the student information system supports this and
an understanding that some units may be very small and data may be highly variable and ill-
suited to support inferences. Finally, the sheer volume of information produced will make the
design of clear, coherent reports more challenging. On the other hand, if the system is based on
a higher level of analysis, this will likely be more straightforward to operationalize and report
and better suited to support inferences. However, this higher level of aggregation may mask
important information for policy makers.

In selecting and defining indicators, the overall goal is to create a balanced model that is suitably
‘granular’ to provide specific actionable information but sufficiently robust to support
meaningful claims about school performance. Additionally, the model should be simple and
transparent enough to be easily understood and implemented.

Based on the requirements of SF 70 and the feedback received from the Select and Advisory
committees, we propose the following indicator categories.

A. Achievement — How do students perform on state assessments designed to measure
proficiency on Wyoming state standards?

B. Growth — Are students demonstrating acceptable progress with respect to performance on
state standards?

C. Readiness — Do students graduate college and career ready?

D. Equity — Are the lowest performing students attaining proficiency or demonstrating
acceptable progress toward proficiency?

E. Inclusion — Are all students participating in the accountability system?

In the sections that follow, suggestions for identifying specific indicators to be included as well
as advice for including these components in the accountability system are presented. For added
clarity, design illustrations are presented to aid in conceptualizing alternatives. However, these
illustrations should not be regarded as exhaustive or proscriptive, rather they are intended to help
bring shape to ideas in order to better evaluate options to promote intended policy objectives.

Achievement

Achievement refers to indicators that provide information about student academic performance
with respect to Wyoming state standards. At a minimum, Senate File 70 proscribes that the
system address “core indicators of student performance” to include reading as measured by
PAWS - grades 3-8, and 11. In addition to reading, we recommend inclusion of PAWS
mathematics results in the accountability system.

The inclusion of science and writing was a matter of some debate in the Advisory Committee
meetings. While committee members endorsed the importance of promoting achievement in
science and writing there was some concern that the current assessments were not well suited to
promote the desired outcomes and should have little to no influence in the accountability model.
However, the Select Committee was clear that if the goal is to promote science and writing
instruction, these two subjects must be included in the model.

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012 24



Furthermore, an “alternate assessment” for the students with the most significant cognitive
disabilities must be included (according to the Individuals with Disabilities Act of 1997) in each
grade/ content area for which a general assessment is incorporated in the achievement
calculation. This ensures that schools are accountable for the performance of all students.

Achievement Design Illustrations

As noted earlier, there are number of options for how to include achievement information in
accountability systems. A common alternative is to use percent of students meeting a target
performance standard — typically proficiency or level 3. While this measure is fairly course, it is
conceptually clear to stake holders and prioritizes a valued outcome.

Given that there are multiple grades and content areas, one way to accomplish this is to simply
compute the ratio of all proficient students across all grades and content areas at the school, and
divide this by all examinees as depicted in Table 1.

Table 1. Illustration of Combined Proficiency Calculation.

Number of Number Percent Math
Math 200 Math 160 . 80% Total
- - Proficient .
Examinees Proficient Proficient 81 5%
Number of Number Percent 70
Reading | 205 | Reading | 170 Reading 83% (330/405)
Examinees Proficient Proficient

The resulting percentage can then be adjusted by a factor to determine the overall weight or
influenced in the model. For example, if proficiency is intended to be expressed on a scale from
0 to 300, multiplying the result from Table 1 (.815) by 300 will produce a metric that ranges
from 0 (no students proficient) to 300 (all students proficient). In the example depicted in Table
1 a school would receive 245 of 300 points.

There are a number of possible variations on this approach. One variation is to weight one
content area test more or less than another. For example, if science were included and one
desired that science results account for only 20% of the outcome, math and reading could each
be adjusted to contribute 35% each to the overall outcome, with 10% of the weight coming from
writing and the remaining influence (20%) would come from science.

Another variation is to create a performance index such that schools get some “credit’ for
students in level 2 — rather than an ‘“all-or-nothing’ measure. This can be accomplished by
creating a ratio such that student scoring at levels 2, 3, 4 on the state assessment and those
scoring at levels 3 and 4 only are divided by all examinees. This figure would be multiplied by
150 (half of the maximum value of the scale) to get a total score out of 300. By so doing,
schools essentially receive half of a credit for students who score at the basic level and a full
credit for students who score at the proficient or advanced level (see Table 2).

Table 2Table 2: Hlustration of Index with 'Partial Credit' for Basic Performance

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012 25




Performance N Number Number Proficient
Level Basic or Calculation Result
or Above
Above
BeI(_)W Basic 40 160 + 105
Proficient 85 160 105 200 200
Advanced 20
Total 200
Growth

The achievement category is based on “status’ indicators, which show how students are
performing relative to a criterion (proficiency) at a single point in time. However, it is also
important to include growth, which measures change in performance for the same student or
cohort of students over time. Examining the combination of growth and status performance for
schools provides a much richer picture of school quality than either component in isolation.

Figure 2 shows 4 possible outcomes for schools taking into account both status and growth.
Naturally, the most prized result is for schools to be in the top right quadrant, where most or all
students are proficient on state tests and all students are growing at a high rate. The converse of
this is shown in the bottom left quadrant in which relatively low percentages of students are
proficient and the growth rate is also low — an obviously undesirable outcome. Including
growth also helps identify and give credit to schools in which proficiency may be low but
students are growing at an exceptionally high rate (bottom right quadrant). On the other hand,
it’s important to understand which schools have traditionally high performing students, but show
relatively low or no growth (top left quadrant). This may describe a school with affluent,
historically high achieving students who are languishing.

Figure 2: Status and Growth Combinations

Status/ Growth Combinations

High Status
High/Low | High/High
Low/Low Low/High
Low Status
Low High
Growth " Growth

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012 26




There are many promising approaches to measuring and including growth in education
accountability systems. Due to the scope and complexity of this issue, we address this topic
separately in the next section of this document.

Readiness

In an accountability system that prioritizes college and career readiness it is important to include
indicators that signal that a student is prepared to be successful in college or a career or is ‘on-
track’ to meet this expectation. There are numerous potential indicators for this category,
particularly when one considers that ‘readiness’ is a multi-faceted dimension that goes beyond
academic performance and includes such characteristics as academic behaviors. David Conley
(2005) and his colleagues at the University of Oregon have provided a powerful framework for
thinking about college readiness. This framework is depicted in the following graphic and
described below.

v Key Cognitive Strategies are also known as “habits of mind” and include skills such as
inquisitiveness, persistence, and intellectual openness.

v" Key Content Knowledge is broken into overarching types of knowledge such writing and
the ability to conduct research and core academic knowledge that includes much of the
focus of high school learning, such a mathematics, language arts, science, and social
studies.

v Academic Behaviors are critically important skills for independent learners to possess
and include such things as self awareness, meta-cognitive, and self-regulation.

v’ Contextual Skills are often referred to as “college knowledge” and include knowing how
to navigate oneself around college system and deal with such things as financial aid,
applications, enrollment, and other details that can easily sideline otherwise “ready”
students.

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012 27



This invites consideration of ‘non-traditional’ measures which can provide a much broader view
of readiness, but also presents challenges related to lack of standardization or corruptibility of
measures. For this reason, we suggest distinguishing between current standardized readiness
measures that are suitable for contributing to school accountability classifications versus those
measures for which valid and reliable data are not yet available that should be reported but not
used for high-stakes decision making at this time. The types of measures that fit this latter
category include many of the following, among other potential indicators, and the Advisory
committee recommends that Wyoming explore the possibility of collecting and reporting the
results for several of these indicators as data become available and are deemed trustworthy.
Further, the committee endorses including such indicators in the reporting system before they are
used in an accountability context.

e Course completion/ success
o Enrollment and/or performance in AP/IB or other ‘advanced’ courses
o Participation in joint-enrollment or other post secondary courses at the secondary
level
e Qualitative data (e.g. survey data of attitudes, academic habits etc.)
e Attainment of career/ industry certifications
e Achievement of post-secondary outcomes
o Enrollment in credit bearing courses
o Attainment of qualifying career, enrollment in the military etc.

While these are not common to school accountability models and may be difficult to track, it can
be argued that they provide valuable information to evaluate the fundamental claim that students
are on track to or have exited high school ready for college and/or the workforce. It should be
noted that these are preliminary ideas discussed by the Advisory Committee and we suggest
additional exploration with higher education and workforce leaders to better understand what is
feasible (e.g. data capabilities) and appropriate to include.

Alternatively, we suggest two categories of indicators that we believe are promising for inclusion
in accountability determinations: academic performance and graduation rate.

Academic performance refers to achievement on tests that are explicitly linked to college or
career readiness. The ACT suite, as it is typically called, includes the following three
assessments. Both the EXPLORE and ACT are specifically cited in SF70.

e EXPLORE: measure of progress toward college readiness, typically administered in
grade 9 (but reflects performance through grade 8).

e PLAN: measure of progress toward college readiness, typically administered in grade 10
(but reflects performance through grade 9).

e ACT: measure of attainment of knowledge and skills associated with college readiness,
typically administered in grade 11.

Graduation rate provides an indication of student outcomes at the completion of high school.
Naturally, the most desirable outcome is for students to graduate on-time with a diploma that

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012 28



certifies the student is ready to succeed in college or the workforce. Other less desirable
outcomes are also possible such as a GED or certificate of attendance.

Readiness Design Illustration

A straightforward approach for including EXPLORE, PLAN, and ACT scores in the
accountability system could correspond to the method previously described for achievement (i.e.
PAWS) indicators. However, in lieu of proficiency, the primary criterion becomes the percent of
students meeting an identified readiness benchmark. One simply multiplies the percent of
students meeting the benchmark by the selected maximum value of the category. Another
approach would be to create an index for ACT scores that would be based on key benchmark.
For example, schools could be awarded 50 points for each student scoring at the entry level
benchmark into credit-bearing classes for Wyoming community colleges (e.g., 18), 100 points
for scoring at the national average, 125 for scoring at the important college ready benchmark of
24, and 150 points for students scoring at or above a score of 27 or 28. This is only an example.
The actual benchmark scores and point values should be recommended by the Advisory
Committee after gathering appropriate information from higher education and other stakeholders.
This index could be computed on the ACT composite score, but might be more useful if
computed at the individual test level (math, reading, science, language).

There was some concern that incorporating ACT into the accountability is simply adding another
“status” measure that is correlated with student and school socioeconomic status. The Advisory
Committee was interested in exploring the use of either or both improvement and growth
measures to provide a way for less advantaged schools to do well on this metric. For example,
schools could be evaluated on how much their ACT index or indices change every year of over a
three year period. Similarly, schools could be evaluated on how much student performance
improves as the students move from the EXPLORE to the PLAN and then to the ACT. This
could be the fairest measure of high schools’ contribution to readiness, since it takes into account
where students start in this domain.

While graduation rate can be similarly incorporated into the accountability system, it may

desirable to consider multiple levels of performance. To accomplish this, an index can be
created that awards points in proportion to the value of the outcome in year 4 as illustrated in

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012 29



Table 3. The score for this component is simply is the average of all student outcomes for the
high school.

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012

30



Table 3: Example of Graduation Index

Student Result Points

Diploma with completion of required 100
college/ career ready course work

Other diploma 85
GED 50
Continued enrollment (no outcome) 25
Certificate of attendance 25
Dropout 0

The data in the table are illustrative only, the actual categories and point values would be
determined based on Wyoming’s goals and policy priorities. Importantly, both the categories
and values should be defined by bringing together a broad-based group of Wyoming education
leaders and stakeholders to define priorities.

One additional factor to consider is that students may graduate in more than four years. While
this is less favorable, there may be important reasons to account for and incentivize this result in
an accountability model. One approach to account for this is to award incentive or bonus points
for outcomes in subsequent years. For example, a student who maintains enrollment in year four
but does not earn an outcome receives the corresponding points in the index (25). If the
following year the student earns a GED they get a portion of these points (e.g. 10%) added to the
index value for their school. The incentive points are then averaged for all students with delayed
outcomes and added as a ‘bonus’ to the index.

Equity
Another category that should be addressed in a comprehensive accountability system is the
extent to which all groups of students are achieving success. In the best case, not only will

schools improve achievement overall, but they will also erase what are often persistent and
sizeable gaps in performance between highest and lowest performing student groups.

There are at least two key questions to consider in evaluating alternatives for equity measures.

1. Which group(s) should be the primary focus for equity?
2. What equity outcomes are most important to promote?

Equity groups can be defined based on one more demographic factors (e.g. ethnic group,
economically disadvantaged status, students with disabilities). Or, it is possible to combine
multiple groups in a single subgroup. By so doing, schools that otherwise would have too few
students in any one group to produce a determination will be included in equity outcomes.
Additionally, the larger group size will produce more stable results.

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012 31



Another way to define focal groups for equity, which we believe is the most promising
alternative, is to determine membership based on performance as opposed to demographic
factors. For example, the group is defined as students who fail to meet proficiency on state tests.
This approach ensures that schools focus on improving outcomes for all students who are low
performing.

A second consideration is determining the equity outcomes that should be promoted in the
accountability system. In keeping with the values inherent in SF70 and expressed by the
Advisory committee, we propose that the expectation for students below proficient is to
demonstrate satisfactory academic progress or growth to proficiency. Specifically, we
recommend producing a separate growth measure for non-proficient students that is
meaningfully linked to attaining or maintain proficiency. This will exert substantial influence on
the results for schools and explicitly communicate progress of low performing students, rather
than masking outcomes in summary data. Moreover, this will reward schools making the most
progress with low performing students and penalize schools making the least progress. In the
subsequent section on growth, we will provide more details regarding this proposed approach.

Inclusion

Finally, schools must be accountable for including all students in accountability determinations.
This helps insure that results are not manipulated by excluding low performing students. This
can be addressed in a straightforward manner by reporting participation rates for all indicators
and setting a very high minimum threshold, such as 95%. However, it is reasonable to include
results in performance determinations for only those students who were present at the school for
the full academic year. These aspects are typically handled in the ‘business rules’ for
operationalizing the system, which is otherwise beyond the scope of this document.

Growth
In this section we provide an in-depth discussion of using growth in a comprehensive

accountability system, with a detailed illustration of design alternatives using Student Growth
Percentiles (SGP).

Growth Alternatives

During the Advisory and Select Committee meetings, members were introduced to and discussed
a variety of approaches to measuring academic growth. Although classification schemes have
limitations (most notably: they are not mutually exclusive), four general categories of growth
were presented to aid in conceptual clarity: categorical, gain score, value-added, and normative.
These approaches and the prominent advantages/ limitations of each are summarized in Table 4.

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012 32



Table 4: Overview of Growth Alternatives

Method Description Answers what Advantages Limitations
guestion?

Categorical | A measure of the Did the student | -Straightforward to -Insensitive to large
change in advance or understand and growth or overly
performance level | decline implement sensitive to small
category from time | performance - Clear relationship to | growth
1totime 2 levels? status -Influenced by test

properties

-Not well suited for
very high and very low
performing students

Gain Score | The difference What is the -Straightforward to -Requires vertical scale
between scores magnitude of | understand and - There are technical
between time 1 and | student implement concerns with vertical
time 2 growth? - Results on a familiar | scales

scale with known - Magnitude of growth

relationship to status cannot be interpreted
the same for all
students

Value- Regression based To what degree | - Accounts for -More complex to

Added approach that was the multiple factors that implement
controls for student’s influence growth -Including background
multiple variables | performance -Provides a definition | variables can be
to determine the higher or lower | of “typical growth’ controversial
difference between | than that of based on similar -No ‘built-in’
actual and similar students relationship to status,
predicted growth students? -Expectations are but growth targets can

adjusted based on account for this
abilities and
characteristics

Normative | Regression based To what degree | -Provides a familiar -More complex to

measure that
conditions current
achievement on
prior achievement
to describe
performance
relative to students
with identical prior
achievement

is performance
higher or lower
than
expectations,
based on
students with
similar
academic
history?

basis to interpret
performance — the
percentile

-Provides a definition
of “typical growth’
-Expectations are
adjusted for students
of various abilities

implement

-No *built-in’
relationship to status,
but growth targets can
account for this

As should be evident, there is no single correct approach to growth or method that stands-out as
the “‘gold-standard.” The decision regarding which analytic approach should be adopted should
first be considered in context to the purpose for measuring growth and the desired model

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012

33




characteristics. In the best case, the selected model should produce outcomes that are reliable
and valid for the intended uses and produce results that are clear and easily understood by
stakeholders. Additionally, the model should be practically feasible to implement and maintain.

Given that alternative analytic approaches and model specifications will produce different
growth results, it stands to reason that a policy-based decision regarding which model is most
suitable for Wyoming should also be based on the extent to which a given model most reliably
detects schools/ classes judged to be high or low performing. In other words, all else being equal
(e.g. equally technically viable and equally operationally manageable) the model that produces
results most in sync with Wyoming’s definition of quality should be prioritized. For example, if
the state heavily values academic growth for the lowest achieving students (e.g. those below
proficient) then a model that is more sensitive to detecting progress for students below standard
should be prioritized.

Growth Expectations

Another critical decision related to implementing growth measures for accountability purposes is
establishing growth standards. More plainly, ‘how much growth is good-enough?’

Broadly, approaches to identifying growth standards can be characterized as either norm-
referenced or criterion-referenced. A norm-referenced approach compares student achievement
to a statistically derived expectation, such as the mean performance for students with similar
prior achievement. Growth that exceeds this predicted value is judged to be ‘good,” whereas a
growth rate below statistical expectation is regarded as “bad.’

Alternatively, criterion-referenced growth standards establish a specific target outcome. For
example, requiring students who are not proficient to grow at a rate such that they achieve
proficiency in a set amount of time is a criterion referenced approach.

Each approach has advantages and limitations. Setting a norm-referenced expectation is useful
for identifying comparably high or low growth. Indeed, it seems intuitively reasonable to
describe valued growth as that which is significantly higher than that of similar students.
However, a limitation is that some students who grow at very high rates relative to their peers
may not achieve proficiency in a reasonable amount of time. A criterion-referenced standard
resolves this potential ‘growth to nowhere’ problem, but raises a new issue: some students may
be so far below standard that even at exceptionally high rates of growth the student will not
achieve proficiency in a reasonable time frame. Particularly when growth is used for
accountability purposes, this can create a condition where some classes or schools are uniformly
disadvantaged. Conversely, very high performing classes or schools could exhibit little or no
growth and meet standard.

An appreciation of this tension between criterion and norm-referenced growth leads to the
conclusion that neither approach alone is adequate. Therefore, we recommend blending the two
in the accountability system. In the subsequent section, we introduce the Student Growth
Percentile (SGP) as a normative measure of growth and then describe how it can be evaluated
with respect to a meaningful criterion.

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012 34



Student Growth Percentiles

The Student Growth Percentile (Betebenner, 2009) is a regression based measure of growth that
works by conditioning current achievement on prior achievement and describing performance
relative to other students with identical prior achievement histories. This provides a familiar
basis to interpret performance — the percentile, which indicates the probability of that outcome
given the student’s starting point. This can be used to gauge whether or not the student’s growth
was atypically high or low as depicted in Figure 3.

Figure 3: Sample Student SGP Report

- Math
Advanced
O Tmea || Achieverment
/ wow O surym
i —— Dfﬂ Growth
FOElEEE = Lewel Percentilas
Hign B6th - 98th
Part Proficient Tupical 35t - gstn
Low 1st - 34th
Unsatisfactory
Grade 4 Grade 5 Grade 6 Grade 7 Mext Year
2006 2007 2008 2009
Scale Score 486 483 518 553 H
Achisvement Level Proficiant Part Proficient Part Proficient Proficient Achievement
Growth Percentile 16 46 a5
Growth Level Low Typical High Growth

In Figure 3, an SGP was calculated for each year this student was enrolled (from grade 4 to grade
5, from grade 5 to grade 6 and from grade 6 to grade 7). At the right of Figure 3, low, typical
and high growth is classified by broad percentile ranges. For this hypothetical student, the
growth percentile of 16 is classified as “low” and as illustrated in Figure 3, the student’s
performance dips from being classified as Level 3 in grade 4 to becoming a Level 2 in 2007. In
subsequent years, this student’s SGP increases to the point that he or she is re-classified as a
proficient student in grade 7.

These individual SGPs can be aggregated to evaluate growth taking place at the classroom,
school, or district level. Since the median is a more appropriate measure to use with percentiles
than the mean, the median growth percentile is typically reported by states using SGPs to
quantify average growth taking place at aggregated levels.

Catch-Up/ Keep-Up Growth

As noted previously, establishing appropriate growth expectations for accountability should
incorporate both norm and criterion referenced standards. The Catch-Up/ Keep-Up (CUKU)
method, initially developed for the Colorado growth model, provides a rich example for how this
can be accomplished?.

2 See http://www.cde.state.co.us/Accountability/Downloads/GrowthStandardsAccountability.pdf for more
information about the application of norm and criterion referenced growth in Colorado.

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012 35


http://www.cde.state.co.us/Accountability/Downloads/GrowthStandardsAccountability.pdf

With the CUKU metric two distinct groups of students are evaluated together: students who
scored below proficient (Level 1 and 2 students) and proficient students (Level 3 and 4 students)
in the prior year. A student is placed in the ‘Catch-Up’ category if his or her prior year score is
below proficient. ‘Keep-Up’ students are those that were proficient or higher in the prior year.

Then, for the current year and three future years an adequate growth percentile (AGP) is
calculated. Each AGP sets the projected growth percentile required for a student to cross the cut
score threshold from below proficient to Level 3 in a given grade for the projected year. Each
student has an individual AGP that applies specifically to him or her.

From the four AGPs, a single value is selected as an overall representation of a student’s needed
growth. For a student in the CU category, the selected target is the lowest AGP value from
among the current or projected year AGPs. This represents the growth a student needs to cross
the threshold into the Proficient category or Level 3 at any point in the current year or the next
three years. For students in the KU category, the selected target is taken from the highest AGP
target value. This means a successful Keep Up student cannot fall below Level 3 in the current
year or next three years.

Figure 4 shows how the selected AGP is derived for a CU student scoring a Level 1 or 2 in 20009.
During the current 2010 school year, the student can either be in Level 1 or 2 or in Level 3 or 4.
In this hypothetical case, the amount of growth needed to move from Level 2 to Level 3
decreases from 2010 to 2013. The minimum value selected to represent the AGP for this student
is the SGP of 61 from year 3. In essence, the AGP value for a given CU student quantifies how
much that student should have progressed in the current year in order to attain proficiency in the
future.

Figure 4: Illustration of the Catch-Up/ Keep-Up Method

2010 SGP=48
A

e I
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

AGP CY=72 = = AGP Y3=61
Level 1 or2 > AGP Y1-68 AGP Y2-64 N

~—_ R
N T~
Student eligi )
Selected Adequate Student Growth Percentile=61:
to Catch Up
Level 1/2 The lowest value among these AGPs (Y3=61) is
selected as the target growth percentile for a student
Level 3/4 eligible to catch up; while the highest value would be

2 possibilities for observed selected if the student was KU eligible.

performance in the current
year

Growth Design Illustration

There are a number of promising alternatives for incorporating SGPs into Wyoming’s
accountability system. The approaches illustrated in this section evaluate the SGPs relative to
proficiency targets based on the Adequate Growth Percentile (AGP) defined in the preceding
section. As explained, an AGP is calculated for every student. For a student who scored below

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012 36



proficient in the prior year, the AGP target represents the growth percentile needed for that
student to become proficient in one of four years considered. For a student who scored
proficient in the prior year, the AGP represents the growth percentile needed to maintain
proficiency across the four years considered.

In the same way that the median is taken across the individual SGP values to evaluate “average”
growth taking place at a school, the median can be taken across the unique AGP target calculated
for every student depending on whether that student is a below proficient or already proficient in
the prior year. Figure 5 illustrates how growth can be evaluated at the school level by using
these two pieces of information (median SGP and median AGP) and then evaluating whether the
median SGP achieved falls under one of four rubric point categories.

Figure 5: Hllustration of Rubric Scores for Schools Meeting or Not Meeting AGP Target

Did the Observed Median SGP
Exceed the Median Target AGP?

YES NO
(rubric score) 200 56-99 70-99 200 (maximum
rubric score)
55-69 150
150 45-55
40-54 100
100 30-44

50 1-29 1-39 50 (minimum rubric score)

In Figure 5, for a given school, the median SGP is first compared to the median AGP. If the
observed median SGP for the school in a given year meets or exceeds the median target (AGP),
then the scoring rubric to the left is used to assign rubric points to the median SGP achieved by
the school. If the school’s median SGP is below the median target AGP, then the scoring rubric
to the right is used to assign rubric points to the median SGP achieved by the school. For
example, if a school had an observed median SGP of 65 and a median target AGP of 45, this
school would be awarded maximum points of 200 on growth as indicated by the scoring rubric to
the left. The rubric cut-scores set for schools that meet or exceed their median AGPs are lower
than the cut-scores for schools that do not meet their median AGPs since these schools are
populated with students who are either largely on track to meeting proficiency or growing at a
sufficient rate to maintain their proficient status. The rubric cut-scores for schools that do not
meet their median AGPs are set at a higher bar, since these schools need to grow at higher rates
in order to move all their students towards proficiency.

Alternatively, a more simplified method for producing school growth scores could be
implemented by removing the AGP component from the school evaluation of growth and using a
single rubric to assign a school growth score®. Simply, the schools median SGP is evaluated
against one rubric to determine the growth score. If this approach is desired, it is important to
identify rubric values and growth ranges that meaningfully correspond with attainment of desired

® However, we would recommend continuing to report AGP at the student level.

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012 37



achievement outcomes. For example, analyses should be conducted to determine what percent
of non-proficient students who score in the highest growth category achieve proficiency in 3 or
fewer years®. Figure 6 depicts an example of this single rubric approach.

Figure 6: Illustration of Single Rubric to Determine School Growth Outcomes

200 4

150

100 [

50 J

Growth and Equity

In the previous section, we introduced the idea that the growth component of the school
accountability system could be used to support Wyoming’s equity values. In other words,
growth measures could be used to determine if the lowest performing students were
demonstrating adequate progress.

One way this can be accomplished is to compute growth outcomes twice: once for the whole
school and again for students below proficient — the target equity group. As described
previously, this provides a substantial incentive for schools to focus on improving the
performance of low achieving students and substantially rewards those schools that are
successful.

There are a number of ways to accomplish this. One approach is to used the same rubric(s) but
apply a different scale to reflect the desired weight (e.g. 200 points for whole school and 100
points for non-proficient students). Additionally, non-proficient students could be counted once
in each group (i.e. double counted), which places a strong emphasis on equity, or growth could
be calculated separately for proficient versus non-proficient students. Finally, a decision
regarding which content areas should be included and how much each should be weighted must
be considered.

Design Decisions

One of the most critical decisions in the design of any accountability system is determining how
the various indicators will be summarized and reported. Essentially all research and evaluation
(accountability systems are one type of evaluation) endeavors involve some form of “data

* The Center has conducted analyses in another state revealing that meaningful growth targets can be established
with a single rubric, which closely correspond with results from the CUKU approach.

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012 38



reduction” whereby results are summarized to some degree or another. In other words, we rarely
collect and report raw data to stakeholders, rather it is summarized and reported in some manner.
The challenge is determining which data to summarize and when to stop summarizing. For
example, few stakeholders will question computing either a mean scale score or some other
summary statistic (e.g., percent proficient) for the reading assessment in a particular classroom.
But even this level of aggregation masks other important considerations such as the degree of
variability in the students’ scores. Going further, we suggest that few stakeholders would
question summarizing the achievement results for a given content area for a given year at a
school; however some might have concerns about the meaningfulness of combining such results
across content areas to produce an overall achievement measure. As with most of the other
design decisions, there is not a single correct approach. Rather, the aggregation decisions need
to reflect the values and the intended uses of the results. This section of the report outlines some
of the aggregation and reporting issues for Wyoming’s school accountability system and
proposes a framework that links closely the overall performance levels with specific
consequences and supports.

First, we must make clear that this discussion is aligned with previous decisions about having a
very detailed reporting structure associated with the various Wyoming accountability systems.
In terms of the school accountability system, the intent is to report on each of the indicators with
enough specificity to inform decisions and subsequent improvement actions. Further, we
recommend designing a reporting structure whereby school personnel have access to much finer
grained reports than those produced for parents and other members of the public.

Single or Multiple Ratings

There has been considerable discussion among Select and Advisory Committee members about
the ultimate level of aggregation for the school accountability indicators. While not necessarily
evenly split, there are two main positions. The first involves producing an omnibus rating for
each school, while the second position would have multiple ratings for each school, although
there is not yet agreement about the specifics of such multiple ratings. While intended purposes
and target audiences must inform the aggregation decisions, we discuss the potential advantages
and disadvantages associated with these major reporting decisions.

A major advantage of the single overall rating is its simplicity. If the meanings of the ratings are
well understood, it could be a very efficient way to communicate, at least at a surface level,
information about the overall quality of schools in Wyoming. Of course, the challenge is finding
global performance descriptors that accurately convey meaning about the multiple indicators.
The ability to have some control over the “message” is another important advantage of using a
single overall rating. This advantage depends largely on one’s belief about whether someone
(e.g., the media, realtors, or other stakeholders) will find a way to create their own aggregate
rating, whether or not it is done by the state. If one believes that there is a reasonable probability
of somebody or some group creating and publishing their own overall school rating, then one
might want an overall rating as part of the system so that the rating accurately reflects the design
choices of Wyoming’s policy leaders and advisors. On the other hand, if one either believes
there is a low probability of such an occurrence or that it can be dealt with once it occurs, they
will not necessarily view the single overall rating as an advantage, at least for the ability to help
control the message. Finally, while the validity of an overall rating might be questioned

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012 39



(discussed below), previous research and experience indicates that the overall rating will—all
things being equal—be more reliable (e.g., consistent across years) than ratings of individual
indicators.

The disadvantages of combining the various indicators into a single overall rating are numerous
and are essentially the inverse of the advantages. The risk of combing all indicators into a single
rating, while apparently simple, may in fact be too blunt to convey sufficiently nuanced
information about school quality. Further, while a single rating might do a fair job at
distinguishing the highest and lowest performing schools, it might not be very effective at
providing a fair and accurate picture of schools in the middle. An example discussed at a Select
Committee meeting is that if growth and achievement were weighted about equally, two schools
could get very similar ratings even if one had very high growth and low achievement while the
other school had the opposite pattern. There was concern that such a rating would mask very
important differences among schools. A similar concern arose when considering variability in
performance across the content areas. The potential advantage of “controlling the message” has
disadvantages as well. Many recognize that the State will not be able to control all potential
users and uses and trying to do so by producing a single rating for each school could be seen as
falling into the “two wrongs do not make a right” trap.

If there are disadvantages to producing a single rating, that implies there are advantages to
producing multiple scores/ratings for each school. The first major challenge of reporting
multiple scores or ratings is the need to decide and agree on the type of reporting that should
occur. Of course, this needs to be driven by purposes and uses, but there might always be a
tension between how much or how little to aggregate. For example, some have suggested
reporting separately by content areas (e.g., math, reading, and science), but combining growth
and achievement within content area. Others have suggested combining across content areas, but
reporting two overall scores, one for growth and another for achievement. To play out this
example further, one can easily make the case for reporting growth and achievement separately
for each of the content areas, and even by grade levels as well. The point here is that once we
move away from simply reporting individual student scores, we have agreed to aggregate. The
question then is how far do we continue to aggregate to find the right balance between summary
and information?

The educational psychology literature is quite clear that task-specific feedback is much more
effective at leading to improvements in performance than general feedback. Therefore, the more
fine-grained the reporting, the more likely it is that the accountability system reports and other
information will lead to improvements in student learning. To be fair, simply reporting two or
three scores (growth and achievement or content area scores) is probably not specific enough to
qualify as “task-specific” feedback. This brings us back to the need to have a very detailed
reporting system so school personnel will have information available on which to act. However,
public reports do not need to present such fine-grained information. On the other hand, reporting
summary information in multiple categories, such as growth and achievement by content area
could provide a much more nuanced view of school quality than a single omnibus rating.
Further, this could be a useful public information activity by educating the public that quality in
education is not as simple as “thumbs up” or “thumbs down.” Another potential benefit of
reporting information either by content area or by content area and growth/achievement is that it

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012 40



can help school leaders address complacent teachers who might be able to “hide” behind an
omnibus compensatory rating. For example, a school with highly effective mathematics teachers
may get an adequate overall rating even though the language arts teachers are only performing at
a mediocre level. A more discrete reporting system would help shine a light on both the strong
and weak areas. Of course, one could take care of such cases in an omnibus rating system by not
using a simple compensatory system, but requiring some minimum level of acceptable
performance in all relevant areas to receive an acceptable overall rating.

Recommendation: Trying to thread the needle

As can be seen, there are tradeoffs with either approach. The advantages of the single rating
point out the disadvantages of multiple ratings and vice versa. We are concerned that reporting
only two (growth and achievement) or three (reading, math, science) scores/ratings for each
school does not go far enough to address the concerns associated with aggregating all indicators
to a single rating. Therefore, we see the choice as being between producing a single overall
score/rating and producing ratings in at least the following seven categories®:

Mathematics achievement

Mathematics growth

Reading achievement

Reading growth

Science achievement

Writing achievement

Readiness

We make this suggestion because knowing that achievement and especially growth can vary
considerably across content areas, we do not think that simply reporting two ratings (e.g., growth
and achievement) offers noticeable advantages over a single rating. We go further to
recommend that a single rating can be produced along with the more discrete ratings suggested
above and that such a system can help meet multiple needs of the system. The single rating is
undoubtedly what will get published in newspapers and other summary outlets, but if reports are
carefully designed, we would hope that the finer grained information would get reported as well.

AN N N NN

Performance level descriptors (PLD) and Standard Setting

One of the reasons for reporting a single, overall rating certainly relates to the reliability issue
discussed above. A single, largely compensatory rating will be more reliable that any one of the
five or six ratings closer to the indicator level. This greater reliability has important implications
for establishing cutscores separating the various levels of performance, especially if the goal is to
have at least three or four levels. If there is insufficient reliability, it can often play out as
problems with classification consistency. That is, low reliability around the cutscores will lead
to schools changing categories for no reason other than the uncertainty associated with the
system. Therefore, it will be important to have a reasonably high degree of confidence in the
overall classification for a school. If there is a reliable overall rating for each school, then it is
less critical that each of the finer-grained reporting categories to have similarly high levels of
reliability. This is not advocating low reliability, but simply suggesting the higher reliability of
the composite can “protect” the lower reliability of the finer categories.

®> Note: Not all indicators would be available for each school and grade span. For example, readiness would not be
reported for elementary schools.

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012 41



The Select Committee indicated an interest in establishing four levels of overall performance, but
there was no discussion about the number of levels that should be set on the finer
categorizations. There is a compelling argument to establish the same number of levels on the
component parts as the overall levels, but there is also a compelling argument for using a
different number of levels. If the same levels are used for all reported categories, it might make
communication easier, but it can also lead to confusion. There is always the risk with using the
same levels for each major indicator and the overall level that stakeholders will think they can
simply average across the major indicators to arrive at the overall score. While this could be
true, it likely will not be the case because of differential weighting and other factors. Therefore,
we recommend that four performance categories are used for the overall rating, while three are
used for each of the major indicator reporting categories. We elaborate on this below, focusing
first on the overall level.

We recommend that the State engage in a deliberative standard setting process to establish
overall levels that are tied to important criteria of performance. This involves generating
descriptions of expected overall performance (performance level descriptors) at each of the four
levels and then evaluating accountability system data (in the initial implementation/pilot year) to
essentially match overall school scores to these descriptors. This process will result in
recommended scores that mark the boundaries between any two levels (cutscores). These
recommended cutscores should then be brought to the State Board of Education for approval.
We offer recommended levels and initial descriptions for the four overall performance levels:

» Exemplary/Exceeding Expectations: Schools in this category, which is reserved for
schools considered models of performance, have demonstrated high growth in all
applicable content areas, have average to high levels of achievement (proficiency rates),
and have high performance on graduation rates and other readiness indicators (if
applicable).

» Satisfactory/Meeting Expectations: Schools in this category have demonstrated either
high levels of growth or high levels of achievement in all content areas and are meeting
state targets for readiness indicators.

» Approaching/Partially Meeting Expectations: Schools in this category have
demonstrated either acceptable levels of growth or acceptable levels of achievement in
some, but not all content areas. Schools in the “approaching” category may demonstrate
average or lower performance on graduation or other readiness indicators.

> Priority Improvement/Not Meeting Expectations: This category is reserved for
schools with unacceptable performance on many or most indicators. Schools in the
priority improvement category typically have low levels of achievement in all content
areas and demonstrate low to average growth in the relevant content areas and fall short
of expectations on graduation and other readiness indicators (if applicable).

We recognize that these category names and descriptors will evolve, but argue that that if the
state wants to incentivize improvements in the overall state educational system, the highest
performance category should be reserved for schools that are truly demonstrating high levels of
performance. Similarly, the priority improvement schools, perhaps a slightly larger group than
those in the exemplary category, should be reserved for those schools where the State will direct
intensive capacity-building resources, which is described in more detail below. All of these

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012 42



performance categories will be intricately linked to expected actions on the part of the school,
district, and state. These actions may be termed “consequences,” but given the continuous
improvement orientation of the Advisory and Select committees, consequences are all designed
from an improvement orientation. In spite of the potential usefulness of this overall
categorization, the Advisory committee contends that it is too blunt of an instrument to direct
improvement actions appropriately. Therefore, before discussing potential consequences, we
turn to the establishment of performance levels on the indicator categories.

The following seven major indicators previously are used as a starting point for thinking about
reporting at a finer grained level than the single overall level:

Mathematics achievement

Mathematics growth

Reading achievement

Reading growth

Science achievement

Writing achievement

Readiness

The major categories could easily be expanded as the number and type of indicators in the school
accountability system expand, but these categories represent a good starting point. As noted
above, we suggest that each of these major indicators be categorized into three performance
levels to both avoid some potential interpretation problems, but to also recognize that the
reliability associated with individual indicators might not be high enough to justifiably support
the establishment of four distinguishable performance categories. Therefore, we recommend
using, at least as a starting point, three levels of performance for these indicators and that the
cutscores should be established normatively such as: exceeding the state average, average
performance, and below the state average. This is especially useful for the growth measures, but
we argue that it can be useful for the status measures as well. However, we would not be
opposed to incorporating some criterion-referencing into the establishment of these levels as
well. For example, one may want to require that for a school to be considered “average” on the
readiness indicator, they should have a minimum requirement of at least a 75% graduation rate.
Again, this is just an example to demonstrate how cutscores on these indicators could be
established largely normatively but can also include some important thresholds.

AN N N N N N

Approaches for Combing Multiple Indicators

There are at least four approaches to combining multiple indicators to yield a single outcome:
compensatory, conjunctive, disjunctive, and profile methods. Compensatory means that higher
performance in one measure may offset or compensate for lower performance on another
measure. Conjunctive means that acceptable performance must be achieved for every measure.
Disjunctive means that performance must be acceptable on at least one measure. A profile refers
to a defined pattern of performance that is judged to be satisfactory, unsatisfactory, or equivalent.
A profile approach is often operationalized using a matrix to combine indicators for making
judgments.

A compensatory approach recognizes that some degree of variability in performance across

indicators may be expected. Such an approach has a higher degree of reliability because the
overall decision is based on multiple indicators evaluated more holistically. Moreover, reliability

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012 43



improves because random error in multiple measures tends to cancel. Conjunctive decisions are
less reliable because errors accumulate across multiple judgments meaning a school might fail to
meet standards due to the least reliable measure. However, this approach may be desirable when
it is important to assure that a school does not fall below established standards on any one
criterion. A disjunctive method is desirable when any one component is viewed as adequate
assurance the school has met expectations. Finally, profiles are useful especially when there are
certain patterns that can be described that reflect valued performance that are not easily captured,
usually because the combinations of criteria are judged to be not equivalent.

These approaches should not be regarded as mutually exclusive. It is possible, for example, to
combine aspects of compensatory and conjunctive ‘rules’ to arrive at a final result. An example
of this is a rule that requires both 95% participation AND a minimum score on an index that
combines status and growth in order to pass. Requiring schools to meet both participation and a
minimum performance level is conjunctive; however, an index that combines both status and
growth is compensatory.

Matrix Design Ilustration

Using six of the indicators we have introduced in this section, we will illustrate an example for
how the indicators can be reported at various levels and then combined to support an overall
classification. By so doing, we do not propose that this should represent the entirety of
information produced by the system. Rather, we seek to illustrate a design alternative with a
manageable number of indicators that should figure prominently in the accountability system.

As illustrated previously in this document, growth, achievement, and readiness (for the present
example: graduation rate) can be can be expressed a number of ways. For example, we can
report achievement as simply percent proficient or on a scale with a desired range. However,
regardless of the metric we can ‘collapse’ the outcome into three categories. Here, we will use
the following: Below the Standard, Meeting the Standard, and Exceeding the Standard.

Taking into account each content area, this produces six performance categories as depicted in
Table 5 below, which would be explicitly reported for each school.

Table 5: Ilustration of Reported Performance Categories

Math Reading Science® Readiness
Achievement Achievement .
Achievement Performance
Level Level Level Level
Growth Level Growth Level

It is possible further collapse this information into an overall score by content area, such as a
math performance level that accounts for the combination of achievement and readiness.
Alternately, the information can be combined by indicator category, such an achievement score
that accounts for the influence of math, reading, and science. There are multiple ways to
accomplish this, but perhaps the most straightforward would be to produce an overall proficiency

® Growth is not calculated for science because it is tested only once each in elementary, middle, and high school.

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012 44



rating for achievement and a mean score for growth and apply standards to these values to
produce a single performance level for each indicator. It is certainly possible to weight one
content area more than another to prioritize a policy value. In any case, the result would be a
single performance level for each indicator class: achievement, growth, and readiness.

Using these three level ratings for each of three indicators, a decision table can be produced, as
shown in Table 6 that indicates how the combinations of ratings work to provide an overall
school classification as: Exemplary/ Exceeding Expectations, Satisfactory/ Meeting Expectations,
Approaching/ Partially Meeting Expectations, and Priority Improvement/ Not Meeting
Expectations.

The shaded cells shows the various level on each indicator class and the bold text in the non-
shaded cells shows the overall school classification. The actual classification levels are simply
illustrative and many other combinations are possible to reflect the values of Wyoming policy

makers.

Table 6: Illustration of Decision Table for Performance Indicators

Achievement Achievement Achievement
Below Meeting Exceeding
Growth Below Priority Priority Approaching
Readiness
Level Below Growth Meeting Priority Approaching Approaching
slendares ElENis Approachin Approachin Satisfactor
Exceeding PP g PP g y
Achievement Achievement Achievement
Below Meeting Exceeding
Growth Below Priority Approaching Satisfactory
Readiness
Level Meeting | Growth Meeting | Approaching Satisfactory Satisfactory
standares ST Satisfactor Satisfactor Exemplar
Exceeding y y plary
Achievement Achievement Achievement
Below Meeting Exceeding
Readiness Growth Below Approaching Satisfactory Satisfactory
Level . . .
Exceeding Growth Meeting Satisfactory Satisfactory Exemplary
Standards Growth .
Exceeding Satisfactory Exemplary Exemplary

A strong advantage of using a decision matrix to evaluate performance is the ability to apply

specific policy-based criteria to all cells, especially the ‘off-diagonal’ cells. When cells “agree’

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012

45



(e.g. growth, achievement, and readiness are all below standard) the decision of a final
classification is usually uncontroversial. However, there may be a policy rationale for evaluating
one combination of levels as different from another if they are based on dissimilar indicators. In
this manner, policy makers may desire to privilege growth, achievement, or readiness.

Compensatory Design Illustration

Using the indicators we have introduced in this framework, we will also illustrate an example of
combining achievement, growth, and readiness using a compensatory approach.

As shown previously in this document, achievement can be expressed as a scale based on
proficiency rate. In the most straightforward approach, the percent proficient across all grades
and content areas is multiplied by 300 to obtain a scale that ranges from 0 to 300 (e.g. .75 x 300
= 225).

Growth, as shown previously, can also be expressed on a scale with a maximum value of 300.
This comes from two components: whole school and non-proficient students. In each case, the
median SGP is evaluated against a rubric that awards up to 200 points for the whole school and
up to 100 points for growth of the non-proficient students for a total of 300"

We also introduced two components for readiness: a graduation index and performance on
readiness assessments (i.e. ACT and EXPLORE). We can conceive of a readiness scale with a
maximum value of 150 at the high school level, where 100 points is derived from the graduation
index and 50 points from assessment performance, calculated as the percent meeting ACT
benchmark performance multiplied by 50 (e.g. .80 x 50 = 40). The sum of these values produces
an overall readiness index for high schools. To keep the maximum value of points available for
all schools the same, high school achievement points could be reduced to 150. By so doing,
‘status’ measures (i.e. test performance and graduation outcome) would carry the same weight in
the calculation in contrast to growth.

Including readiness scores for middle schools represents a unique challenge that should be
examined separately. The EXPLORE test is given statewide and provides an ‘on-track’ college
readiness measure for 8" grade students. Conceivably, performance on EXPLORE could be
incorporated in the model similar to the ACT to produce a readiness value of up to 50 points for
middle schools and achievement could be reduced a corresponding amount (from 300 to 250) to
keep the overall values consistent. However, because the EXPLORE test is given in grade 9, a
process would need to be developed to associate these values with the schools in which the
students were enrolled as 8" graders. This would also create a data ‘lag’ (which, to be fair, may
exist for other indicators).

In Figure 7 and Figure 8, we illustrate two examples of a hypothetical point structure for
elementary and high schools, incorporating the elements and values described.

7 Several variations on this approach are possible, including distinguishing between proficient and non-proficient students (to
avoid double counting) and changing the weights (e.g. 150 for each component)

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012 46



Figure 7: Hllustration of Hypothetical Elementary School Point Structure

Overall School Outcome
600 Total Points

Achievement

Growth 300 total points
300 total points Based on percent at or
above proficient on state
tests

Equity

200 total points .
100 total points

Based on median SGP of X
all students Based on median SGP for

non-proficient students

Figure 8: Illustration of Hypothetical High School Point Structure

Overall School Outcome
600 Total Points

\ S
4 N
Achievement
Growth 150 total points Readiness
300 total points Based on percent at or 150 total points
above proficient on state
tests
\ S
) Equity ) .
200 total points . 100 total points 50 total points
. 100 total points .

Based on median SGP of . Based on graduation Based on ACT
all students Based on median SGP for index performance

non-proficient students

The design example portrays a model in which each element exerts influence on the outcome in
proportion to the number of points assigned to that component — in this case, achievement and

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012 47



growth are equally valued. Evaluation of school performance is in reference to a target score or
threshold on the overall score (e.g. 500 out of 600 to achieve the highest classification.) Schools
that score lower on achievement can offset this performance by demonstrating higher growth.
Conversely, less growth is required of schools that are already strong in achievement. This
illustrates the compensatory nature of the model. Importantly, the weight of each component
and the selection of thresholds are key policy decisions that influence school outcomes.

It cannot be overemphasized that the values used in this section and previous sections of this
document are intended to be purely illustrative to make the ideas presented more clear by
example. The actual rubric and scale values should be carefully considered to reflect policy
values and modeled to examine impact.

Professional Judgment and Appeals

The Select Committee insisted on incorporating professional judgment into any approach for
aggregating indicators and producing yearly determinations for schools. While either of the two
approaches for combining indicators discussed above—the decision matrix or the compensatory
design illustration—must incorporate professional judgment in determining values and weights,
the decision matrix approach lends itself to a much more obvious incorporation of policy and
professional judgments than seemingly more quantitative approaches. The Select Committee
recommended including a professional judgment review of the results each year, particularly for
those schools with an “off-diagonal” pattern where the results of the different indicators paint
different pictures of school performance. Further, both committees recommended using an
appeal process to allow schools to appeal their ratings, first to their local board and then perhaps
to a state-convened panel of peers to allow for another layer of professional judgment.

Reporting

As discussed previously, combining content areas or indicators into a single classification has the
advantage of being clear to stakeholders and can guard against potentially irresponsible attempts
to produce a summary outcome. However, these high level outcomes run the risk of masking
important characteristics of school quality. To be sure, more detailed information is needed to
inform decisions about supports and program improvement. For this reason it is important to
develop a reporting system that equips educators, leaders, and stakeholders with ample
information to support a variety of uses.

We envision information available by indicator, by content area, by grade, and by subgroup.
However, as depicted Figure 9 below, which is a very small slice of the full range of information
that could be produced, it is easy for extant reports to overwhelm stakeholders and serve only as
a ‘data dump.’

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012 48



Figure 9: Sample of Selected Reporting Levels

Overall School
Performance

Achievement ——{ Growth

I I

Reading Math
I 1 1

Grade 6 ‘ Grade 7 ‘ Grade 8

|__English Language|] | Native | Hispanic
Learners Americans Students
Economically ||| Males || Students with
Disadv Disabilities

A well-designed and useful reporting system goes beyond static reports and takes advantage of
technological innovations. In general, reports should be accessible to stakeholders to ensure that
those closest to the classroom have the information needed to inform instructional decisions.
Moreover, the reports should be accompanied by adequate interpretative information. Such
information should describe the meaning of and precision of the outcomes and clearly indicate
uses and interpretations that are supported. Supplemental information may enhance the utility of
reports, such as comparative information from similar schools or longitudinal trends.

States that are on the forefront in innovative reporting practices are taking advantage of both
dynamic reporting technology (e.g. interactive data tables) and data visualization (e.g. graphs and
plots). One such state is Colorado, who employs a system termed SchoolView?®. In this system,
not only can stakeholders access a variety of ‘conventional’ information, such as summaries of
state assessment results, but users can produce and manipulate customized reports. It starts with
the ability to customize the interface by role (e.g. parent, educator, or administrator). Then,
users can access a wealth of information, such as plots of growth (median SGP) by status
(percent proficient) and school size. Figure 10 provides an example of this display.

® See http://www.schoolview.org/index.asp for more information including access to dynamic reports

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012 49


http://www.schoolview.org/index.asp

Figure 10: Image of Growth and Proficiency Plot from Colorado’s Reporting System

Denver County 1 ath writing
By School = [] Enable Bubble Labels 2011 ¥

. .. Higher Achievement
-

Higher Achievement

Lower Growth Higher Growth
-
2 - = 3
Lower Growth ~ * Higher Growth
Lower Achievement Lower Achievement

These plots can be manipulated by the user to show different content areas, subgroups, or years.
By allowing users to customize reports and to facilitate the presentation of a vast amount of
information in a clear and simple manner, educators and other stakeholders can more easily
locate findings in the data that can inform improvement initiatives.

Additionally, a comprehensive reporting system is accompanied by supporting information to
help users navigate through the data and interpret findings. Innovative systems do not restrict
these resources to printed reports, but take advantage of technology to produce resources such as
narrated demonstrations, videos, or user guided tutorials.

Consequences and Support

As discussed with both the Advisory and Select committees, there is absolutely no intention to
institute any sort of punitive consequences in reaction to accountability system results. Rather,
both groups are committed to ensure that the accountability results contribute the continuous
improvement process to improve the particular schools and the system as a whole. However, we
are not blind to the fact that one person’s support could easily be seen as another person’s
consequences, especially if that means restrictions on some aspects of local control.
Nevertheless, both committees make these recommendations with the intention of improving
Wyoming schools, particularly those performing below state expectations. The consequences
and supports tied to school performance on the accountability system are multi-tiered, but the
various levels are interrelated. The overall accountability level triggers a general action, but this
must be further specified according the performance on the various indicators. The general
actions tied to each of the overall levels are described below. The specifications of these
improvement plans will need to be fleshed out with more details as the system moves towards
implementation. Further, these details should be tied to the systematic efforts to improve the
capacity of the schools, districts, and the state itself, described elsewhere in this report. The

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012 50



specific consequences and expected levels/types of support are outlined below. In Section IV of
the report, we provide a more detailed description of the system of support and capacity building
necessary to ensure the success of the full system.

Exemplary/Exceeding Expectations: Schools in this category should be publicly recognized
and commended for their accomplishments. In order to maintain high levels of achievement and
illuminate promising practices, schools in this category must file a “communication plan’ with
WDE that describes how the schools intends to document its effective practices and share these
successful practices with other schools in Wyoming. This plan should be a brief document and
is not intended to interfere with the school’s overall success.

Satisfactory/Meeting Expectations: Schools in this category must file a “level one
improvement plan” with WDE that is based on a close examination of the indicator scores. The
level one improvement plan must be aimed at improvement goals tied to performance on the
specific indicators where the school’s performance was either weaker than other categories or
lower than the state average performance. The level one improvement plan may include a
limited number of other goals beyond the specific indicators and the plan shall include a
rationale for selecting the improvement goal(s), the processes that the school will implement in
order to address the goal(s), a timeline and relevant benchmarks for addressing the goal(s), and a
description for how the school will evaluate its success at meeting the goal(s). WDE will
appoint a liaison to monitor the school’s progress at meeting the goals and to work with the
school, if requested, to help support the school’s efforts or to assist the school in locating
additional capacity to support the school’s improvement efforts. The school and district will use
existing block grant funds to pay for any additional resources.

Approaching/Partially Meeting Expectations: Schools in this category must file a “level two
improvement plan” with WDE that is based on a close examination of the indicator scores. The
level two improvement plan must be aimed at improvement goals tied to performance on the
specific indicators where the school’s performance was either weaker than other categories or
lower than the state average performance. This plan must address all areas rated unacceptable.
The level two improvement plan focus only on goals related to shortcomings on the specific
indicators unless there is a compelling reason to include other goals. The plan shall include a
rationale for selecting the improvement goal(s), the processes that the school will implement in
order to address the goal(s), a timeline and relevant benchmarks for addressing the goal(s), and a
description for how the school will evaluate its success at meeting the goal(s). WDE will
appoint a liaison to support the school in identifying and addressing the goals and to work with
the school, if requested, to help support the school’s efforts. The liaison must assist the school in
locating additional capacity to support the school’s improvement efforts. The district and WDE
share the costs to pay for any additional resources. Schools that do not meet their improvement
goals for two consecutive years under the level two plan may have their overall level changed to
“priority improvement” and participate in the consequences and supports associated with that
level of performance.

Priority Improvement/Not Meeting Expectations: Schools in this category must file a
“turnaround plan” that describes how the school, along with a distinguished educator appointed
by WDE and the local board of education, will radically improve its performance and must

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012 51



address all areas rated unacceptable. Recognizing that such significant improvement takes time
(e.g., 3-5 years), the plan must specify process and performance milestones for each year that the
plan is in effect. These milestones must be agreed upon by the local board of education, the
distinguished educator, and the WDE liaison. The plan must identify the highest priority areas
that will be the focus of the school’s initial efforts, but should also discuss how the school will
move beyond these highest priority indicators to other salient improvement targets. The plan
shall include a rationale for selecting the improvement goal(s), the processes that the school will
implement in order to address the goal(s), a timeline and relevant benchmarks for addressing the
goal(s), and a description for how the school will evaluate its success at meeting the goal(s). The
WNDE liaison must assist the school in locating additional capacity to support the school’s
improvement efforts and the liaison along with the distinguished educator shall be able to direct
the school and district to utilize certain improvement strategies and/or materials (e.g.,
curriculum). The plan must describe the resources required to carry out the improvement efforts,
but must first document how existing resources will be reallocated to meet the needs described
by the turnaround plan. WDE will provide the resources necessary, as authorized through this
statute, to support the school’s turnaround efforts. Schools that do not meet their performance
improvement benchmarks under the turnaround plan for two consecutive years must hire a
“school turnaround specialist” to either work with the existing school principal. Further,
continued low performance may lead to termination of the principal and other staff members.

Educator Evaluation
Introduction

Like many other states, Wyoming has set out to develop a system for measuring teacher and
administrator effectiveness influenced in part by student achievement. While many of the issues
related to school accountability overlap with educator accountability, there are numerous specific
considerations that should be addressed, which is the focus of this section. Importantly, this
section is only an introduction to the very complex challenges associated with designing an
educator evaluation system and does not contain the specificity needed to fully design and
implement an educator evaluation system that includes measures of student academic
performance. We intend for this document to provide an overview of the many issues and
decisions policymakers and other stakeholders will need to consider.

Multiple Measures

While the inclusion of student achievement data (e.g. measures of student growth) constitutes a
prominent element of Wyoming’s initiative to reform educator evaluation systems, it should also
be acknowledged that a comprehensive and defensible system incorporates multiple measures
that go beyond student performance on state tests.

These may include some or all of the following:
e Direct observations of educators by principals or peers
e Student surveys
e Parent surveys

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012 52



e Analysis of artifacts (e.g. student work, instructional activities, lesson plans etc.)

Such information is critical for several reasons. First, student academic performance cannot
fully address all dimensions of being an effective educator. Additional information is needed to
get a more complete picture of the educator’s performance. Second, multiple sources of
information can enhance the reliability of the outcomes. When a collection of evidence is used
to make classification decisions, it mitigates the error that may be associated with any one less
reliable indicator. Finally, qualitative information that provides more in-depth information about
educator practices can make the results more useful and actionable. Given that a prominent
claim in Wyoming’s theory of action is the use of educator evaluation results to improve
practice, it is important to assemble information that better allows one to understand and receive
feedback on specific professional practices associated with more or less favorable academic
outcomes.

Measuring Student Performance

Fundamentally, any use of student academic performance data to inform judgments of teacher
effectiveness should control for prior performance. Therefore, the assessments used must
produce a measure that reflects the progress or growth of the student during the period of time
the teacher provided instruction. Broadly, there are two primary elements that must be in place to
accomplish this goal: 1) availability of one or more suitable prior scores and 2) application of an
appropriate analytic method.

To start, the structure of the assessment system should be such that one or more suitable prior
scores are available. One way to accomplish this is to use a score from the end of the previous
year. Given that there is an assessment at the end of each of grades 3-8 in mathematics and
reading, it may be possible to use the previous year’s PAWS score as a baseline for determining
progress starting in grade 4. However, this assumes that the tests are highly correlated and
otherwise well designed for this purpose, including content representation, breadth and depth of
information, and technically defensible. We address this topic in greater depth in Section V of
this document.

However, this approach is more complicated for content areas not tested annually (e.g. science
and high school) or for which no suitable standardized assessment exists (e.g. physical education,
art). To be sure, the ‘non-tested’ issue is one of the most intractable challenges facing states
seeking to include student performance in educator evaluation systems. A complete treatment of
this issue is beyond the scope of this document, but a summary of some alternatives more fully
developed in Marion & Buckley (2011) follows®:

1. Custom developed state tests: Wyoming may elect to develop new tests to address key
gaps in tested grades or content areas. An advantage of this approach is that it likely offers

° See: Marion, S.F. & Buckley K. (2011). Approaches and considerations for incorporating student performance
results from “Non-Tested” grades and subjects into educator effectiveness determinations. Available at:

WwWw.nciea.org

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012 53


http://www.nciea.org/

maximum opportunity to create high quality assessments aligned to standards. However, the
obvious disadvantage is the tremendous outlay of resources — both time and money — to
develop and manage quality assessments over time.

2. Commercially available tests: Although some vendors offer seemingly promising
standardized assessment solutions that can be flexibly administered and are less expensive
that custom developed tests, this option is not without substantial risk. Most prominently,
there are often serious issues with alignment and technical quality of ‘off-the-shelf tests.

3. School/ teacher created tests: Allowing schools or classes to develop assessments could
serve as a professional development tool for educators and should promote alignment
between instruction and content. Another advantage is the potential to measure more
complex knowledge and skills than a selected response tests. However, both the quality and
the comparability of tests developed at the school or class level is a very significant issue.
Also, this approach may be more corruptible than other approaches.

4. School-wide attribution: In the absence of current and/or prior test data for the class/course
of interest, it is possible to assign a school rating to the teachers with missing data. This
alternative does introduce serious concerns that linkages between services and outcomes may
be less direct. However, others have argued that such an approach increases engagement and
cooperation of personnel throughout the school.

5. Student learning objectives: Some states are considering student learning objectives (also
termed student growth objectives.) Broadly, this approach involves teachers drawing on
classroom-based information to establish goals for individual students or the class. The
teacher then evaluates student and/or class progress toward these outcomes. This approach is
appealing in that it has great potential for both educator and student development through the
process of establishing and pursue meaningful learning outcomes. However, comparability
and corruptibility are non-trivial threats to guard against.

Inclusion and Attribution

Attribution refers to an essential claim in the theory of action that educator practices influence
the academic performance of students. To address this, Wyoming must be able to link student
outcomes to educators and assemble evidence that demonstrates a credible connection between
these elements.

Teacher/Leader of Record

Addressing attribution starts with determining which teacher/leader should be held accountable
for a student’s performance. This is often referred to as defining the teacher of record. A
suitable definition - and an accompanying data system that permits operationalization of this
definition - should establish the conditions and circumstances governing the connection of
educators with classes and account for the variety of learning environments in Wyoming schools.

For example, the Data Quality Campaign (DQC) (2010a) advises states seeking to use
assessment data to inform educator evaluation to:

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012 54



e Account for contributions of multiple educators in a single course

e Enable teachers to review rosters for accuracy

e Account for schedule changes and variable class environments such as virtual classes or
labs

e Link attendance records with teachers to track actual days of instruction

Using a modified version of the high-level *framework’ for defining teacher of record offered by
the DQC (2010b) a sample operational definition for Wyoming might include the following:
e The educator/ leader roles included (e.g. certified educators, academic coaches, mentors
etc.)
e The amount of instructional time to establish a link (e.g. responsible for at least 50% or
more of instructional time)
e Courses/ environments covered (e.g. courses for which there is an associated, valid test
score)
e Prior measures required (e.g. at least two prior valid PAWS scores in the same content
area).
e Other conditions (e.g. continuous enrollment requirement)

Missing/ Incomplete Data

Another ‘data issue’ to address is missing and/or incomplete data. This situation exists when any
of the following occur:
e One or more prior (pre) test scores are missing
e The current year (post) test score is missing
e The student is not continuously enrolled in a single building/class throughout the term of
instruction
e The student record is missing or incomplete (e.g. test scores but no identifier)

Missing data can impact the precision and stability of the growth analysis and introduce
systematic bias in the resulting estimates (Braun et al, 2010). Moreover, it is generally
acknowledged that data are not Missing At Random (MAR), meaning that it is likely that the
performance of students with missing or incomplete data differs systematically from those with
complete records. Consider, for example, that mobility rates are typically higher for
economically disadvantaged students compared to other students.

When all or part of a record is missing, there are a number of potential methods to address this.
One solution is to simply omit the records. This approach may be simple to understand and
straightforward to implement, however, it is likely most vulnerable to potential introduction of
bias for the reasons noted above. Alternately, Wyoming may implement one of several
approaches to data imputation — or using a statistical method to populate the missing value(s).
Imputation methods range from simple (e.g. replacing the missing value with the mean value of
all existing data) to more complex (e.g. using an algorithm to predict the likely value of the
missing value based on patterns in the existing data).

There is no single or best approach to dealing with missing data. In general, we recommend
Wyoming consider the following steps to address this threat moving forward.

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012 55



e ldentify business rules informed by impact analyses that clearly define what data are
usable and which are not. Consider issues such as:

0 What is the minimum group size to calculate a class/school growth estimate?

0 Regardless of group size, what is the minimum inclusion rate to calculate an
estimate? Inclusion rate refers to the proportion of students in a class or school
that “‘count’ in the analysis. For example, if only 10 students in a class of 30 are
included, this may meet the n-size rule, but may not be judged sufficient to
represent the overall class effect.

0 How long must the student be enrolled in the class to ‘count’ in the computation?

e Investigate the extent that data are missing for districts, schools, and classes. Seek to
understand patterns of missing data for various levels of performance and by subgroup.
Such analyses will help determine the extent to which data are MAR or differ in a
systematic manner.

Multiple Educators

As mentioned earlier, another issue to consider is how to handle circumstances where students
receive instruction from multiple educators. There are three general cases that lead to this
occurrence. First, the student may receive planned, ongoing instruction from multiple teachers,
as with a team teaching approach or scheduled support sessions. Second, changes can occur
throughout the year, such as a leave of absence for the primary instructor or the student
transitions to another class. Finally, additional instruction can occur in a variety of contexts,
such as when a student receives tutoring outside of class. Whatever the case, multiple sources of
instruction will likely have an impact on student achievement.

Some researchers have hypothesized that a ‘dosage’ model may be appropriate in such
circumstances. That is, if Ms. Smith provides 70% of instruction and Mr. Jones provides 30% of
instruction, then the outcomes are assigned to the educators consistent with the proportion of
instruction provided. While it may be useful to research the feasibility of this approach, we are
skeptical that proportional contribution to instruction can be captured with precision, particularly
when it is unscheduled. Also, it will be necessary to create potentially complex connections in
the state data system to account for this. It is important to consider that the proportional
contribution to instruction may not be governed by time alone. For example, an hour spent
introducing new concepts to a class may not represent the same “instructional contribution’ as an
hour spent overseeing time allotted for student directed study. Finally, the research on
attributing a student’s academic performance to teachers and leaders is emerging — even for the
least ambiguous circumstances when the teacher of record is well defined. Much less is known
about the credibility of results based on proportional attribution of scores.

We advise Wyoming to proceed with caution in exploring a ‘dosage’ model, ensuring the

information is suitably trustworthy and the results are scrutinized carefully, particularly with
respect to evidence of reliability and validity presented later in this document.

Causal Attribution

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012 56



As stated previously, the use of student performance data to inform evaluations of educator
effectiveness assumes at least a partial causal link between teacher performance and student
outcomes. Establishing such links are problematic in light of research which suggests that
though teacher influence on student learning is significant and persists across years, isolating that
contribution using large scale assessment using observational data is difficult, if not impossible
to accomplish. Numerous published writings by scholars on the subject over the past decade
support this (see, for example, Raudenbush (2004); Rubin, Stuart, & Zanutto (2004); Linn
(2008); Rothstein, 2009; 2010; Betebenner & Linn (2010); Briggs & Domingue (2011)).

In light of this, the use of student growth as a component of a high-stakes evaluation model
demands additional evidence to validate a claim of effectiveness with regard to instruction. The
collection of such evidence will help to bolster the credibility of the model and validity of the
outcomes. Validation of effectiveness claims is a non-trivial task and typically involves engaging
in systematic data collection and research to both strengthen the association between the
hypothesized antecedent (i.e. quality instruction) and the consequent (i.e. increased test scores)
and to rule out rival explanations for the outcome.

A good starting place for a program of research is to seek to determine a ‘proof of concept.’
That is, in the best case with at least a group of ‘consensus quality educators,” (necessarily
defined by judgment and existing criteria) what is the impact on student achievement? To what
degree does this differ by content area, for students of various ability levels, among special
populations, and over years?

Attribution claims can be further strengthened by addressing the sensitivity and bias of model
results. For example, in their review of analyses of educator data in the Los Angeles Unified
School District, Briggs and Domingue examine the extent to which the original model may
have been misspecified, by investigating whether a student’s teacher in the future could have an
effect on the student’s prior test performance (2011). Naturally, a strong ‘reverse association’
erodes confidence that the model is well suited to support claims. Briggs and Domingue also
introduce variations in model specifications to explore consistency of ratings and examine
outcomes with respect to confidence intervals to evaluate the precision of the estimates and the
basis to claim the resulting classification is accurate. These analyses provide examples of the
types of investigations that can serve as components of an overarching research agenda to
explore the credibility of causal claims.

Reporting Outcomes of Educator Evaluation Determinations

Another critical decision for the educator accountability system will be to define the type and
manner of reported results. This starts with clearly establishing the performance levels that must
be produced and the purposes for which they will be used. In general, there is a tension between
reporting high-level results that are more reliable and the desire to report more nuanced but less
precise outcomes for multiple indicators. For example, there will be a much higher level of
confidence in classifications of class effects as low, typical, or high compared to a class effects
described on a ten point scale from 1 (ineffective) to 10 (highly effective). In the latter case,
stakeholders may regard this information as useful to understand more fine grained degrees of

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012 57



difference, but such a scale may carry only the appearance of precision that is not supported by
evidence, particularly for adjacent ratings.

The same issue is generally true for reporting units. That is, results for individual content areas

or classes will be much less defensible (and results based on strands or subscores will be almost
certainly indefensible) than aggregate results for multiple classes. The goal, of course, is to find
the balance between the necessary specificity of outcomes and an acceptable level of precision.

As a matter of best practice, is advisable to privilege technical defensibility, in order to provide

the best case for results to be meaningfully interpreted and utilized.

Finally, it is important to consider how to combine indicators and set performance thresholds.
Once the key elements that will influence evaluations are identified and decisions are made about
the “‘weight’ of each component, it is possible to combine the indicators in a manner similar to
the alternatives described in the design section of this document.

These decisions are closely connected to the consequences and rewards that are indentified. In
general, the higher the stakes, the higher the standard of evidence should be regarding the
classification accuracy of the system. For example, it may be appropriate to require multiple
years of low ratings to support a high-stakes decision such as termination or reassignment.

Sources of Error

There are multiple sources of error that may impact the precision and, consequently, the
usefulness of model result®. The first is measurement error. Measurement error refers to the
extent to which individual assessments in the evaluation system produce stable and consistent
results.

Another threat is related to sampling error. This refers to variations in the population at the unit
for which inferences will be based — the district, school or class. Sampling error is known to
promote substantial fluctuations in school scores that can be unrelated to actual school
performance (see e.g. Hill and DePascale, 2002) and it has the potential to introduce a great deal
more uncertainty in class outcomes. This is particularly relevant given that students are rarely, if
ever, randomly assigned to teachers. Sampling error is directly related to the number of
observations - as the sample size increases, the variability reduces. Therefore, the problem is
somewhat assuaged when computing a growth score for a school across several teachers and
grades.

Yet another potential source of error is related to model specifications. Researchers have found
that estimated effects are sensitive to model assumptions and specifications (see e.g. McCaffrey
et al, 2003). In other words, adjustments to model characteristics, such as adding, deleting, or
differently defining variables, will very likely produce dissimilar results.

19 Information regarding sources of error and threats to utility addressed in Domaleski and Hill, 2010.

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012 58



Implementation Plan

The design and implementation of a reliable and valid system to evaluate educators involves
addressing many complex challenges. In this section, we summarize the most important steps in
the process to provide the basis of an implementation plan for the state.

Figure 11 shows the six major steps involved in implementing the educator evaluation system.
This process is not linear. We recommend a process in which impact analyses and ongoing
evaluation are used to gauge the adequacy of the model and inform appropriate changes to the
indicators used in the model or refinements to the design.

Figure 11: Key Components in Design and Implementation of Educator Evaluation System

Define . .
Elpeeaa Identify Desired
Outcomes
Uses
|
\Z
Select Make Design
Indicators Decisions
/A\ /|\ /T\
\Z
Support,
Analyze Impact —>| Monitor, and
Evaluate

The first step in the process is to clearly define the purpose and uses of the system. As detailed
earlier in this document, the intended goals should be reflected in an explicit and credible theory
of action that makes clear the assumptions about what the state hopes to accomplish with the
educator evaluation system and how the process will promote the desired outcomes, including
the mechanisms that are hypothesized to promote these goals. This shapes subsequent decisions
such as what information to include, how to report outcomes, and how to set performance
expectations. This also helps clarify if/why certain requirements are important, which helps
prioritize the elements that are most central to the success of the initiative.

Next, it is important to clearly define the desired outcomes. This includes identifying what
information will be produced and how it will be communicated to all stakeholders. For example,
will the system produce performance classifications? How many levels of classifications will be
produced and what will they mean? For instance, if the top classification is intended to qualify
an educator for merit pay or the bottom classification leads to termination, this must be clarified
from the start in order to better understand what information is needed and how performance

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012 59



standards should be established. Additionally, what content areas will be covered? Will the
classifications combine content areas for each teacher or be specific to each content area? In
what area should educators, leaders, parents, etc. receive feedback from the system (e.g.
academic growth of students, professional practices of educators etc.)? Only by laying bare all
the intended outcomes of the system and the target “audience’ for each can developers ensure
design decisions are made that support these outcomes.

Next, the state should identify the indicators that are central to supporting the goals and
outcomes of the system. This is likely to include the academic performance of students, which,
as noted previously, is much more difficult to address in content areas where a series of
technically defensible, standardized, summative assessments are not administered. It may also
include qualitative measures of educator performance such as observations of instructional
practices, peer ratings, or surveys. In each case, it is important to determine what information is
needed to support the claims and uses, whether this information can be obtained in a manner that
is not overly burdensome to schools and systems, and if this information is likely to be
sufficiently credible to support the intended claims.

Once the potential indicators are selected the next step is to determine how the information will
be used to produce outcomes. This involves selecting a growth model and resolving the requisite
specifications and decisions about the model (see growth section in this document for more
detailed treatment of this topic.) It also involves determining how much weight or influence will
be given to certain indicators (e.g. will qualitative evaluations count more, less, or about the
same as academic performance indicators?). Whether to combine indicators both within and
across categories is also resolved in the design phase. Yet another prominent design decision
involves setting performance standards. This defines the minimum expectation for adequate
performance or how well an educator must perform to attain designations intended to reward
exemplary performance or that signal performance that is below standards. Finally, in the design
phase it is important to identify mechanisms that are likely to bolster the reliability and validity
of outcomes. For example, using results that reflect an average over multiple years may be
regarded as preferable to a single year to enhance reliability of results. Or, it may be necessary
to adopt different rules or procedures for educators in certain schools or class environments, such
as those teaching in alternative schools.

In order to make the best decisions about the suitability of the model, including identification of
trustworthy indicators and appropriate design decisions, it is critical to engage in ongoing data
analysis. These analyses should include a review of the distribution of outcomes for all proposed
reporting units and aggregated to various summary levels. Special attention should be given to
examining results based on differences in student populations (e.g. are results different for
educators in schools serving a high percentage of impoverished students?) and based on
differences in indicators (e.g. are results substantially different for selected grade or content
areas?). All indicators should be carefully piloted and results should be investigated for
reasonableness and compared to any credible existing information to assess the validity of
outcomes. For example, if a pilot of peer surveys or a trial of proposed observations of
instructional effectiveness reveals little variation in outcomes (i.e. all or nearly all teachers are
rated effective) then the credibility of the indicator is called into question. This may necessitate

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012 60



removing or changing indicators, reweighting model components, and/or adjusting performance
expectations.

Finally, a comprehensive implementation plan should include a process for ongoing monitoring,
evaluation, and support. This includes but goes beyond producing impact analyses as described
in the previous stage. In addition to examining year to year changes in outcomes, the evaluation
plan should investigate the claims and assumptions in the theory of action. For example, are
educators and leaders using the information to improve practice? Are rewards effective
incentives? Are remediation and support strategies effective in improving outcomes? A
systematic process to collect evidence and evaluate model claims will help state leaders identify
refinements to the model to improve effectiveness.

Student Accountability Considerations

Introduction

Senate File 70 directs the State Board of Education to review an alternative to the current body
of evidence system with a goal of replacing the current BOE system for school year 2012-2013.
The legislature directed the SBE to consider using end-of-course (EOC) tests that could be used
as an alternative to the Body of Evidence (BOE). Since the BOE is a student accountability
system designed to determine if students are eligible for high school graduation, we assume that
the EOC tests are expected to support graduation decisions. In this section we discuss some
considerations for creating/modifying a high school graduation system.

First, we note that it is beyond the scope of this report to make specific recommendations about a
student accountability system since this issue was addressed only peripherally by the Select and
Advisory Committees. Rather, we outline the steps necessary for creating an EOC-based student
accountability system and highlight key considerations for the Select Committee and other
stakeholders. In the course of revising the current graduation system, subsequent legislation
should define a process for making critical decisions about the various components of such a
system. This legislation should explicitly articulate the degree to which the new legislation is
replacing or working within the context of existing Wyoming graduation statutes (W.S. 21-2-304
and the State Board Chapter 31 Rules). This process should undoubtedly include key
stakeholders, as part of a design committee, such as local school board members, district and
school leaders, teachers, guidance counselors, businesspeople, higher education representatives,
and students. These stakeholders should be guided through a process where they can wrestle with
the following key components of developing a student graduation accountability system:

e Definition of a Wyoming graduate

e Knowledge, skills, and dispositions

e Accountability Decisions

e Assessment system

e Support and Interventions

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012 61



What is a Wyoming Graduate?

The most critical aspect of developing a student graduation accountability system is to define a
Wyoming high school graduate. The design committee should spend appropriate time
developing this description and likely should solicit significant input prior to moving forward.
Ideally, the goal is to develop a shared understanding of what it means to be a Wyoming high
school graduate.

The next step in the process is to describe the knowledge, skills, and dispositions (perhaps) that
further specify the definition of a Wyoming graduate. These are often the high school content
standards in the various subject areas. But if things like dispositions (e.g., persistence) are
included, the design committee should specify these non-content areas such that students,
parents, and teachers are clear for what students are being held accountable. The design
committee should also wrestle very important considerations such as how well the students need
to perform on the standards in order to graduate and whether or not students should have to
perform up to these expectations on all standards or content areas, a targeted set (core) of content
areas, or some combination of these two possibilities. Of course, there are other possibilities that
must be determined by this committee.

A Process for Thinking About Student Accountability

While SF 70 recommends that the State Board consider implementing an EOC system to
potentially replace the current BOE system, it was silent on many important details. Before
designing an EOC assessment system, the design committee, State Board, and perhaps the
legislature will need to define the accountability rules of the graduation system. This follows
naturally from the discussion of the required/expected knowledge, skills, and dispositions. There
are many such accountability and assessment decisions to be made, including:

e What framework or approach will be used to organize the EOC exams?
Which courses will include a state EOC exam?
Which standards will the tests be designed to measure?
What are the participation rules for any or all of the exams?
At what level should the passing scores be set?
What consequences will be associated with the results?
Will retesting be included? How many opportunities?
Can other sources of evidence replace EOC scores?
Will there be an appeal process for students not meeting graduation standards on the
testing system?
e How will the system address issues of student mobility?

The SBE and the design committee will first need to define a framework for organizing the EOC
exams™. It is doubtful that the legislature intended to authorize creating EOC exams in every
possible high school course. W.S. 21-2-304 and Chapter 31 required that students meet

1 For more information on state practices and alternatives relative to using EOC tests in accountability see:
Domaleski, C.S. (2011). State End of Course Tests: A Policy Brief. Paper commissioned by the Council of Chief
State School Officers Technical Issues in Large Scale Assessment State Collaborative on Assessment and Student
Standards.

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012 62



standards in all nine content areas included in the “basket of goods.” Even though this narrows
the range of possibilities from all possible courses to an exam or set of exams in each of nine
content areas, this will still be a significant expense and will require considerable resources
within WDE and LEAs to successfully implement such a system. Therefore, we are interpreting
SF 70 to mean that the EOC should focus on key courses within the four core subject areas of
mathematics, science, social students, and English language arts.

With guidance from the Select Committee, the design committee will need to identify the
courses for which EOC exams will be created. However, existing rules require that students
demonstrate proficiency in five of the nine content areas. Therefore, existing statute and rules
will need to be amended or these EOC exams will have to fit within the existing Chapter 31
framework. For example, all or some of the EOC exams could be required components in each
district’s Body of Evidence system. Having such a framework will help with decisions about
whether students will be required to pass any or all of these exams in order to graduate.

The current Wyoming content standards, as well as the Common Core State Standards (CCSS),
are domain-based and not tied to specific courses. However, in order develop EOC exams, it
will be important to identify the eligible content and skills for each of the exams. This might
mean simply identifying existing current standards that will be tested in each of the courses or
developing content frameworks specific to each course. In either case, it will be critical to the
validity of the exams and to the transparency of the system for the State to explicitly identify the
eligible knowledge and skills for each of the exams.

Once decisions are made about the courses for which the EOC exams will be developed and
what they will measure, the design committee must determine the participation rules for the
various exams. For example, will all students be required to take all courses for which there is
an EOC exam and/or will all students enrolled in an EOC course be required to participate in the
exam?

In addition to expected consequences associated with these exams (i.e., they will count towards
graduation decisions), there are other decisions to be made related to consequences. For
example, will students be expected to pass the exams in order to pass the course, will the exams
be required to carry a specific weight in the course grade, or will the decisions about how the
EOC exams will factor into course grades be left up to locals? Any decision to count the EOC
exams as any part of the course grade will have important implications for the timing of the
testing window and required turnaround time for scoring. As noted above, situating these
decisions within a larger framework (e.g., BOE) will lead to more coherent policy.

If there are consequences associated with individual exams (e.g., passing the course or if students
are expected to pass a specific set of exams to graduate), the design committee and policy
makers must deal with the issue of retesting. Essentially all states that use exam-based
approaches to graduation decisions permit at least one, and often many, retest attempts. If the
exams are to count in course grades, this raises many tricky logistical and fairness issues. But
even if the exams are not included in course grades, the issue of retesting can be much more

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012 63



challelrzlging when dealing with EOC exams compared to a more common end-of-high school
exam™.

The issues of alternate sources of evidence and potential appeal processes are somewhat related
to the retesting issue. The design committee and policy leaders will have to determine if other
sources of evidence (e.g., portfolios or projects) can substitute for any or all EOC exams. If so, a
design committee and policy leaders would have to decide if such alternatives should be
available to all students or just certain groups of students (e.g., special education, ELL, migrant).
Additionally, it will be prudent to plan for an appeal process for students who do not meet
graduation requirements. Related to the alternate evidence issue, the design and policy
committees will need to decide how to handle students who move into Wyoming after any or all
of these exams are typically offered. A likely approach will be to use the student’s transcript to
provide “alternate” evidence that the student met or did not meet the graduation evidence
represented by specific EOC exams. Again, it makes sense to address these major policy issues
within a larger graduation requirement framework.

Relationship to the Full Assessment System

Current practice in Wyoming involves administering one assessment in high school for each
reading, mathematics, science, and writing. If an EOC testing system was implemented, it would
make little sense to continue to administer the end of domain tests as is current practice, but to
rely on the EOC system to serve as the school and educator accountability assessments for high
school. The Advisory committee should study and make recommendations about how best to
use the EOC tests in the school and educator accountability systems.

A Process Note

As illustrated above, there are many thorny issues to address in the design of a student
accountability system. To that end, we recommend that the current Advisory Committee, along
with perhaps some additional ad hoc members, be invited to serve as the basis for a design
committee that reports to the State Board of Education.

12 Note: We are definitely not recommending a single set of end-of-high school exams, but just pointing out the
contrast.

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012 64



SECTION IV: SUPPORT, CAPACITY BUILDING, AND CONSEQUENCES
Support, Interventions, and Capacity Building

The Advisory Committee recognizes that an accountability system is only valuable if it leads to,
or at least facilitates improvement in both student and school results. The accountability system
itself cannot improve student and school achievement, but it should be designed to both
incentivize the “right” behaviors and provide results that are specific and informative enough
such that school leaders and other stakeholders can learn about the educational aspects under
their control that might need improvement. One of the things we know well from educational
psychology is that task-specific feedback is more likely to lead to improved performance than
general feedback. We have no reason to believe that organizations would act differently than
individuals in terms of the response to specific or general feedback. This section of the
accountability framework, based on extensive discussions and input from the Advisory
committee, describes some of the supports and interventions necessary to realize the type of
improvement and level of achievement envisioned by Wyoming policy makers. While it is
tempting to collapse all supports and interventions into a single topic, the Advisory Committee
recognizes that it is important to address each of the following levels in a comprehensive support
system:

» Support/intervention for low performing students

» Support/mentoring for teachers needing to improve

o Induction for new teachers and leaders
Support/mentoring for school leaders
Capacity building for schools and districts with lower than acceptable levels of
achievement or growth
Capacity building for the state as a whole to support continuous improvement
The role of institutions of higher education in building capacity and preparation
especially in terms of P-16 coordination
Further, the Advisory Committee recognizes that several aspects of such a support/capacity
building system are already provided for in the school funding formula. The committee,
however, strongly suggests that these aspects of support/improvement be addressed
comprehensively along with the development of an accountability framework.

VV VY

Elmore is quite eloquent and persuasive in outlining at least one aspect of the challenges we face.
While there is little talk of “stakes” in the sense of what we commonly think of as high stakes
(e.g., takeovers, firing school leaders), the labels placed on schools via the reporting of
accountability system results and the public dissemination of such results are seen as stakes by
many in the system. Our charge is becoming clearer. We must insist on a system that allows
schools to develop the capacity they need to affect the instructional core. Just as we have argued
for formative assessment to help students know where they stand relative to key standards, we
also need tools to assess the capacity of schools to enact key reforms and interventions. EImore
(2004) reminds us of the challenge we face in our work:

Hence, stakes work, if they work at all, by mobilizing and expanding capacities in

high-capacity schools and creating potential demand for capacities outside the

organization in low-capacity schools. In the latter case, if there are no capacities

to bring to the organization, there is little reason to expect the organization to do

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012 65



anything other than to make incremental adjustments to already unsuccessful

practices (p. 289).
In this 2004 chapter, EImore goes on to outline five principles of accountability system design.
While all of the principles are worth considering, the fifth principle is especially pertinent to the
work of the Advisory Committee.

The fifth principle is the reciprocity of accountability and capacity—for each

increment in performance | require of you, | have an equal and reciprocal

responsibility to provide you with the capacity to produce that kind of

performance (p. 294).
It is important to think of this as a multi-level challenge. For example, the “I”” could be the
teacher and the “you” could be their student(s). Similarly, the “I”” could be the principal and the
“you” could be the teachers, and so on. The point is clear. Each level of the system that is
imposing any sort of accountability on the level below is responsible for providing the capacity
for that level to succeed.

Building Capacity in Wyoming Schools

Given this framework for thinking about accountability and capacity, we discuss the multiple
levels of capacity needs, starting from the students and working up to the state level. This is not
the place to present a definitive plan for capacity building at all levels of the accountability
system. Rather, our goal here is to outline the key considerations for each of the levels and to
argue that the State convene appropriate advisory groups and relevant agency personnel to
develop detailed plans (including cost ramifications) for addressing these issues in the context of
a comprehensive accountability system.

Capacity Building for Schools and Districts

Given that accountability system is focused first at the school level, improving the capacity of
schools will require considerable effort and support. The accountability system itself must be
designed to incentivize appropriate activities, but as importantly, must yield information that
school leaders and educators can understand and use to help identify areas in need of
improvement. As with students, information must be specific to the particular initiative and
focal area. Information should also be presented for current and multiple years to avoid having
schools act on what might not be reliable yearly information.

Further, the accountability system should be focused on the highest leverage indicators, in terms
of bringing about significant improvement in the rates of college and career readiness. This does
not preclude the reporting system from including a broad array of process and outcome
indicators. However, the accountability system should help schools develop a clear focus on
those indicators deemed to be most important. This would send a clear message to schools about
what is most valued and what levels of performance are deemed acceptable. If designed well,
the reporting system should allow the schools and perhaps capacity building personnel to use this
additional information to help improve performance on the accountability indicators. In other
words, the information included in the reporting system should be linked through a theory of
action to the accountability indicators. For example, we discussed holding schools accountable
for graduation rates, but including credit accumulation at the end of 9™ grade in the reporting
system because of its clear link to the accountability indicator.

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012 66



We must ask in terms of capacity building about additional support and capacity building needs
required by schools beyond those targeted for teachers and school leaders. It can be argued that
schools are simply collections of individuals, so that if we focus on students, teachers, and
principals, is there any need to worry about building “school capacity?” We argue that just like
if both spouses in a marriage pursue counseling as individuals, there is generally still a need to
pursue marriage counseling to address “system” issues. Similarly, we argue that the system
issues of a school should be addressed as well.

The capacity building needs for schools could be considerable and highly varied. Therefore, an
effective set of supports organized at the district, regional, and/or state level should be able to
differentially respond to the varied needs of schools. This suggests a more nuanced approach
than simply having all schools follow the same school improvement steps. A regional approach
that included some sort of intermediate level service agency with enough capacity to adjust to the
varied and multiple needs of schools could be one approach for increasing school capacity in
WY. However, many states have such agencies (e.g., BOCES) and it would be worth careful
study of these intermediate agencies in other states to identify the most effective organizational
and educational strategies before adopting such an approach in Wyoming.

Schools have specific cultures and high functioning schools have cultures where data are used to
identify goals, design interventions and strategies, create or select tools for monitoring the
progress toward goals, evaluate the success at meeting the goals and then starting the cycle
again. This problem identification, hypothesis testing, and evaluation is the work of high
performing schools and the work that we hope becomes enculturated in all schools. The
advantage of this hypothesis-testing approach is that it quickly moves away from a central focus
on a one size fits all solution, but helps to build the capacity so that schools and districts develop
the tools and techniques to address a range of problems that might be faced by schools.

Support/intervention for low performing students

Students will perform “poorly” for a variety of reasons and conditions. The first step is to be
clear about what we mean by “poor performance.” Even taking a simplistic definition of poor
performance, such as scoring below proficient on PAWS, leads us quickly into a myriad of
possible diagnostic and intervention paths. While the information available from a summative
assessment is necessarily limited in terms of student diagnosis, the inclusion of student
longitudinal growth results can allow the school to determine if the student is low achieving,
growing slowly (relative to peers), or both. However, schools will need considerably more fine-
grained information to be able to better understand students’ strengths and weaknesses if they
want to implement systematic approaches for improving student learning. First, schools should
not be waiting until the summative assessment results are returned at the end of the school year
or in the summer to find out that students are performing below expectations. Additionally, it is
highly unlikely that a two or three times per year “benchmark adaptive assessment” will provide
specific and frequent enough information for diagnosing and monitoring student achievement.
Schools will need to implement systematic approaches for helping students improve their
performance, including (but not limited to):

e Appropriate support and interventions for special education and English language

learners,

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012 67



e Formative and classroom assessment tools useful for ongoing progress monitoring and
interventions,
e Employing a Response-to-Interventions (RTI) or similarly systematic approach for
diagnosis, intervention, and monitoring,
¢ Differentiated instruction within classrooms and additional support services outside of
classrooms for targeted instructional areas, and
e Creating “extra time” opportunities such as after school and summer school enrichment
opportunities.
Any of these approaches should work to encourage the development of student agency and
metacognitive strategies so that students develop internal capacity to learn to help themselves. Of
course, a discussion of supports for students leads quickly to the recognition that, as EImore
noted, high-performing schools already have the capacity to address many or all of these
examples of student supports, whereas low-capacity schools do not. This can really be viewed as
a problem solving or hypothesis testing enterprise in that the first step is to figure out the
problems, pose strategies, and find the capacity to address the problems. This really should be
seen as the work of schools and not as extra work.

Support/Mentoring for Teachers Needing to Improve

Many of the approaches highlighted above for students assume that a high quality teacher will be
in place to provide such services. As Elmore indicated, unless something shifts in the
instructional core, student learning is unlikely to improve. Teachers have the major
responsibility for improving the quality of the core, but many need help to enact the high quality
instruction needed to bring about high levels of student learning. This is especially critical if
expectations are to be increased such that all students leave high school ready for college or
careers. Further, if Wyoming adopts the Common Core State Standards (CCSS), the need to
raise curricular and instructional expectations will be immediately apparent. The accountability
system must then provide information that is specific enough to enable schools and teachers
identify strengths and weaknesses for targeting improvement efforts.

The Wyoming school funding model currently includes provisions for an instructional coach at
each (or most) buildings. This is certainly a good start towards building increased capacity
among Wyoming’s teachers. Further, while having such a resource in each building would be
considered a luxury in many states, it will likely not be enough to raise performance to levels
heretofore not seen in most states. It has been well documented that many or even most teachers
lack the content and pedagogical content knowledge to engage students in tasks that require
students to wrestle with complex subject matter. There will need to be considerable training and
support to help Wyoming teachers fully understand the curricular and instructional ramifications
of the CCSS. While much of this support must happen locally, it would make considerable sense
to capitalize on collective resources and expertise to help meet this enormous need.

In addition to the professional development work that must occur for existing teachers, there
needs to be a considerable improvement in the quality of new educators coming out of teacher
education programs. Once these new teachers enter the workforce, schools and districts need to
support the continued development of these novice teachers with high quality mentoring and
induction systems for new teachers and leaders.

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012 68



Support/Mentoring for School Leaders

Most school reform leaders argue that a school leader is the linchpin of educational
improvement. While it is possible for schools to be somewnhat effective with a less-than-
effective leader, it is almost impossible for a school to be effective with an ineffective leader.
Similarly, an effective leader does not guarantee an effective school, but it certainly improves its
chances. To hammer this point further, KIPP Schools, the highly successful charter
organization, will not open a new school unless it has a well-trained principal to lead that school.
Unfortunately, public schools do not have the luxury of waiting to open schools until a high
quality principal is in place. This heightens the need to ensure that current principals receive the
training and support they need to become highly effective instructional leaders and to improve
the pre-service training provided to principal candidates before they can lead schools.

There is a pressing need to improve the capacity of school leaders in Wyoming and in most other
states. Unfortunately, there are few, high quality opportunities in Wyoming to improve the
capacity of current and future schools leaders. The isolated nature of schooling in Wyoming
does not help the situation. Wyoming’s John P. Ellbogen Leadership and Advocacy Institute is
one notable professional learning opportunity for current and future school leaders, but it is not
enough. A much more systematic approach will be required to recruit, train, mentor, and support
current and future school leaders. In particular, district superintendents need training on how
best to identify, train, and mentor new leaders.

There are several models on which to draw, led by the work of the Wallace Foundation,
Interstate School Leaders Licensure Consortium (ISLLIC), and others, but it will be important to
design a school leadership training and support network tailored to Wyoming’s context.
Additionally, the University of Wyoming will need to be engaged as the primary institution for
providing pre-service education to prospective school leaders.

Capacity Building for the State as a Whole to Support Continuous Improvement

It is one thing to consider support and capacity building for individual schools, but given the
goals associated with the proposed accountability system, the capacity building to meet these
accountability goals will require a different form of support never seen before. Therefore, it does
not make sense to operate in a reactive mode whereby the State or other provider tries to rush
around the state putting out *“spot fires.” Rather, the state-level approach should be much more
proactive by identifying the highest-leverage and highest-need topics on which to target the
capacity building at the state level. If we think about the state as a system, systems can get
smarter by aggregating the knowledge gained. Somehow, the knowledge gained from working at
both the micro (school/classroom) and macro (region/state) levels needs to be aggregated and
shared so that all in the state may benefit. One way to think about a reformed capacity building
approach is to take seriously Elmore’s 4™ and 6™ principles of the Instructional Core:

Principle #4: Task predicts performance.

Principle #6: We learn to do the work by doing the work. Not by telling other

people to do the work, not by having done the work at some time in the past, and

not by hiring.
In the case of building statewide educational improvement capacity, we should think of “task”
more broadly than intended by EImore’s original formulation as an instructional or assessment
tasks that leads students into profound interactions with meaningful content and skills. However,

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012 69



we do not need to stray from this formulation too far. The tasks could be those sorts of activities
and products that bring teachers and leaders into “profound interactions” with meaningful school
improvement activities such as using data to inform decisions or creating strategies for
improving the quality and rigor of mathematics instruction. Elmore’s sixth principle, we learn
by doing, applies to adults as well as to students (perhaps even more so!). Therefore, the state
needs to structure professional learning opportunities that are far removed from the typical “sit
and get” professional development sessions.

One approach, that could be done regionally or at the state level, would involve creating
networks of schools and districts interested in working on a particular issue or challenge. The
Body of Evidence (BOE) Activities Consortium serves as one stellar example of a network of
districts that came together to produce an important set of products, but more importantly, to
increase the learning of the participants by doing the work! For those who do not remember or
have come to the state more recently, the BOE consortium was a network that at its peak
included essentially all districts as fully participating members, had full support (and leadership
during the early years) from WDE, and high quality expert consultants. All three pieces were
critical to the success, and we should be mindful that all pieces either need to be in place in the
formation of any new networks or we should have a clear and defensible rationale for suggesting
modifications to this approach. This is not to say that there is any single approach that will work
well to improve system capacity, but we should be thoughtful in what is suggested, especially in
terms of any apparent shortcuts. On the other hand, lest we appear too parochial, we would be
wise to recognize some great success in capacity building examples from other states and
countries. Massachusetts is one state that comes to mind from which we might find some good
examples, but the experiences from Queensland, Australia, Ontario, Canada, and Finland all bear
examining.

The main point of this discussion is to emphasize that the State needs to design and implement a
well-conceived strategy in order to significantly raise the levels of achievement across the state.
This strategy must be comprehensive and have the resources (especially in terms of expert
leadership and support) allocated to support and sustain these initiatives. The Advisory
Committee recommends that the State require and support a capacity-building advisory task
force to help design a structure (or structures) for significantly increasing the capacity among
educational personnel, institutions, and ultimately students in the state of Wyoming.

A large scale initiative to support educational improvement in Wyoming must follow a well-
articulated theory of action, which the Advisory Committee recommends building around at least
the following four principles:

1. Increasing student learning and minimizing achievement gaps is primarily a function of
increased engagement and improving instructional quality.

2. Instructional quality depends on increasing the expertise of teachers and leaders which
requires more open, public practice.

3. Instructional quality can only be improved when leaders know what quality instruction
looks like and use that knowledge to support ongoing improvements e.g. the fundamental
purpose of educational leadership is the improvement of instruction with everything else
being instrumental to that purpose.

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012 70



4. All system practices and structures must support the ongoing improvement of instruction
which must be a focus of the system (Fink and Markholt, 2011).

The Advisory Committee has discussed some potential approaches to address these
challenges internally, but in order to move forward, more input from a variety of Wyoming
educational stakeholders is required. The primary goal would be to link and connect the
various entities in the state to develop a systemic, statewide capacity development plan
including the University, WDE, districts and other organizations who have an interest in this
issue. Therefore, we suggest the following steps to address the capacity needs in Wyoming:

1. Create and convene a broad-based Technical Advisory committee of stakeholders,
including members of the Advisory Committee, and outside experts who have done this
type of work in other countries, states, and organizations. The point here is that it takes
expertise to create expertise, so we need experts who have done this at large scale.

2. Conduct a comprehensive needs assessment by surveying district and school leaders,
teachers, parents and others. Additionally, analyses of existing school and state
performance data as well as other forms of documentation should be examined and
contribute to this needs assessment. This would help identify specific problems of
practice to focus on especially in the areas required by the accountability legislation.

3. Conduct a survey of existing capacity within Wyoming and then conduct a “gap analysis”
to determine the gap between current needs and current capacity.

4. Use the Technical Advisory Committee to review the needs and capacity assessments and
design approaches to build the necessary capacity across the state.

5. If the decision is that there is not enough internal capacity within WY to solve these
challenges, determine the best way to secure external capacity-building support within
Wyoming, such as through the RFP process or some other approach.

6. Report to the Select Committee during the next interim to determine the best way to
significantly improve the educational capacity of Wyoming’s leaders and teachers.

The Advisory Committee strongly supports the calls for enhanced accountability. However, as
noted elsewhere in this report, we recognize that accountability alone will not result in the
increased student learning desired by the legislature. The accountability indicators will certainly
signal the desired levels of performance, but will not necessarily change the underlying dynamic
of intrinsic motivation, skills and knowledge (e.g. capacity) necessary on a collective level to
improve performance to the scale necessary.

The Relationship of Consequences (Response) and Supports

As discussed throughout this document, consequences cannot bring about the change envisioned
by the policy makers without serious attention to support and capacity. The nature of
consequences associated with the accountability system will discussed more completely in
another section of this report. The discussion here focuses specifically on the relationship
between consequences and supports.

If we are building a system that is truly focused on school improvement then it has to be more
than consequence driven, in the typical sense of the word. Under performing schools should be
provided targeted professional development to build the skill set of the teachers and
administrators first, then if that is not enough then targeted intervention programs for students

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012 71



and technical assistance should be provided. When a student struggles we do not punish them,
but engage them in a series of increasingly intense interventions designed to improve their
performance. Why should it be any different for teachers and schools? But, just like with
students any assistance provided to schools must be based upon data, and monitored for progress
towards the target goals.

The Advisory Committee recommended that consequences for schools should be framed in the
context of necessary and available supports and, as noted above, the performance designations
are linked to increasing levels of required support. These consequences also should be linked
with district accreditation, to the extent possible. While the general class of interventions,
supports, and improvement goals should be outlined in the accountability system, the committee
recommended that specific the accreditation targets and yearly or even multi-year improvement
goals should be developed through a collaborative process between the school (district) and the
state. This approach may help develop and support more internal capacity within schools and
districts and lead to greater overall capacity statewide in the long term.

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012 72



SECTION V: VALIDITY AND OTHER TECHNICAL ISSUES

This section of the report encompasses several key concerns related to the development and
implementation of a standards-based accountability system. The major focus of this system is on
the design of an accountability validity framework. Such a framework would guide the
implementation of an evaluation of the accountability to make sure that it is functioning as
intended and not leading to unintended negative consequences. Further, since the proposed
accountability systems are based largely on standards-based assessment, this section begins with
a discussion of the desirable characteristics and important validity concerns of both standards
and assessments. Even though we present this section last, it is by no means least.

Standards: The Foundation of the System

This is called “standards-based” reform for a reason. The foundation of the system is the content
standards that define what students are expected to know and do and the achievement (also
called performance) standards that define how well students are expected to demonstrate
understanding of the content standards. The goals of the accountability system implicitly invoke
the use of content standards that will allow Wyoming policy makers to determine if, in fact,
Wyoming students are reaching these goals. The first goal of having Wyoming become a
national leader among states demands having a valid basis for making such comparisons. NAEP
is typically used as a method of such judgments. There are many shortcomings with this
approach, but the major problem is that NAEP results are not available at the district or school
level. Further, even if NAEP was available at the district level, one would have to evaluate
whether one district scored better than another because the higher scoring district’s curriculum
happened to match the NAEP framework more closely or because they were truly providing a
better education. Using common standards would eliminate the first potential hypothesis to
explain such score differences. Therefore, if policy makers and others want to compare
Wyoming’s performance with that of other states, having common standards makes such
comparisons more plausible.

Wyoming policy makers indicated that having students leave Wyoming high schools college or
career ready was a critical goal for implementing a comprehensive accountability system.

Having content standards that define college and career readiness is essential if policy makers are
serious about this goal and it is unfair to expect schools to meet this goal if there were no
standards to serve as a guide for where educators need to aim. Further, the Select Committee
members indicated significant concern with the levels of remediation required for Wyoming
students in postsecondary institutions. Having content standards that help close the expectations
gap between the end of high school and the beginning of postsecondary studies is critical so that
students have a clear sense of expectations and educators have a similar understanding.
Therefore, the Advisory Committee unanimously recommended that the State of Wyoming adopt
the Common Core State Standards (CCSS). While there might be some legitimate concerns
about the lack of control over the standards, the Advisory Committee felt that any concerns were
far outweighed by both the high quality of the CCSS and for the reasons mentioned above.

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012 73



Assessment Characteristics

The assessment system is the next leg of the standards-based accountability system and is critical
in that it provides a great deal of the data for use in the accountability system. While a valid
assessment system is necessary for having a valid accountability system, it is not sufficient
because of the many other sources of data and decision rules that compromise accountability
systems. Nevertheless, Wyoming policy and educational leaders should strive to have the
highest quality assessment system possible to support accountability decisions. Therefore, we
present specific considerations and criteria to bolster the likelihood that these assessments will
support valid accountability decisions. We highlight only a few considerations here, because
there are other important documents*? that should guide the development of state accountability
assessments.

Technical Characteristics

There are many technical characteristics of assessments important to the development of a valid
accountability system all centered on supporting the validity of the inferences we draw from test
scores, but we focus primarily on alignment, including rigor, reliability, and linking.

Alignment

Alignment, or the degree to which the test adequately measures the required content, is a critical
technical issue for an accountability assessment. This falls under a fairness and transparency
principle because those being held accountable (students, educators, school systems) should have
a clear understanding of the knowledge and skills for which they are being held accountable.
Alignment can get quite complex, but basically alignment is the degree to which test questions
measure specific grade-level knowledge and skills represented by the content standards that
teachers are expected to teach and students are expected to learn. Moreover, the degree to which
the full set of grade-level standards is appropriately sampled by the assessment should be
addressed in independent alignment studies. This “two-way” approach to alignment is important
because many tests may claim alignment simply because the test questions match specific
content standards even though important aspects of the standards are left untested.

If the content and performance standards are designed to represent college and career ready
expectations, the assessments must also represent these expected outcomes. Any content and
performance standards purportedly targeted to college/career readiness, and certainly the
Common Core State Standards, demand demonstrations of complex thinking from students if
they are, in fact, going to be declared “ready.” Therefore, the accountability assessments used in
Wyoming must be able to measure students’ depth of understanding much more so than they do
now. Doing this will require that a significant proportion of the test questions rely on formats

 The Standards are considered the “bible” and are more formally known at the Standards for
Educational and Psychological Testing (American Educational Research Association, American
Psychological Association, & National Council on Measurement in Education. (1999). Standards for
educational and psychological testing. Washington, DC: American Educational Research Association).
Additionally, the United States Department of Education’s Guidance for the peer review of state
standards and assessment system is another important set of criteria, but based in large part on the
Standards.

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012 74



such as constructed response items and performance tasks where students are expected to
generate their own responses and often provide a substantial explanation for their solution or
response.

Reliability

Reliability, or the degree to which the test score can be expected to be consistent over time or
over a different sample of items that represent the same domain, is a critical dimension of test
quality, especially for accountability assessments. Reliability is simply the quantification of the
error associated with any measurement. The Standards and the USED peer review guidance
provide extensive detail about reliability and we will not go into great detail about reliability
here. We briefly describe, instead, the importance of having a test that is fairly reliable across
the full score distribution. If the main purpose of the assessment was to document whether or not
students reached a specific cutscore (e.g., proficient), then it is really only important for the test
to be reliable in the region of this cutscore. On the other hand, if the assessment is intended to
provide useful information about all students and, most importantly, if it is designed to support
growth measurement for students, the test should be fairly reliable throughout most of the score
scale. This notion of reliability at specific scores is better discussed as the Conditional
(conditioned on the particular test score) Standard Error of Measurement (CSEM). Tests used to
support growth determinations do not have to possess equally low CSEM across the entire score
distribution, but the CSEM at the high and low ends of the grade level achievement distribution
should not be dramatically greater than the CSEM in the middle of the distribution. This
requires that the test contain questions with a range of difficulty (the addition of open-response
questions can help with this) and contains enough questions to support reliable inferences.

Scaling and Linking

While it is important that the test contains fairly low CSEM across the score scale, it is also
important that the test does not have noticeable floor or ceiling effects. There is little doubt that
fixed-form tests like most state assessments will have some students at the very highest and
lowest scores possible. This does not pose a problem for accountability. However, it could
cause challenges with growth determinations if there are noticeable percentages (e.g., 2% or
more) of students scoring at the lowest or highest score on the tests. This will generally be more
of a problem at the upper end of the performance distribution because as long as the test includes
some multiple-choice questions, low achieving students are able to benefit slightly from chance
and avoid scoring at the very lowest possible score. The range of item difficulty influences the
highest and lowest possible scores, but decisions on how to scale tests can play a significant role
as well. Scaling is the process of transforming the raw scores (the number of questions students
answered correctly) to a scale that has more meaning across uses beyond that specific test form.
Score scales are useful for communicating about acceptable levels of performance (e.qg.,
proficiency) across test forms and occasions. Therefore, Wyoming should ensure that its tests
are scaled appropriately to avoid floor and ceiling effects.

A meaningful and defensible score scale is certainly important to the success of the assessment
and accountability system, but ensuring the specific test scores and/or achievement standards
(proficiency) are comparable across test forms, especially across years is one of the most
important aspects of the technical quality of accountability assessments. The process of linking,
which represents a family of techniques that includes score equating, is how testing experts can

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012 75



state that a score of 200, for example, from 2010 has the same meaning as a score of 200 from
2011 even though the students from the two years did not take the same tests. The details of
linking are too complex to discuss in this report, other than to say that linking and equating are
complex enough that many testing contractors make errors in equating procedures that lead to
unexpected declines or improvements in performance over years. The problems with linking are
usually detected in the case of these unexpected score changes. What is more troublesome are
the many cases where the score changes were not large enough to raise alarms. In this case,
errors could accumulate over time and seriously threaten the validity of the accountability
system. Therefore, as part of any testing contract, Wyoming must ensure that equating results
produced by the main test contractor are verified by another equating expert either through a
review of the procedures and results (a minimal level of quality assurance) to a full replication of
the equating procedure (the maximum level of quality assurance).

Other Assessment Considerations

The testing industry has developed a sound knowledge base and set of procedures to ensure that
the technical quality issues raised above are addressed appropriately. Of course, a third party,
such as a high-quality technical advisory committee, must verify that these issues are, in fact,
being addressed. There are other issues critical to the success of both the assessment and
learning systems that are not often addressed in technical evaluations. The most important issue
includes the role of a summative accountability assessment as part of a comprehensive
assessment system. As we discuss in more detail below, assessments generally can serve one or
two purposes well. If one tries to force an assessment to serve too many purposes, it means that
it will not serve any of them well. So how then can an assessment provide both accountability
and instructional information? It can’t! Therefore, a comprehensive assessment system is
required.

A comprehensive assessment system is one that includes assessments designed to serve multiple
purposes (e.g., accountability/summative, formative/instructional, predictive, evaluative) with
designs tailored appropriately for each purpose (Perie, Marion, & Gong, 2009). Again, this
report is not the forum to go into great detail about comprehensive assessment system, but we
discuss the role of a summative, accountability assessment in such a system. First, for a system
to be comprehensive and function well, it must be coherent. What do we mean by coherence
when it comes to the various assessments in a system? At a minimum the assessments must be
targeted toward the same or at least purposely overlapping learning goals. Therefore, the
summative, interim (if used in the system), and formative assessments must focus on the same
learning goals or content standards. Of course, they can and should do so in different ways and
with differing levels of granularity, but it must be clear that all assessments in the system are
aiming at the same target. The summative, accountability assessment should go a step further
and signal or represent the type and depth of learning we expect to see represented in curriculum,
instruction, and in other assessments in the system. This signaling ensures coherence and helps
make clear the expectation for learning, especially depth of learning, required in other parts of
the system. To use a counter example, if the learning goals require students to solve complex
problems and demonstrate a depth of understanding, but the accountability assessment only
requires the demonstration of rote learning, it will not take long for the instruction to follow the
accountability pressure and lead to teaching of low level outcomes only. Therefore, Wyoming’s

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012 76



summative assessment system must include the types of problems and depth of understanding
that we expect to see in high performing Wyoming classrooms.

The High School Assessment System

An important consideration for the development of a comprehensive and coherent assessment
system is rapidly coming to light in discussions around the various assessment requirements for
high school students. The recommendations from the Select committee as well as existing
statute (SF 70) call for the use of “readiness” assessments including PLAN, EXPLORE, and
ACT. Additionally, SF 70 calls for the use of end-of-course (EOC) exams in select high school
course, to be determined in Phase Il of the accountability system development. Further, the use
of PAWS or replacement state assessment system will be required until WDE is able to receive
permission from the U.S. Department of Education to replace the use of PAWS for NCLB
accountability determinations with either components of the ACT Suite or select EOC exams.
Finally, the proposed requirement for benchmark adaptive testing, depending on the grade levels
ultimately determined, will add to the assessment burden at high school. Therefore, we
recommend convening an assessment planning committee comprised of WDE assessment
leaders, district and higher education representatives, and other stakeholders as appropriate to
create a comprehensive and coherent high school assessment system.

Accountability Uses of Benchmark Adaptive Assessment

Wyoming’s Senate File 70 authorized the use of benchmark computer adaptive testing to
measure student longitudinal growth as part of the state accountability system. Apparently the
intent of this provision was to broaden the accountability indicators beyond the state assessments
and to use a measure of growth that essentially all school districts in Wyoming were already
using. While this makes some intuitive sense, there are many concerns with this approach,
specifically:

» Using an assessment for a purpose for which it was not designed,

» Concerns with the technically quality of the particular benchmark assessment, and

» The loss of any instructional value of the benchmark assessment by shifting to an

accountability use.

These three concerns are all related and we briefly touch on each concern before offering some
recommendations. Further, while the law (SF 70) did not name a specific assessment company,
most involved in the legislation as well as observers acknowledge that Northwest Evaluation
Association’s (NWEA) Measures of Academic Progress (MAP) was the intended product
implied by the legislation. However, our remarks below are directed toward interim/benchmark
assessments in general.

Purposes and Uses

Perhaps the most important axiom in test design and evaluation is that the technical quality of
tests can be evaluated only in the context of the specific purposes for which the assessment is
intended to be used. For example, if an assessment is designed as an early warning indicator for
how students are likely to perform on the end-of-year state test, then it must be validated for that
purpose. Assuming the validity evidence is positive, that does not mean that the assessment is
also valid for a different purpose such as program evaluation. Validity evidence would need to
be gathered for additional purposes.

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012 77



Most test vendors report that their products are useful for evaluating programs, informing
instruction, and several other purposes. The validity evidence supporting any one of these
purported purposes may be available, but since there has been little independent evaluation of
almost all of these assessment systems and their reported benefits, one cannot demonstrate
conclusively that there is evidence to support claims about such assessments for instructional,
predictive, and/or evaluative purposes. On the other hand, accountability generally is not one of
the stated purposes of benchmark/interim assessments, especially high stakes accountability.
Therefore, little evidence would be available to support the accountability uses of any of these
assessments. To be fair, some of these assessments possess some qualities that could potentially
allow it to be used for accountability, but as described below, there are many shortcomings that
could challenge the validity of such uses.

Technical Quality

What is a minimum level of reliability required for an assessment? This is a question that
technical experts often are asked about assessments, but unfortunately, the answer is rarely clear
cut. Essentially all experts will note that the level of reliability depends on the uses. If the
assessment results are used to determine whether or not a student graduates from high school or
whether a teacher is rated as effective or ineffective, for just two examples, then the test must be
highly reliable. But if the results are just part of an ongoing set of information about how to
inform/modify instruction, then the results of any particular assessment are not as critical and
one could get by with lower levels of reliability. This is just an example, because the reliability
of many interim assessments tends to be quite adequate.

Alignment, as discussed above, is critical for ensuring the validity and fairness of an assessment.
We know of no independent alignment studies that have evaluated the degree to which any
potential interim/benchmark assessments are aligned with Wyoming’s content standards. For
obvious reasons, independent alignment studies are much more credible than studies conducted
by the test contractor. In fact, WDE and all other states were required to submit independent
alignment evidence of the state assessment (PAWS) to the U.S. Department of Education as part
of the federal peer review process.

The Center for Assessment has examined the alignment of state content standards (from other
states) and provided technical advice on such studies in other states. In all cases, we found that
claims that the test was fully aligned to the specific state’s standards were considerably
overblown. Further, all of the questions on most commercial interim/benchmark tests are
multiple-choice. Many researchers and others have made clear that to appropriately represent the
types of knowledge and skills called for by most state content standards (including WY),
questions where students have to generate and supply their own responses (constructed and
extended response questions) are needed. Therefore, the current crop of commercial
interim/benchmark assessments will be unlikely to meet important “depth of knowledge”
alignment requirements™ as long as it remains a fully multiple choice based assessment. This
problem will be exacerbated when Wyoming implements the Common Core State Standards

 \We recognize that the SF 70 requirement to eliminate all constructed response questions from PAWS creates
alignment problems from the state assessment as well.

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012 78



(CCSS), because these standards require students to demonstrate considerably deeper
understanding compared to most state assessments and this depth of knowledge should be
assessed with items that require students to generate their own responses.

Perhaps the most significant concern with the technical quality of most commercial interim
assessments is the generally low quality of the actual test items (questions). Adaptive tests are
those where the computer program selects the items for the students to answer based on prior
responses. The test stops according to a specific set of rules, but generally when the program has
honed in on an accurate estimate of a student’s achievement. Because it is critical to be
confident in the pre-established item difficulty and the degree to which the items fit the
theoretical model underlying the computer algorithm in this type of testing environment, the
specific statistical properties of the item are often privileged over other aspects of item quality.

In the past, commercial interim assessments have been criticized for low item quality (e.g.,
Shepard, 2006; Marion 2006), and while there is a chance that the item quality has improved, the
constraints around item development for the huge pool of items required for an adaptive test, will
likely mean that these assessments will suffer from lower quality items than custom designed
large-scale assessments. Some might argue that these concerns about item quality are
overblown, but if a test is to be used for accountability, especially educator accountability, policy
leaders do not want to have to defend justifiable complaints about low quality test items.

Campbell’s Law and Corruptibility

Much of what has been written above questioned the quality of the commercial benchmark
assessments for many reasons, but mostly for their use as a potential accountability assessment.
Even if we take at face value that these assessments provide instructional benefits—and there is
no doubt that many school and district leaders report this to be the case—then a quick way to
reduce any teaching and learning benefits of these assessments is to move them into an
accountability context. This is not to say that assessments lose all instructional potential if they
are used for accountability, but the fall-to-spring growth calculation used by some of these
benchmark test vendors could easily be corrupted if educators are held accountable for these
gains. Currently, educators have no vested interest in their students’ performance on the fall test,
but if educators and schools were accountable for the change in performance from fall to spring,
they would actually have an interest in having their students perform poorly on the fall test so
they could realize larger gains (all things being equal) on the spring test. This is just one
example. There are many other possibilities for corruption and the loss of instructional
usefulness if the benchmark assessments are employed for accountability purposes. To be fair,
this caveat applies to any accountability design built on fall to spring measures of learning gains.

Recommendations

The following two major recommendations flow logically from the concerns expressed above.
> Do not use any commercial interim assessment as an accountability test.
» Allow districts to purchase interim/benchmark or formative products if they choose, but
do not require the use of a single product. Districts should be able to choose based on
needs and uses.

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012 79



It should be clear by now that assessments designed for purposes other than accountability
should not be used for accountability decisions unless the assessment can be validated for such
uses. Interim and benchmark test vendors are generally not very specific about the intended
purposes of their assessments in order to appeal to as broad a market as possible, but even still,
very few, if any, interim/benchmark tests are marketed as accountability tests and validated for
these uses. Further, by using such tests for accountability, the users run the considerable risk of
giving up on the purported instructional benefits of these assessments. Therefore, there is little
rationale for having the State support (i.e., pay for) the using of a common benchmark or interim
assessment product.

The second recommendation follows directly from the first. The policy makers should certainly
allow district leaders to use their block grant funds to purchase an interim/benchmark assessment
program, support formative assessment initiatives, or create their own common assessment
program. There is a fair body of research supporting the use of formative assessment practices
for improving student learning, but there no such corpus of research supporting the use of
interim/benchmark assessments for these purposes. Considering this lack of research, it makes
little sense to advocate a specific interim assessment product or a particular model of use (e.g.,
administered three times per year). Rather, districts should be free to select the model that they
think will work best for their context and needs, evaluate the efficacy of such a model in their
districts, and adjust the testing program if necessary.

Evaluation of the Accountability System

In addition to evaluating the technical characteristics of the assessments, it is critically important
to evaluate the accountability system. We cannot overstate the importance of a comprehensive
investigation prior to implementation and ongoing monitoring and support following
implementation in order to maximize the likelihood that the state’s objectives will be met.

Following, we present key claims that should be investigated in the evaluation process along
with exemplar studies to inform each. Although not comprehensive, these components are
intended to capture the core areas that should be examined to evaluate the suitability of the
model.

Evidence Supports Claims in the TOA

This claim addresses the supports and structures that must be in place to bolster the integrity of
the information in the model and to improve the likelihood that actions based on information
derived from the accountability model will promote intended outcomes.

This broad claim connects to many aspects of Wyoming’s education system including:

1. The content standards and resulting curricular frameworks are designed around a credible
learning progression and they represent the knowledge, skills, and abilities necessary to
promote college or career readiness.

State assessments provide reliable and valid scores.
3. Academic growth information based on state and/or other assessments is credible and
technically defensible.

N

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012 80



4. Educators have access to the right information and have the knowledge, skills, and
support necessary to improve student learning.

Results are Reliable

Reliability refers to the consistency or stability of a measure. In this case, we are interested in
the reliability of the measures of schools or teacher/leader outcomes. Reliability is challenging
in this context due to the error in both achievement measures and growth measures.

Additionally, reliability is impacted by sampling error. Sampling error refers to fluctuations in
school or class outcomes scores that can be unrelated to actual school performance. In fact, Hill
and DePascale (2002) emphasize that sampling error, “contributes far more to the volatility of
school scores than measurement error.” Sampling error can work to both the advantage and
disadvantage of schools on reported accountability determinations, but the goal is still to
minimize the effects of sampling error on school results.

There are multiple statistical approaches to evaluating the reliability of school or class
determinations. However, at a minimum it is advisable to track the consistency of outcomes for
various levels (e.g. schools, subgroups) within and across years. Although not without
exception, it is expected that results will be well correlated for similar school types within year
and for the same schools across years. Dramatic shifts in either classification of schools or
characteristics of the distribution will signal a troubling lack of stability that will erode the
credibility of the outcomes.

Results are Valid

If reliability addresses the extent to which the model provides a consistent answer, validity asks,
“Is the answer correct?” Stated another way, to what extent are the results credible and useful
for the intended purposes? At a minimum, an investigation of the validity of the model should
address the following:

1. Is the model appropriately sensitive to differences in student demographics and school
factors?

2. Are the results associated with variables not related to effectiveness or generally those
not under the control of the school, such as the socioeconomic status of the
neighborhood?

3. Are the classifications credible?

4. Are negative consequences mitigated?

The first question addresses the extent to which the model differentiates outcomes among
schools and/or classes. A model in which very few schools differ with respect to results (i.e. all
ratings are high) will likely be out of sync with expectations and the credibility of the results will
be suspect. Therefore, it is important to examine the distribution of results to determine if the
outcomes are sensitive to differences and if the dispersion is regarded as reasonable and related
to expected differences in school quality as documented from other means.

Second, it is important to examine the distribution of scores with respect to variables that should
not be strongly associated with outcomes. For example, if there is a strong negative relationship

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012 81



between student poverty and school scores (i.e. lower poverty= higher scores) this suggests that
effective schools are only those in which relatively affluent students are enrolled. Similarly, if
there is a strong positive relationship between a student’s prior year achievement and a rating of
educator effectiveness, this indicates that the most effective teachers are those in classrooms
where the students started out as high performing. Such findings are implausible and erode
credibility of the model.

The third question calls for examination of classifications with respect to external sources of
evidence that should be correspondent with quality. For example, one would expect a higher
percentage of teachers who have been certified by the National Board of Professional Teaching
Standards to be classified as effective compared to those who are not. Similarly, high schools
with higher graduation rates or higher college-going rates should, in general, receive more
favorable outcomes that schools struggling in this area. It should be clear that if the school
accountability model is intended to identify and reward those schools that are preparing students
for college and career, the validity evaluation will be incomplete without including data that
reaches beyond K-12 and provides an indication of the post-secondary outcomes for graduates.

Finally, a validity evaluation should address the extent to which unintended negative
consequences are mitigated. If potentially troubling consequences such as narrowing the
curriculum, reduced professional cooperation, educator transition/attrition, or cheating on
standardized tests occurs, the validity of the system is threatened. Some of these threats could be
examined via survey data or focus groups, while others may be explored with extant data.
Importantly, ongoing initiatives to gauge the extent to which positive outcomes outweigh
potential negative side effects will bolster the consequential validity of this initiative and provide
a mechanism to promote continuous improvement.

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012 82



References
Conley, D. (2005). College knowledge: What it takes students to succeed and what we can do to
get them ready. San Francisco: Jossey-Bass.

Data Quality Campaign. (2010a). Strengthening the teacher-student data link to inform teacher
quality efforts. Retrieved from: www.DataQualityCampaign.org/resources/947.

Data Quality Campaign. (2010b). Developing a definition of teacher of record. Retrieved from:
http://dataqualitycampaign.org/files/Teacher%200f%20Record.pdf.

Domaleski, C.S. (2011). State End of Course Tests: A Policy Brief. Paper commissioned by the
Council of Chief State School Officers Technical Issues in Large Scale Assessment State
Collaborative on Assessment and Student Standards.

Domaleski, C.S. & Hill, R. (2010). Considerations for Using Assessment Data to Inform
Determinations of Teacher Effectiveness. Retrieved from: http://www.nciea.org/papers-
UsingAssessmentData4-29-10.pdf

Betebenner, D.W.(2009). Norm- and criterion-referenced student growth. Educational
Assessment: Issues and Practices, 48 (4),pp. 42-51.

Betebenner, D.W. & Linn, R. L. (2010). Growth in student achievement: issues of measurement,
longitudinal data analysis, and accountability. Exploratory Seminar: Measurement Challenges
Within the Race to the Top Agenda: Center for K-12 Assessment and Performance Management.
Retrieved from: www.k12center.org/rsc/pdf/BetebennerandLinnPolicyBrief.pdf

Briggs, D. & Domingue, B. (2011). Due diligence and the evaluation of teachers: A review of
the value-added analysis underlying the effectiveness ranking of Los Angeles Unified School
District teachers by the Los Angeles Times. Boulder, CO: National Education Policy Center.
Retrieved from: http://nepc.colorado.edu/publication/due-diligence

Fink, S. & Markholt, A. (2011). Leading for instructional improvement: How successful leaders
develop teaching and learning expertise. San Francisco: Jossey Bass.

Glazerman, S., Goldhaber, D., Loeb, S., Raundenbush, S., Staiger, D. and Whitehurst, G. (2011).
Passing muster: Evaluating teacher evaluation systems. Brown Center on Education Policy at
Brookings. Retrieved from:

http://www.brookings.edu/reports/2011/0426 evaluating_teachers.aspx.

Hill, R.K., & DePascale, C.A. (2002). Determining the reliability of school scores. Portsmouth,
NH: The National Center for the Improvement of Educational Assessment Inc. Retrieved from:
www.nciea.org

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012 83


http://www.dataqualitycampaign.org/resources/947
http://dataqualitycampaign.org/files/Teacher%20of%20Record.pdf
http://www.nciea.org/papers-UsingAssessmentData4-29-10.pdf
http://www.nciea.org/papers-UsingAssessmentData4-29-10.pdf
http://www.k12center.org/rsc/pdf/BetebennerandLinnPolicyBrief.pdf
http://nepc.colorado.edu/publication/due-diligence
http://www.brookings.edu/reports/2011/0426_evaluating_teachers.aspx
http://www.nciea.org/

Linn, R. L. (2008). Educational accountability systems. In The Future of Test Based Educational
Accountability, pages 3-24. Taylor & Francis, New York.

Marion, S.F. & Buckley K. (2011). Approaches and considerations for incorporating student
performance results from “Non-Tested” grades and subjects into educator effectiveness
determinations. Retrieved from: www.nciea.org

McCaffrey, Daniel F., Daniel Koretz, J. R. Lockwood and Laura S. Hamilton (2003). Evaluating
Value-Added Models for Teacher Accountability. Santa Monica, CA: RAND Corporation.
Retrieved from: http://www.rand.org/pubs/monographs/MG158

National Research Council. (2010). Getting value out of value-added. H. Braun, N. Chudowsky,
and J. Koenig (eds.). Washington, DC: National Academy Press.

Perie, M., Marion, S.F., & Gong, B. (2009). Moving towards a comprehensive assessment
system: A framework for considering interim assessments. Educational Measurement: Issues
and Practice, 28, 3, 5-13.

Raudenbush, S. (2004). Schooling, statistics, and poverty: Can we measure school improvement?
(Technical report). Princeton, NJ: Educational Testing Service. Retrieved from:
www.ets.org/Media/Education_Topics/pdf/angoff9.pdf

Rothstein, J. (2009). Student sorting and bias in value-added estimation: Selection on
observables and unobservables. Education Finance and Policy, 4(4), 537-571.

Rothstein, J. (2010). Teacher Quality in Educational Production: Tracking, Decay, and Student
Achievement. Quarterly Journal of Economics, 125(1), 175-214.

Rubin, D. B., Stuart, E. A., and Zanutto, E. L. (2004). A potential outcomes view of value-added
assessment in education. Journal of Educational and Behavioral Statistics, 29(1):103-116.
Retrieved from: www.ucce.ucdavis.edu/files/workgroups/6798/RubinEtAl.pdf

WY Comprehensive Accountability Framework. January 31, 2012 84


http://www.nciea.org/
http://www.rand.org/pubs/monographs/MG158
http://www.ets.org/Media/Education_Topics/pdf/angoff9.pdf
http://www.ucce.ucdavis.edu/files/workgroups/6798/RubinEtAl.pdf

WESTON COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 7

P.O. BOX 470 804 WILLOW STREET

DR. SUMMER STEPHENS UPTON, WYOMING 82730 CLARK COBERLY
SUPERINTENDENT PHONE: (307) 468-2401 EL/MS PRINICPAL
468- 2461 468-9331

GARY GLODT

EILEEN SCHILLER SPECIAL EDUCATION LINDA CRAWFORD
BUSINESS MANAGER TRANSPORTATION DIRECTOR HS PRINCIPAL
468 2461 468-9331 468-2361

October 4, 2017
Dear Department of Education Staff,

Please find our information which was requested on September 25, 2017, as a follow-up
to the Informal Review Request place by Upton High School and WCSD #7.

a. Weston #7 is asking for an exception to the business rules contained in the
Handbook and other documentation for the WAEA Ratings.

b. We are requesting an exemption from the Participation Rate Business rules from
the 2017 Wyoming School Performance Rating Model Implementation Handbook (Draft-
-July 1, 2016), pg. 12-14. As per WAEA School Performance Report document, any
school that misses the 95% requirement will automatically be lowered one full rating on
the model as long as it meets the 90% threshold.

C. The formulas for calculating the actual participation rate requirement as well as
the additional non-participant rule cannot benefit districts our size in any missing
participants. We had an actual participation rate of 90% and if we could apply the
additional non-participant rule, we would have met the 95% participation rate for a
“met” rating.

Please note due to the inflexible nature of the ACT assessment as used for state
reporting, we were held to only two dates and only morning sessions for these students
to take the exam. On the day of the first test (April 19) the student had an unexcused
absence and on the May 3 date, was absent, and upon being called in, arrived at 8:33
a.m. which was 3 minutes following the start of the exam. We followed the rules
regarding late entry and did not allow her in the room. T

Learner-Centered. Future-Focused



i. A school our size has no recourse for other circumstances, such as the small
school consideration (as our numbers exceed n=10).

ii. The particular assessment in our instance only allows for two ¥%-day
assessment windows, versus the three week, 7-8 hour per day assessment windows for
PAWS, significantly decreasing a district’s chance to ensure a student’s taking of the
exam.

d. The exception could be granted at any time based on a preponderance of
evidence from a district that the participation rate was atypical (running three year
participation rate for example) exemplifying that the district does not use “non-
participation” tactics to boost results.

e. The impact of the exception on the SY16-17 School Performance Rating of Upton
High School would be to accurately reflect the work of the students and staff of the
district. The impact would maintain a “Meeting Expectations” rating that has been in
effect in two previous years, and highlight the improvement made at the HS in SY 16-17.
The public perception of the rating does not take into account all of the improvement
that occurred on the item by item pieces of the WAEA rating, rather it tells a story that
says we had worse results last year than in years past.

f. In an effort to move forward with innovation and customization for students, it is
imperative that schools have some recourse to enter into a conversation about rules
and regulations and how they may or may not fit a given school at a given time. This is
how rule changes to Alternative Schools, reporting of Virtual Education students, etc.
have happened. Many states, including Utah, Idaho, Kentucky, etc. have waiver systems
in place for schools that are practicing innovation on a large scale to receive exemptions
from state reporting criteria. We have data from just one year of rethinking school that
makes a case for customization/exemptions to be made in reporting.

Thank you for the opportunity to share our additional information with you for
consideration.

Sincerely,

Dr. Summer E. Stephens
Superintendent

Leamner-Centered. Future-Focused



Wyoming Administrative Rules

Education, Dept. of

General Agency, Board or Commission Rules

Chapter 3: Practice and Procedure for Contested Case Proceedings

Effective Date: 10/13/2016 to Current
Rule Type: Current Rules & Regulations

Reference Number: 206.0002.3.10132016

Generated 09/06/2017



Wyoming Department of Education

Chapter 3
Rules of Practice and Procedure

Section 1. Authority.

These rules are promulgated by the Wyoming Department of Education and the
State Board of Education under the authority of Wyo. Stat. §§ 21-2-202(d), 21-2-
204(d)(vi), 21-2-304(a)(i), and 21-2-402(d).

Section 2. Purpose of Rules.

These rules govern proceedings held before or on the behalf of the State
Superintendent of Public Instruction or the State Board of Education, as applicable.

Section 3. Contested Case Hearings.

(a) Contested cases shall be conducted pursuant to the Office of Administrative
Hearings rules, Chapter 2, Uniform Rules for Contested Case Practice and Procedure
(“Uniform Rules”), which are incorporated into this chapter by reference. In doing so, the
Superintendent and Board find as follows:

(1)  Incorporating the full text of the Uniform Rules would be cumbersome
and inefficient given the length and nature of the rules;

(i1))  The incorporation is limited to the Uniform Rules adopted by the
Office of Administrative Hearings and effective October 17, 2014, and shall not include any
later editions of or amendments to the Uniform Rules;

(i)  Copies of the Uniform Rules are available to the public at the
Wyoming Department of Education offices at 2300 Capitol Ave., Hathaway Bldg. 2nd Floor,
Cheyenne, Wyoming 82002.

(iv)  An electronic copy of the Uniform Rules is available at the following
web address: http://soswy.state.wy.us/Rules/RULES/9644.pdf.

(b) Where a contested case hearing is required by law, an aggrieved person may
file a request according to the Uniform Rules § 5(a) with the Superintendent or the Board, as
applicable, within thirty (30) days of the date of the administrative decision at issue or the date
of mailing of the administrative decision as evidenced by a postmark, whichever is later.

() The request for a hearing shall be served on the Superintendent or Board and
other necessary parties. Service shall be made to the Wyoming Department of Education,
2300 Capitol Avenue, Hathaway Building, 2nd Floor, Cheyenne, Wyoming 82002-0206.
Service may be made in person or by mail.

3-1



(d) A request for a contested case hearing shall include the following:

(1) The name, telephone number, and mailing address of the petitioner
and the same information for the representing attorney;

(i) A statement in ordinary and concise language of the facts and of the
errors alleged to have been committed and issues that the petition is based on, including
particular reference to statutory sections, contract provisions or rules, regulations, and orders
involved;

(ii1)) A copy of the decision or relevant material that relates to the
decision at issue;

(iv)  The specific relief sought; and

(v) The signature of the petitioner and the representing attorney.

(e) The notice of hearing required under the Uniform Rules § 5(b) shall be served
on each party at least thirty (30) days before the hearing date unless an expedited hearing is
otherwise required by law. In that event, parties shall be served the notice of hearing as soon
as practicable.

) The Superintendent or Board, as applicable, may appoint a hearing officer to
conduct the contested case and may request that the hearing officer issue a recommended
decision.

(2) If a recommended decision is requested, the recommended decision and
proposed order shall be submitted to the Superintendent or Board, as applicable, no later than
thirty (30) days after the end of the contested case hearing.

(h) The Superintendent or Board, as applicable, shall make and enter a written
decision and order containing findings of fact and conclusions of law stated separately.

(1) The written decision issued by the Superintendent or Board shall be the final
agency action and be subject to judicial review under Wyo. Stat. § 16-3-114.

Section 4. Informal Review of School Performance Ratings.

(a) Wyoming Department of Education shall provide preliminary annual
performance ratings to districts for schools within those districts. Before the ratings are final, the
schools shall review the ratings and the underlying calculations. Districts may suggest
corrections to the Department within fourteen (14) days. Ratings become final on the fifteenth
(15) day.

(b) Districts may file a request for informal review in a form and manner prescribed
by the Department. The request shall include all relevant documents. The request shall state the
basis for changing a school’s performance rating.



(c) When it receives the complete Informal Review Request form from a district, the
Department shall review the documentation. If the request is complete, the Department shall
notify the district to that effect. If initial documents submitted do not constitute a complete
request, the Department shall notify the district of the reason for the deficiencies. No request or
related documentation may be submitted after the later of notification from the Department that
the request is complete or fifteen (15) days after the ratings are final.

(d) The Department shall submit a recommendation of either maintaining or
amending a school’s performance rating and the reasons for the recommendation to the State
Board of Education not later than fourteen (14) days after the request for informal review is
complete. The Department shall serve the recommendation on the district at the same time that it
is submitted to the State Board.

(e) The State Board of Education shall hear the district’s request for informal
review no later than thirty (30) days after the request is complete. The Board shall notify the
Department and the district of the date, time, and location of the meeting in which the Board will
consider the request for review.

(1)  The district shall be allotted ten (10) minutes to address the Board. The
district may reserve a portion of its time for rebuttal.

(1))  The Department shall be allotted ten (10) minutes to address the Board.
(i11))  No additional documentation may be submitted at the meeting.

(iv)  Presentations shall be limited to the basis raised by the district in its
request for informal review.

(v)  Districts may waive appearance before the Board and rely on the
written documents already submitted. If a district waives appearance, it shall notify the
Department no later than seven (7) days before the meeting. If a district waives appearance,
the Department shall not be permitted to address the Board on the subject of that school’s
performance rating.

6] The Board may deliberate and render a decision at the meeting in which it
heard presentations by the district and the Department.

(2) The Board decision is final agency action subject to judicial review
under W.S. 16-3-114.

(h) Data maintained by the Department used to calculate performance level
ratings shall not be subject to review under these rules.



OMING

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

Creating Opportunities
for Students to Keep
Wyoming Strong

}illian Balow

Stuperintendent of Public Instruction

' Dicky Shanor
Chietof Staft

Brent Bacon
Ghief Academic Bificer

Megan Degenfelder
(hief Policy Dfficer

Dianne Bailey
Ghief Operations Officer

Cheyenne Office
Hathaway Building Znd Hoor
2300 Capitol Avenue
Cheyenne WY 82002-2060
Phane: (307) TT1-1615
Fax: (307) 171-6234

Riverton Office
320 West Main
Riverton WY 82501
Phone: (307) 85/-9250
Fax: (307) 8519256

On the Web
edu.wyoming.goy
_ Wyominemeastresup com
twitter com/WYOEducation
facehook com/WYOEducation

September 25, 2017

Summer Stephens, Ed.D.

Superintendent, Weston County School District #7
P.O. Box 470

Upton, WY 82730-0470

Delivered via mail & email: sstephens@weston7.org

Subject: Weston County School District #7 Informal Review
Request

Dear Superintendent Stephens,

The Wyoming Department of Education has reviewed your August
24" letter requesting an informal review of Upton High School’s
SY16-17 school performance rating. Thank you for taking the time
to speak with us on the phone as a follow up to your letter as well.
As stated in your letter, the school’s performance on the indicators
under Academic Performance and Overall Readiness earned the
school an overall performance rating of “meets expectations.” The
rating was lowered to “partially meets expectations” because the
school failed to meet the 95% participation rate, which is required
as part of Wyoming’s state accountability model. In your request,
you acknowledge that the participation requirement was missed.

Department of Education Chapter 3 Rules

In order for the Department to submit a recommendation to the State
Board of Education (SBE) related to your request, Chapter 3 of the
Department’s Rules requires several conditions to be met. The first
condition relevant to your request is that of timeliness. Your letter
is timely as it was compliant with Ch. 3, Sec. 4(c), having been
received by the Department within fifteen (15) days of the school’s
performance rating being final.

The second condition is that the district must state the “basis for
changing a school’s performance rating” under Ch. 3, Sec. 4(b). The
third condition is that the Department must notify the district that
the request is complete or incomplete. If complete, the Department
notifies the district to that effect and submits a recommendation to
the SBE. If it is incomplete, the Department notifies the district of
the deficiencies and requests that those be resolved.

As of the date of this letter, the Department has determined that your
request for an informal review of Upton High School’s overall
performance rating is incomplete due to lack of clarity related to the
basis for changing the school performance rating. Below you will



find our request for more information that will enable us to better understand your issues and
request for relief.

“Basis” for Changing a Rating and “Complete” Determination

Ch. 3, Section 4(b) requires the district to identify the “basis” for changing a school’s performance
rating in its request for an informal review. Therefore, in order for the Department to consider an
informal review request “complete” under Section 4(c), the “basis™ for that request must be
adequately stated and understood. Based on the information provided in your letter, it is unclear
what the basis is for changing Upton High School’s performance rating.

In order to provide a meaningful response which delineates clear next steps for continuing this
dispute process, the Department will attempt to deduce the basis for your request based on the law
as we know it, the contents of your August 24 letter, and information from our follow up phone
call on September 13.

Ch. 3, Sec. 4(h) states that data maintained by the Department used to calculate Upton High
School’s performance level shall not be subject to a Ch. 3 informal review request. Therefore, the
potential basis for your change request would likely fall into one, two, or three of the following
categories: i. a dispute as to how the accountability model was applied to the school’s data; ii. a
dispute of the business rules governing the accountability model; or /ii. a request for an exception
to the business rules.

i. Dispute as to How the Accountability Model was Applied to the School’s Data

The August letter does not allege that the Department misapplied the accountability model to
Upton High School’s data. Furthermore, during the September 13 phone call, Weston #7 stated it
does not dispute the Department’s application of the accountability model to Upton High School’s
data. Therefore, it appears this category is not the basis for changing Upton High School’s rating.

ii. Dispute of the Business Rules Governing the Accountability Model

The August letter does not expressly dispute the business rules governing the accountability model.
Those rules are found in the 2017 Wyoming School Performance Rating Model Implementation
Handbook (Handbook) which can be found here. Furthermore, during the September 13 phone
call, Weston #7 demonstrated an understanding of the business rules and acknowledged that they
were correctly applied by the Department.

However, from the letter and follow-up phone call with Weston #7, it appears your district may
wish to dispute the business rules. While the Department will not speak to the question of whether
the SBE has direct authority to change these business rules, the dispute does not appear to be
precluded by Chapter 3 and, therefore, could potentially form an adequate “basis” for an informal
review request. In order for the Department to fully understand whether this is a/the basis for your
request, please provide us with the following information:

a. An affirmation that yes, Weston #7 is disputing business rules contained in the
Handbook;
b. A pinpoint citation(s) to the laws or business rules you are disputing;



c. A reason(s) for why the business rules should be changed;

d. An explanation of how and when the business rules could be changed;

e. What impact the rule change would have on Upton High School’s SY16-17 school
performance rating; and

f. Any other information the Department might find useful in considering the request.

iii. A Request for an Exception to the Business Rules Governing the Accountability Model and
School Performance Ratings

In addition to or in lieu of category ii. above, it appears Weston #7 could be asking for an exception
to the business rules of the accountability model based on the first sentence of the last paragraph
on page 2 of its request which states, “Please consider applying the rating that is earned from the
other indicators (Meeting Expectations) and not dropping us a rating level due to 90% participation
(Partially Meeting Expectations).” The Department does not have statutory authority to change a
school’s performance rating if the rating was calculated correctly under the existing laws.
However, while the Department will not speak to the question of whether the SBE has direct
authority to grant an exception to the model or business rules, the dispute does not appear to be
precluded by Chapter 3 and, therefore, could potentially form an adequate “basis” for an informal
review request. In order for the Department to fully understand whether this is a/the basis for your
request, please provide us with the following information:

a. An affirmation that yes, Weston #7 is asking for an exception to the business rules
contained in the Handbook;

b. A pinpoint citation(s) to the laws or business rules you are disputing;

c. A reason(s) for why the exception should be granted;

d. An explanation of how and when the exception could be granted;

e. What impact the exception would have on Upton High School’s SY16-17 school
performance rating; and

f. Any other information the Department might find useful in considering the request.

September 15 Follow Up Email from Weston #7

On September 15, I, along with Dr. Julie Magee, Department Accountability Division Director,
received an email from you with some follow-up questions to our September 13 phone call. A
synopsis of those questions, and the Department’s response to those questions, are as follows:

Question: “What would constitute a basis for changing a school’s performance rating (Chp 3,
Section 4, b) if data isn’t to be subject to this informal review?”

Response: See section above discussing three possible bases for an informal review.

Question: “Could you direct me to the language in statute regarding the inability of the state board
or the department to make ‘exceptions’ and what the definition of ‘exception’ is in this case?”

Response: The reference to inability to make exceptions is based on a January 29, 2015 Wyoming
Attorney General’s Opinion and case law cited therein. Since state statute does not “explicitly
provide” the Department the authority to change a school’s performance rating after they have
been properly issued, we are prohibited from doing so. The AG Opinion is enclosed for your



review. Agencies only have the power and authority expressly given to them by their enabling
statutes. U.S. West Commc 'ns, Inc., v. Wyo. Pub. Serv. Comm’n, 992 P.2d 1092, 1094 (Wyo.
1999). The Department is not taking any formal stance on the authority or lack of authority the
SBE may have on this specific request. The caveat we raised with you on the phone is that the SBE
is a state agency and subject to the same stated rule as the Department — the stated rule being that
unless they have express powers in their enabling statute to do something, they are prohibited from
doing so.

The definition of an “exception”, other than the plain meaning of the word, is unknown because
the concept is not addressed in the Wyoming laws governing this issue.

Please provide the above-requested information no later than fourteen (14) calendar days from the
date of this letter. Upon receipt of your response, the Department will evaluate whether or not your
request for informal review is complete. Once the Department determines the request complete,
the Department will notify you and submit a recommendation to the SBE to maintain or amend
Upton High School’s SY16-17 school performance rating within fourteen (14) calendar days.

Questions regarding this process or the Department’s request for additional information should be
directed to Dicky Shanor.

Sincerely,

Dicky Shanor
Chief of Staff



Office of the Attorney General

Governor Human Services Division Chief Deputy Attorney General
Matthew H. Mead 123 State Capitol John Knepper
Cheyenne, Wyoming 82002
Attorney General 307-777-6397 Telephone Division Deputy
Petec K. Michael 307-777-3435 Fax Robin Sessions Cooley

PRIVILEGED AND CONFIDENTIAL
January 29, 2015

Ron Micheli, Chairman

State Board of Education
Hathaway Building, 2nd Floor
2300 Capitol Avenue
Cheyenne, WY 82002-0050

Dear Chairman Micheli:

You have asked this office for an opinion regarding agency review of school
performance ratings under the Wyoming Accountability in Education Act Specifically,
three schools have requested review under the Act; two contend that the underlying data
is incorrect and one takes issue with the way the Act treats distance education. You have
asked whether the State Board of Education or the Professional Judgment Panel have the
authority to 1) amend the Department of Education data to correct any alleged errors
months after the Department closed the data collection, and 2) treat schools offering
distance education differently from schools that do not offer those programs.

Short Answers

1. No, neither the Board nor the Pane! has statutory authority to amend the
underlying data used to calculate a school performance rating. The
Department collects and maintains that data, and the Board and Panel have
no authority to direct Department activities.



Ron Micheli
January 29, 2015
Page 2 of 6

2. No, neither the Board nor the Panel has statutory authority to treat distance
education differently. The Act requires scores to be computed for each
school, and distance education is a program provided by a school, not a
separate school. Accordingly, the Act does not permit separate
performance ratings for distance education students.

Background

Broadly speaking, the Wyoming Accountability in Education Act is intended to
improve the academic performance of Wyoming primary and secondary school students.
Wyo. Stat. Ann. § 21-2-204(b). The Act instructs the Board to establish an accountability
system based on certain quantifiable measures of performance such as student assessment
scores, graduation rates, and credit accumulation. Wyo. Stat. Ann. § 21-2-204(c). A
school performance rating is then calculated based on this data. Wyo. Stat. Ann.
§ 21-2-204(d). Schools are assigned one of four performance ratings: exceeding
expectations, meeting expectations, partially meeting expectations, or not meeting
expectations. Wyo. Stat. Ann. § 21-2-204(e)(i). Each performance rating incurs a series
of obligations and supports under the Department-administered state system of support,
intervention, and consequences. Wyo. Stat. Ann. § 21-2-204(f).

The Act also permits school districts to request “informal review” of their schools’
performance rating determination. Wyo. Stat. Ann. §§ 21-2-204(d)(iv), (v). The review is
first performed by the Professional Judgment Panel, and if the district is unsatisfied with
that decision, by the Board. /d. The Act further directs the Board to promulgate rules
governing this review process, but it does not provide a particular date by which the rules
must be in place. Wyo. Stat. Ann. § 21-2-204(d)(vi). At this time, the Board has not
promulgated rules on this subject.

Turning to the source of the performance ratings, the Department of Education
routinely collects student performance data from Wyoming school districts. This data is
used not only for the purposes outlined in the Act but is also relied upon for other
programs that the Department administers. For example, student performance data is used
to determine whether schools are achieving adequate yearly progress as required by the
No Child Left Behind Act of 2001, as amended. Pub. L. 107-110, 115 Stat. 1425-2094
(2002). Additional uses include data requirements from other federal programs and state
funding calculations. On May 12, 2014, the Department reminded district staff that
information collected during the collection window would be used to determine school
performance levels. Wyo. Dep’t of Educ., Memorandum No. 2014-067 (May 12, 2014)
(available at http://edu.wyoming.gov/downloads/commum’cations/mcmos/ZO14/2014-
067-accountability-end-of—year—WD5684-reminder.pdf). The memorandum informed
districts that



Ron Micheli
January 29, 2015
Page 3 of 6

it is critical that your district verifies its WDEG684 report as
accurate. In particular, enrollment records must accurately
reflect the students’ enrollment status on April 23 and the end
of the school year. It is also critical that the exit codes for the
four year on-time graduation cohort are accurate. The
collection window is May 21, 2014 to June 19, 2014. No
further corrections will be allowed after July 15, 2014. The
information included in the . . . report after July 15 will be
used as-is for accountability determinations.

Id. (paragraph break omitted).

We understand that Wyoming schools received their preliminary performance
ratings on or about October 8, 2014. At that point, they were permitted to identify any
mistakes in the performance rating calculations, and the Department was able to correct
any errors. The final performance ratings were assigned and released to the public on
November 8, 2014. Three districts filed timely requests for informal review as permitted
by the Act: Big Horn County School District No. 1 (Big Hom 1) for Rocky Mountain
High School, Fremont County School District No. 2 (Fremont 2) for Dubois High School,
and Niobrara County School District No. | (Niobrara 1) for Niobrara County High
School.

In its request, Big Horn 1 states that it is “deeply concerned about the lack of
foresight associated with the [Act] in regards to our statewide online school.” Letter from
Shon Hocker to the Panel, Board, and Department (Dec. 8, 2014). It identifies three areas
in which it asserts that the Act fails to appropriately treat distance education students:
participation rate, ninth grade credits earned, and drop-out rates. /d, at 1-2. Big Horn 1
does not request specific relief but merely asks for an “opportunity to discuss these
reasons [for lower student performance] and seek alternatives.” Jd.

Niobrara | asserts that there was an error in the data that it reported to the
Department. It alleges that the accountability calculations were made based on 65
students but that the correct number of students is 63. Niobrara 1 WAEA School
Performance Level Determination — School Request for Review (Dec. 8, 2014). As a basis
for this claim, it further alleges that one student was incorrectly reported as an 11th-
grader, but it provides no explanation for the other claimed error. /d. In its review
request, it asks that its accountability score be recalculated based on what it claims is the
correct number of grade 11 students. /d.

Similarly, Fremont 2 asserts that there were errors in the data it reported to the
Department. It claims that it incorrectly reported two students as full time when they



Ron Micheli
January 29, 2015
Page 4 of 6

received limited or part-time educational services. Email from Gerry Nolan to Michael
Flicek and Sean Mclnerney (Oct. 23, 2014). Consequently, there are no ACT scores
associated with these students. Due to the small number of total students, the school’s
participation rate fell below 90%, which results in automatically categorizing the school
as not meeting expectations. See Fremont 2 WAEA School Performance Level
Determination — School Request for Review (Nov. 25, 2014). Fremont 2 has requested
that the two alleged erroneously reported students be removed from the underlying data
and that the school’s accountability rating be recalculated. Email Jrom Gerry Nolan to
Michael Flicek and Sean Mclnerney (Oct. 23, 2014).

Analysis

The Act provides very little guidance on the scope of the Panel’s or the Board’s
reviews of a school’s performance rating. The Act also does not explicitly provide for
changing a school’s performance rating based on the review. Administrative agencies
have only the authority and powers expressly given to them by their enabling statutes.
Eg., US. West Comme'ns, Inc. v. Wyo. Pub. Serv. Comm'n, 992 P.2d 1092, 1094 (Wyo.
1999). Wyoming’s education code assigns certain state-level duties either to the
Superintendent of Public Instruction or to the State Board of Education. See generally
Wyo. Stat. Ann. §§ 21-2-202, 21-2-304. Neither agency has authority over the other.
Indeed, the statutes contemplate that they will cooperate where assistance is necessary.
See, e.g., Wyo. Stat. Ann. § 21-2-202(b) (Superintendent shall designate a liaison to the
State Board through which requests for assistance shall be directed).! Among the duties
of the Superintendent is to accept all federal funds and to administer all programs
pursuant to federal requirements. Wyo. Stat. Ann. § 21-2-202(a)(xix). The
Superintendent is also charged with collecting and analyzing student assessment data and
administering the school finance system. Wyo. Stat. Ann. §§ 21-2-202(a)(xiv), 21-2-203.

As relevant to this opinion, the Board is charged with establishing the statewide
assessment system within the requirements set forth by the Legislature. Wyo. Stat. Ann.
§ 21-2-204(b). Among other requirements, it is responsible for determining the target
levels for various performance indicators with the input of the Professional Judgment
Panel. Wyo. Stat. Ann. § 21-2-204(e); 2012 Wyo. Sess. Laws 342-44 (establishing the
Professional Judgment Panel); 2013 Wyo. Sess. Laws 509 (continuing the Professional
Judgment Panel). While the Accountability Act directs the Board in how to use data

1 Currently the statutes refer to the Director of the Department of Education, but that
position has been rendered obsolete given the ruling in Powers v, State, No. 180-673 (Wyo. Dist.
Ct., 1st Dist, April 18, 2014). Accordingly, we will consider the duties assigned to the Director to
be assigned to the Superintendent as that ruling provides.



Ron Micheli
January 29, 2015
Page 5 of 6

collected by the Department to determine school performance ratings, the task of
collecting and maintaining that data remains with the Department.

Turning to the specific requests for review from the districts, we look first to those
of Niobrara 1 and Fremont 2. They both request a correction to the underlying data
provided by them to the Department. As discussed above, the Department is charged with
collecting various data. The data sets are used not only to calculate school performance
scores, but also, among other purposes, for school funding and federal reporting
requirements. See Wyo. Stat. Ann. §§ 21-2-203(a), 21-2-202(a)(xix). Nothing in the
Accountability Act gives the Board or Panel authority over the data itself. See Wyo. Stat.
Ann. § 21-2-204. Given that the Department is explicitly required to collect the data, and
the lack of statutory Board or Panel oversight, we conclude that they have no authority to
direct the Department to amend the data as Niobrara 1 and Fremont 2 request,
Accordingly, the Panel, and subsequently the Board, have no authority to grant the relief
requested.

We tumn now to Rocky Mountain High School, which takes issue with how the
Accountability Act handles distance education, A number of statutory provisions govern
distance education. Distance education is regulated by the Department, not the Board.
Wyo. Stat. Ann. § 21-2-202(a)(xxxi). In addition to other requirements, school districts
are required by law to assign distance education students to a physical school within the
district. Wyo. Stat. Ann. § 21-13-330(g)(ii). The Accountability Act further provides that
performance levels are calculated on a per-school basis. Wyo. Stat. Ann. § 21-2-204(c).
As a result of these laws, it is apparent that the Legislature intended distance education
students assigned to a school to be part of that school’s performance rating. The Board
and Panel have no authority to contravene these clear statutory requirements.

In addition, you have supplied this office with correspondence indicating that in
2013 Big Hom I requested that the Department assign three new school identification
numbers to the Wyoming Connections Academy, which is the district’s online-only
academic program.? The Department denied this request on December 6, 2013, While not

2 For the purpose of this opinion, it is worth noting that assigning a number creates a new
“school” for various programs, including accountability and funding. Accordingly, assigning
new numbers to the Wyoming Connections Academy would trigger a number of events,
including increased funding based on the premise that Big Horn 1 would have three new
“schools.” See generally Wyo. Stat. Ann. § 21-13-309(m). The fact that the funding increase
would be grossly disproportionate to the costs of the program is one reason that the Department
denied the request. Letter Jrom Richard Crandall to Shon Hocker at 1 (Dec. 6, 2013). Further,
Wyoming law already specifies that distance program students are to be assigned to a physical
school for the purpose of funding. Wyo. Stat. Ann. § 21-13-330()(ii).



Ron Micheli
January 29, 2015
Page 6 of 6

explicitly stated in its request for review, there is an indication based on the materiais
submitted to this office that Big Horn | is reasserting its earlier request that its virtual
school, Wyoming Connections Academy, be assigned new school identification numbers.
The Department, not the Board, is responsible for administering the school finance
system and assigning school identification numbers as part of that task. See Wyo. Stat.
Ann. § 21-2-203, Consequently, the Board and Panel are unable to grant Rocky Mountain
High School the relief it requests.

Conclusion

The Department of Education is responsible by law for administering the school
funding program and collecting data from school districts for a variety of purposes,
including arriving at school performance ratings. The Board of Education and its
subsidiary, the Professional Judgment Panel, do not have the authority to direct the
Department of Education in performing these duties. Thus, the Board and Panel have no
authority to direct the Department to amend its data as Niobrara | and Fremont 2 request.
Similarly, the Board does not have regulatory authority over distance education programs
and is required to determine school performance ratings on a per-school basis, We
conclude, therefore, that the Board and Panel have no authority to address distance
education differently, as Big Horn 1’s request suggests.

Please let us know if we can be of further assistance.

ﬁﬂmﬁa&/

Peter K. Michael '

. }% 71,

¥
Robjh Cooley 7

Deputy Attorney General

L Cond A
Jift Kucera A

Senior Assistant Attorny General

W‘W

Mackenzie Williams ™
Senior Assistant Attorney General




WYOMING DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
Jillian Balow, Superintendent of Public Instruction

Hathaway Building, 2nd Floor, 2300 Capitol Avenue
Cheyenne WY 82002-0206

October 9, 2017

Summer Stephens, Ed.D.

Superintendent, Weston County School District #7
P.O. Box 470

Upton, WY 82730-0470

Dear Superintendent Stephens,

The Wyoming Department of Education (WDE) has received your request dated August 24, 2017 and
follow-up information dated October 4, 2017 for a review of Upton High School’s 2016-17 school
performance rating. As stated in your letter, the school’s performance on the indicators under
Academic Performance and Overall Readiness earned the school an overall performance rating of
“meets expectations”. The rating was lowered to “partially meets expectations” because the school
failed to meet the 95% participation rate, which is required as part of Wyoming’s state accountability
model. In your request, you acknowledge that the participation requirement was missed, and you are
seeking an exception to the business rule that became effective in 2013: When schools do not meet
the 95% participation requirement, but meet the 90% threshold, the overall school performance
rating is docked by one level. Such an exception would result in a change to Upton High School’s
2016-17 school performance rating to “meets expectation.”

This letter is to inform you that the WDE has determined your request to be complete. Pursuant to
Section 4 of the Chapter 3 Education Rules, the district may not submit any additional documentation
related to this request as of the date of this letter.

The WDE will submit a recommendation to the State Board of Education (SBE) to maintain or amend
Upton High School’s 2016-17 school performance rating. The recommendation will be submitted no
later than fourteen (14) days from the date of this letter.

During a phone call on October 9, you opted to waive the 30-day period to be heard until the SBE
formally meets on Friday, November 17, 2017. You will be notified of the time and place of the
meeting, at which time you and your staff will have the opportunity to present your request in
person. The district may also opt to meet remotely through a virtual platform that will be provided
by the SBE. During this meeting, the district and the WDE will each have ten (10) minutes to address
the SBE. A portion of the district’s time may be reserved for a rebuttal. Neither party will be allowed
to submit additional documentation during the meeting.

You must notify the WDE no later than seven (7) days before the meeting if you intend to waive your
right to appear. In this case, the SBE will rely solely on the written documents provided by your
district and the WDE to make a determination. The State Board’s decision is considered final agency
action subject to judicial review under W.S. 16-3-114.

Page 1


http://law.justia.com/codes/wyoming/2016/title-16/chapter-3/section-16-3-114/

WYOMING DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

Jillian Balow, Superintendent of Public Instruction WYUMING é
Hathaway Building, 2nd Floor, 2300 Capitol Avenue DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION \\
Cheyenne WY 82002-0206

If you have any questions about the informal review process, please contact Dicky Shanor.

Sincerely,

Dicky Shanor, Chief of Staff

Page 2



@ o WYOMING
STATE BOARD
OF EDUCATION

ACTION SUMMARY SHEET

DATE: November 17, 2017

ISSUE: Approval of Minutes

BACKGROUND:

SUGGESTED MOTION/RECOMMENDATION:

To approve the minutes from the State Board of Education meeting on October 18, 2017

SUPPORTING INFORMATION ATTACHED:
e Minutes of October 18, 2017

PREPARED BY: Kuylie Taylor
Kylie Taylor, Executive Assistant

ACTION TAKEN BY STATE BOARD: DATE:

COMMENTS:



WYOMING STATE BOARD OF EDUCATION
October 18, 2017
Teleconference

Wyoming State Board of Education members present via Zoom: Walt Wilcox, Ken Rathbun, State
Superintendent Jillian Balow, Sue Belish, Scotty Ratliff, Nate Breen, Ryan Fuhrman, Dean Ray Reutzel,
Dan McGLade, Max Mickelson, Belenda Willson, and Robin Schamber.

Members absent: Jim Rose and Kathryn Sessions

Also present: Kylie Taylor, WDE; Julie Magee, WDE; Megan Degenfelder, Kari Eakins, WDE; Thomas
Sachse, SBE Coordinator; and Adam Leuschel, Attorney General's Office (AG).

October 18, 2017

CALL TO ORDER

Chairman Walt Wilcox called the meeting to order at 1:01 p.m.

Kylie Taylor conducted roll call and established that a quorum was present.
APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Superintendent Balow moved to approve the agenda as presented, seconded by Ken Rathbun; the motion
carried.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Minutes from the September 21-22, 2017 State Board of Education meeting in Green River were presented
for approval.

Max Mickelson moved to approve the minutes, seconded by Superintendent Balow; the motion carried.
TREASURER’'S REPORT

SBE Treasurer, Ken Rathbun, presented the summary review and expenditures report for the board’s
budgets, and went over the remaining balances and time left in the current biennium. Ken gave an update
on the remaining balances and said that they may look diminished because NASBE dues were paid which

accounted for $20,000.

Ken also clarified that this report looks different than they have in the last biennium because the SBE
Coordinator’s salary comes out of SBE budget now rather than the WDE'’s budget.

Scotty Ratliff moved to approve the presented Treasurer's Report, Nate Breen seconded; the motion
carried.



BOARD REPORTS, UPDATES & COMMENTS

Coordinator’s Report

Tom Sachse, SBE Coordinator, started his report by giving an update on the Chapter 31 progress and an
overview of the report he gave to the Joint Education Interim Committee in September. During the last SBE
Administrative Committee meeting Tom was asked to contact Mike O'Donnell from the AG’s Office
regarding the formal opinion that the SBE has asked the AG’s Office to give regarding Chapter 31. Mike
O'Donnell confirmed that the AG would offer an opinion and the SBE is still waiting to receive that opinion.

Tom provided a rubric for the SBE to review regarding purchasing technology for board members. The SBE
will likely vote on a piece of technology during November's meeting.

The Administrative Committee asked Tom to develop a plan to investigate the impacts of the Alternative
Calendar the board approves annually. Tom provided his plan for doing so and presented that it is likely
that the number of schools involved would not have any statistical significance.

Update: Weston #7 Informal Review Request

Julie Magee, WDE, informed the board that the district superintendent for Weston #7 waived the 30-day
timeline for an informal hearing in order to accommodate the SBE's meeting schedule. Therefore, the
informal hearing will take place during the board’s November 17t meeting. The informal hearing will be
open to the public unless the discussion will lead to the disclosure of individual student information.

The district superintendent will notify the WDE within seven days of the informal hearing if she wishes to
waive her right to appear, in which case, the SBE will rely solely on the documents submitted with the
WDE's recommendation on October 231.

Sue Belish asked if the meeting needs to be take place in executive session. Adam Leuschel, AG’s Office,
indicated that it does not need to be part of a separate meeting.

Sue asked if the school district receives the WDE's recommendation at the same as the SBE does, and if
not, could they to remain transparent. Sue also asked if all documents were allowed to be included in the
board’s packet for the November meeting.

Adam Leuschel indicated that he was unsure but would look into it and let everyone know.

Volunteers for Computer Science Task Force and Virtual Education Task Force

Kari Eakins, WDE, presented to the board on the details of the computer science task force and the virtual
education task force. Including, when they will meet, if the meetings will be in person or via teleconference,
and asked if there were any board members that had a desire to sit on either task force.

Chairman Wilcox said for any members that were interested to get back to him or Kylie Taylor.

Protocol for LSO Reports

Julie Magee created a matrix for the SBE to refer to when LSO reports are due. Within the matrix are
columns indicating who the report is assigned to and if the report is informational or recommendation.

Max Mickelson praised Julie for creating the matrix and said it was perfect.



Sue Belish also praised Julie and indicated that informational reports do not need to be approved by the
board, just sent to the board when sent to the LSO.

COMMITTEE UPDATES

Administrative Committee
Sue Belish, SBE, said there wasn’t anything more to discuss regarding the minutes that are included in the
packet.

Superintendent Balow asked if the minutes for this meeting could better reflect the happenings by indicating
that there was communication between the SBE Treasurer, Ken Rathbun, and the WDE regarding SBE
budget and at the time of the communication there were no objections made.

Ken Rathbun specified that maybe he was mistaken and said that he did have a conversation with Trent
Carroll from the WDE earlier in the summer and talked about the fact that the SBE budget review was
coming up but was unaware of anything formal. Ken apologized and said he didn’t remember being
included in the formal process.

Superintendent Balow indicated that in no way did she mean to call out a single person, she just wanted to
make sure that it was known that the WDE followed the same process that they have in the past on making
sure that the process is leveraged as much as possible.

Sue Belish said that she has no problem with making that change to the minutes and said that the
Administrative Committee had a productive meeting with Trent Carroll yesterday as well as had a number
of issued clarified regarding the SBE budget. Sue also said that Trent agreed to present to the board on the
SBE budget.

Communications Committee

Ryan Fuhrman, SBE, gave an overview of the Communications Committee meeting held on October 5,
The committee discussed inviting key stakeholders to teleconference meetings and potentially asking they
give a presentation. Kari will send out survey regarding technology purchasing options, once all surveys
have been completed the Communications Committee with review results.

Sue Belish expressed support for inviting key stakeholders but suggested the board wait until January
before inviting anyone.

Budget Committee

Ken Rathbun, SBE, gave an official overview over the entire SBE budget including: the SBE Coordinator’s
salary, professional services contract, professional development training, Professional Judgement Panel
funds, and the transfer of funds from one series to another. Ken said that overall an increase is shown and
going forward the board will have an opportunity of adjustments.

The board decided to take an overall vote on approving the SBE’s budge.

Belenda Willson moved to approve the SBE budget, seconded by Dan McGlade, the motion carried.



Superintendent Balow acknowledged the board’s vote to approve the budget moving forward, but added
that what the board is voting on is unprecedented as the board typically doesn’t approve the budget in a
vote, but the board can move budgets around and make changes that way.

Chairman Wilcox agreed with Superintendent Balow.

OTHER ITEMS
Chairman Wilcox gave an open invitation to anyone that is interested in attending the November meeting in
Casper.

PUBLIC COMMENT
e Angela Jones, Green River, expressed concern in regards to the proposal to shut down Jackson
Elementary in Green River, WY. Angela indicated that this would cause students to be crossing
town to a different elementary school and is not conducive.
e Ciara Burch, Green River, also expressed concern to the proposal of Jackson Elementary shutting
down.

NEXT MEETING
The Board’s next meeting will take place via teleconference on November 17, 2017

The meeting adjourned at 3:58 p.m.



'

WYOMING

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

Creating Opportunities
for Students to Keep
Wyoming Strong

—

Jillian Balow

Superintendent of Public Instruction

Dicky Shanor
Chief of Staff

Brent Bacon
Chief Academic Officer

Megan Degenfelder
Chief Policy Officer

Dianne Bailey
Chief Operations Officer

Cheyenne Office
Hathaway Building, 2nd Floor

2300 Capitol Avenue
Cheyenne WY 82002-2060
Phone: (307) TT7-1675
Fax: (307) T77-6234

Riverton Office
320 West Main
Riverton, WY 82501
Phone: (307) 857-9250
Fax: (307) 85/-9256

On the Web
edu.wyoming gov
Wwyomingmeasuresup.com
twitter.com/WYOEducation
facebook.com/WYOEducation

To: State Board of Education

From: Jillian Balow, Superintendent of Public Instruction
Date: November 17, 2017
Subject: Wyoming State Superintendent’s Update

A date has been set for the 2018 State Superintendent’s Policy
Summit (S5S). This event has been well attended by members of
the board over the past two summits and | hope you’ll join me
again in Cheyenne on February 26-28.

Implementation of the Indian Education for All Act continues.
Recently, members of the WDE staff met with members of the
Wind River Inter-Tribal Council and this topic was discussed at
length. We will continue dialogue with the council as their input is
essential.

Leaders from WDE met with external evaluators from Education
Northwest to analyze gaps in the delivery of support to schools and
school districts. This was a unique cross-division and cross-team
group of leaders within the agency. The work will help us to be
more inclusive and purposeful with delivery of the statewide
system of support, multi-tiered support, and targeted support we
provide to school districts.

Momentum is building for computer science. You may recall this
was an interim topic for the legislature after a bill did not pass
during the 2017 session. While current draft legislation will likely
see change in the coming months, | am hopeful it will reflect the
recommendations of the computer science task force and
subsequent committee discussion. | am enthused about the
collaborative efforts among legislators, educators, and the
employer community. I fully support the direction we appear to be
headed and view computer science as a critical skill needed for
success in the workplace.

The first WY-TOPP interim assessment window opened on
October 23 and closes November 17. As of the writing of this
memo, 40 districts have participated in the interim assessment.
WDE has received much positive feedback regarding ease of use,
instantaneous results and individual student results at item,
standard and domain levels. Only a few minor issues have arisen,
and were resolved within a day.

I am writing this memo from rural New York where | will spend
the next two days visiting community schools with several other
state superintendents. The community school strategy has been



successfully implemented in high-poverty urban areas, and understanding how it can be
successful in a rural setting will be interesting. I look forward to the learning and networking.

As this is the board’s last meeting of the calendar year, 1 would like to wish you all a safe and
happy holiday season.



O O WYOMING
STATE BOARD
OF EDUCATION

November 7, 2017

To: State Board Members

From: Tom Sachse, Ph.D.
RE: Coordinator’s Report

This month, I'll be commenting on three topics: Chapter 31 Progress Report,
Accreditation Issues, and Miscellaneous Updates. There are cover memos for all three
and attachments to the first two.



WYOMING
STATE BOARD
OF EDUCATION

November 7, 2017

To: State Board Members

From: Tom Sachse, Ph.D.

RE: Chapter 31 Progress

On October 26, Mike O’Donnell Special Assistant Attorney General convened a
meeting including the Governor’s Office (Mary Kay Hill), WDE (Meagan Degenfelder
and Kylie Taylor), SBE (Walt Wilcox and myself), Wyoming Assn. of School
Administrators (Gerry Chase and Paige Fenton Hughes), Wyoming Curriculum
Directors Assn. (Joanne Flanagan and RJ Kost), and our two attorneys (Mackenzie
Williams and Adam Leushel). Staff from LSO were invited, but were unable to attend.
This group met to discuss the issues and possible paths forward regarding the
establishment of graduation standards relative to the promulgation of Chapter 31 rules.

I was asked to write a brief “context summary” for superintendents and others to review,
in connection with a “work plan” created by the curriculum directors. My write-up is
attached. At the time of this writing, the curriculum directors draft was not finalized.
Also as of this writing, Chairman Wilcox has not received a response to the state board
request from the Attorney General. As | understand it, Mary Kay Hill will be contacting
the Joint Education Committee co-chairs and provide them an update on the plan. It is
likely Mike O’Donnell will summarize this at their interim meeting on November 14th,

At your November meeting, | will provide an update and timeline for Chapter 31 rules
promulgation. Essentially, the curriculum directors agreed to organize a group to
hammer out graduation requirements that might reside in Chapter 31 and avoid the
complication of referencing graduation standards in Chapter 10. They will work with
their superintendents to build support for a thoughtful and limited set of graduation
standards (read, requirements).



On the Context of Chapter 31
(Graduation Requirements) Revisions

Purpose: The purpose of this precis is to clarify the current status regarding Chapter
31 rules promulgated by the State Board of Education (SBE). SBE is required to address
statutory requirements to establish graduation standards for determining diploma
awards equitably among all Wyoming high schools. WSS 21-2-304(a)(iii) reads in
pertinent part: “Student content and performance standards prescribed under this
paragraph shall include standards for graduation from any high school within any
school district of this state.”

History: In 2012, following the establishment of the Wyoming Accountability In
Education Act (WAEA) in 2011, the Wyoming Legislature removed the requirement for
the body of evidence and tiered diploma system. The body of evidence was replaced with
the requirement for districts to have a District Assessment System (DAS). Since that
time, WDE has worked with district representatives to establish a DAS guidebook that
contains guidance on the development, implementation, and validation criteria for those
systems. The DAS expectations are key to the understanding of the Chapter 31 Rules,
because the statute clearly stipulates SBE must promulgate regulations that tie the
award of diplomas to both “course completion and as measured by each district’s
assessment system.”

SBE, working with the Wyoming Department of Education (WDE), has made four
attempts since 2012 to promulgate such rules, none of which were deemed successful in
meeting the letter or intent of statute. SBE’s most recent action was the request of a
formal opinion from the Attorney General on the constitutional, judicial, and related
issues affecting rules promulgation for Chapter 31. A response from the Attorney
General’s Office had not yet been received.

The Joint Education Interim Committee (JEIC) expressed concern during their
September 2017 meeting regarding the inability to promulgate Chapter 31 rules, and
urged progress forward under the leadership of Special Assistant Attorney General,
Mike O’Donnell.

Proposed Solution Strategies: On October 26, 2017 Mr. O’Donnell convened a
meeting with staff from the Governor’s Office, Attorney General’s Office, WDE, SBE,
and representatives of the Wyoming Curriculum Directors Association and the
Wyoming Association of School Administrators.



Mr. O'Donnell established two overarching requirements for Chapter 31 rules:
guarantees of equity of opportunity among all districts and reliance on the district
assessment system for high school graduation.

The group discussed a variety of common inputs and outputs that convey the sense of
equity of opportunity among all districts in the state. The following actions were agreed
upon for the path forward:
1. Development of a “graduation skillset or baseline” by curriculum directors.
2. Evaluation of the District Assessment System Guidebook and aspects that should
be included in Chapter 31 by WDE & SBE.



WYOMING
STATE BOARD
OF EDUCATION

November 7, 2017

To: State Board Members

From: Tom Sachse, Ph.D.

RE: Accreditation Issues

As you are aware, the department has decided to end its contract with AdvancEd to
provide accreditation services for the state. The state board has the responsibility to
establish new Chapter 6 Rules because of changes to the new state assessment, changes
to the Wyoming Accountability in Education Act, and now changes to the accreditation
processes.

Attached are two items for your reflection and discussion. The first is a piece | wrote
called Alternative Conceptions of Accreditation. This attempts to lay out, in broad
strokes, different purposes for accreditation. The board will want to consider different
purposes for accreditation and get feedback from stakeholders on the pros and cons of
each. (Of course, the board may want to adopt multiple purposes.) It would also be good
to hear from the department about their recommendations for the future of
accreditation in the state. The second is an outline written by Sue Belish that was
discussed by the administrative committee regarding direction to the Accreditation Task
Force being convened by the department.

At your meeting, |1 hope there will be time to discuss these documents and give direction
to the task force as it convenes. The board may also wish to have representation on the
task force, with a formal appointment by Chairman Wilcox.



Alternative Conceptions of Accreditation

Accreditation is a process for ensuring schools are adequately preparing students for
their future ambitions. Historically, accreditation was primarily focused on whether
secondary schools had the right ingredients for college preparation. That meant
checking the number of volumes in libraries, observing the science laboratory facilities,
reviewing teachers’ credentials, etc. In the past several decades, the accreditation
process has evolved to include remnants of those guarantees but added elements having
to do with continuous improvement processes, district leadership, academic
performance, adherence to federal and state statutes and regulations, and school culture
among others.

As the WDE moves from the AdvancEd continuous improvement reviews to other
possible conceptions of accreditation, it is incumbent on the state board to reconsider
promulgating Chapter 6 rules with an eye towards integrating accreditation with state
assessment and accountability (unless those major sections of the current Chapter 6
migrate to other rules). The following then is a brief description of alternate conceptions
of accreditation. Indeed, accreditation can have multiple purposes, but too many
foundations makes the system murky and potentially confusing.

Continuous Improvement: The continuous improvement model emphasizes
reviewing processes that suggest that the school improvement team is focusing on
improving aspects of the overall school program. These processes are legitimated by the
research on school improvement factors. Unfortunately, the correlation of IEQ scores
with academic performance is often rather low. Districts might be high on process, but
low on academics; the reverse can be observed and has been in the last five or so years.
The continuous improvement model looks at results, but the overall score does not rely
very much on high test scores or graduation rates.

District Leadership: In the last six years of AdvancED, there has been an increased
emphasis on district accreditation in addition to school-level accreditation. District
leadership reviews artifacts like strategic plans, communication plans, professional
development plans, equity of technology access, and the like. In this model, if the
district passes muster then schools do as well (though there are checks on school
improvement strategies as well).



Academic Performance: With the rollout of the Wyoming Accountability in
Education Act (WAEA), schools and districts get detailed information on a number of
important aspects of school success, including academic achievement, growth, equity,
post-secondary readiness, and the like. The legislature has stressed the importance of
these outputs, as a condition of continued support for inputs (especially funding levels).
It may be wise for the board to consider making academic performance a more focused
element of accreditation. For example, the board may wish to tie levels of accreditation
to levels of WAEA ratings. A school that “exceeds expectations” on WAEA may receive
full accreditation status, as long as they meet statutory and regulatory assurances. A
school that is “not meeting expectations” may receive conditional accreditation, pending
participation in state system of support programs (including data retreats, root cause
analysis, and negotiated professional development activities).

Adherence to Federal and State Statutes and Regulations: At a minimum,
schools should, as part of the accreditation process, be asked for assurances and
possibly evidence that they are meeting basic requirements imposed at the federal and
state levels. This is more of a compliance check, than a robust analysis of school quality.
This may be a low bar for accountability, but it may be that accountability is already
achieved through other systems including WAEA, school report cards, published test
scores, etc.

School Culture: Improving school culture is one defining element of the professional
learning communities model. Schools can determine whether there is a common vision
for improvement, whether faculty collaborate for the benefit of students, whether
students feel safe and respected, whether parents and community members are
welcomed into the education process, etc. This is a significant facet of the alternative
school accountability model.

Surely, there are other frames for accreditation, but these are presented here to allow
the board to consider the various purposes that accreditation may take. As the board
and department reconsider accreditation in light of moving away from AdvancED, it will
be useful to have the board determine the primary purpose(s) for accreditation to lead
the work of the Accreditation Task Force.



Accreditation Task Force Framework from Sue Belish

1. Purpose of the Task Force
a.
b. Determine purpose and level of accreditation

S® o oo

a.

e.
3. Report
a.

©ooo o

Examine statutes related to accreditation

i. Purpose: Compliance ; Continuous Improvement; Wyoming Accountability in Education Act/Every
Student Succeeds Act Accountability Results; Other; Multiple

ii. Level: school, district, both

Solicit district input regarding accreditation purposes and processes

Examine relationship between accreditation and student achievement

Examine models and processes from other states or organizations

Determine “expected evidence of impact” of accreditation efforts

Submit periodic updates on Task Force progress

Submit findings in a report to the State Board of Education (SBE)

Decision Making Process

The report of the Accreditation Task Force will be presented to the State Board of Education (SBE) for
acceptance.

Upon acceptance by the SBE, the report will be used to revise Chapter 6 Rules and Regulations
Recommendations on suggested statutory revisions will be submitted to the State Board of Education’s
Legislative Committee for further review.

The draft rules revisions will be presented to the SBE and then submitted to stakeholder groups for
comment prior to taking action on rule promulgation.

The SBE will follow the prescribed process for rule promulgation.

A list of participants, their roles, their locations
Summary of district input on current and future process
Summary of data related to accreditation, accountability, and achievement
Summary of processes from other states or organizations
Recommendations
i. Purpose and level of accreditation
ii. Desired characteristics and uses of accreditation
iii. Outcomes and issues to be addressed
iv. Overview of accreditation process
1. Design recommendations
2. Technical recommendations
3. Time-line for phase-in recommendations
4. Fiscal implications
v. Recommendations for revising Chapter 6 Rules and Regulations
vi. Recommendations for appropriate statutory revisions
Executive Summary
i. Participant information
ii. Dates of meetings
iii. Overview of recommendations
Appendix
i. References used/cited
ii. Meeting agendas and minutes
iii. Data related to accreditation, accountability, and achievement
iv. Additional information used by task force



WYOMING
STATE BOARD
OF EDUCATION

November 7, 2017

To: State Board Members

From: Tom Sachse, Ph.D.

RE: Miscellaneous Issues

Here, in order of dates are items | have or will be working on:

Website Sliders: Website sliders are those items that slide across the SBE website
(not those tiny little sandwiches on soft rolls). Kelly and I have been working with Kari
and the Communications Committee to update those, following direction from
Chairman Wilcox. They will begin to appear in the next week or so. The priorities
include Chapter 31 progress, Leader Accountability, Reconsidering Accreditation, etc.
Kelly will also feature different SBE members in the months ahead.

National Assn. of State Boards of Education: This year’s annual meeting with the
theme, Beyond the State Plans, was held in Atlanta the first week of November and
featured a number of interesting policy and practical sessions. I'll highlight two
takeaways and ask other attendees (Chairman Wilcox, Nate Breen, Ryan Fuhrman, and
Kylie Taylor) to do the same. | went to one session on state systems of support and
found that the Massachusetts contractor (American Institutes for Research) had created
rubrics for judging the efficacy of support interventions for turnaround schools. After
the session, | got copies of those rubrics to share.

I had another long conversation with the Kansas state board chair who was about to give
a presentation to the Washington State Board of Education on their new standards for
social and emotional development. These are the first in the nation in this area and may
be a watershed for faculty and staff that find themselves concerned about the complex
interactions of children confronting a variety of life troubles that interfere with
academic success.

Google Training: Like many of you, I have struggled to master the vicissitudes of the
Google Suite. I have been invited to attend a two-day training in Cheyenne, thanks to
Dr. Julie Magee to help me with my technical productivity. I'll attend that in Cheyenne
between the Joint Education Interim Committee (JEIC) and your November meeting.
Thank you for the opportunity to hone my skills in this area.

December 1st Board Report to the Legislature: The state board has an obligation
to report annually to the legislature on updates to the content standards. This report will



be created by the department’s Laurie Hernandez and her team. | will review it on
behalf of the board, but this is not one that requires pre-approval by the board. This
report will be presented to the board as an informational item at your January meeting.

2018 Professional Judgement Panel (PJP) Contractor: Given the timeframe it
takes to create a new contract for services, it is not too early for the board to start
thinking about a contractor to conduct the two PJPs that will be required next year.
Remember, one will be for the WAEA ratings for all schools and another will be required
for the Alternative High Schools Accountability system. | contacted Paige Fenton-
Hughes about the contracting process for the last major PJP and she wasn’t certain
whether she used a sole source or bid waiver process, but she did not conduct a full-
blown Request for Proposals (RFP) process. | would appreciate direction from the board
on how and how soon to proceed with the contracting process.



WYOMING

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

Creating Opportunities
for Students to Keep
Wyoming Strong

~_

Jillian Balow

Superintendent of Public Instruction

Dicky Shanor
Chief of Staff

Brent Bacon
Chief Academic Officer

Megan Degenfelder
Chief Policy Officer

Dianne Bailey
Chief Operations Officer

Cheyenne Office
Hathaway Building, Znd Floor

2300 Capitol Avenue
Cheyenne WY 82002-2060
Phone: (307) TT7-1675
Fax: (307) 777-6234

Riverton Office
320 West Main
Riverton, WY 82501
Phone: (307) 857-9250
Fax: (307) 857-9256

On the Web
edu.wyominggov
Wwyomingmeasuresup.com
twitter.com/WYOEducation
facebook.com/WYOEducation

MEMORANDUM

To: State Board of Education

From: Megan Degenfelder, Chief Policy Officer
Julie Magee, Accountability Director

Date: November 9, 2017

Subject: Update on Accreditation Process

Meeting Date: November 17, 2017

Item Type:  Action: Informational: _ xx__

Introduction: Due to budgetary constraints and feedback from
local districts, the WDE will no longer be contracting directly
with AdvancED for accreditation of Wyoming public schools.
As a result, the WDE is currently creating a state-led
accreditation process in which districts will continue to annually
assure adherence to statutory requirements. This new process will
not begin until SY18-19.

A task force comprised of educators from across the state has
been created to make recommendations for the state-led process,
including consideration of optional improvement processes, and
external reviews. The goal of the task force will be to create a
process that effectuate the intent of school accreditation which
has been described by the Wyoming Association of School
Administrators as, “the purpose of accreditation is to ensure that
Wyoming districts meet statutory requirements intended to
improve student learning and ensure equity of opportunity to
learn.”

The task force includes representation from all five regions and
large, medium, and small districts. Kathryn Sessions will
represent the SBE on the task force which will convene in
November 2017. WDE will continue to provide updates to the
SBE on the new accreditation process as it is developed
collaboratively by the educator task force.

Legal Requirements: Several statutes speak to the accreditation
process. Of note are the following:

W.S. 21-2-304(a)(ii) states that through the evaluation and
accreditation of school districts the state board of education shall
“implement and enforce the uniform standards for educational
programs prescribed under W.S. 21-9-101 and 21-9-102 in the
public schools of this state . . . and require school district
adherence to the statewide education accountability system
[pursuant to W.S. 21-2-204].”



http://www.wasa-wy.org/page28/assets/History%20of%20BOE.pdf
http://www.wasa-wy.org/page28/assets/History%20of%20BOE.pdf

W.S. 21-2-202(a)(viii) which states that the state superintendent shall “prepare and maintain a
list of accredited schools in Wyoming.” Further, within subsection (c) it is stated, “in addition to
subsection (a) of this section, the state superintendent may take appropriate administrative action
with the state board as necessary, including but not limited to the changing of accreditation
status, against any school district or state institution failing to comply with any applicable law or
with the uniform educational program standards specified under W.S. 21-9-101 and 21-9-102
and the student content and performance standards prescribed by the state board.”

Education Rules-Chapter 6 governs accreditation. It will likely need to be updated as we move
forward with this new process. Approval of any changes to Chapter 6 will come through the
State Board.

W.S. 21-2-202(c) - Adherence to all applicable laws and regulations.

W.S. 21-13-310(a) - Use of district funds to offer the educational basket of goods and services.

W.S. 21-2-304(a)(ii) - Teach the Uniform Wyoming Content and Performance Standards.

W.S. 21-3-110(a)(xxxiv) - Include a standards-aligned district assessment system.

W.S. 21-2-304(a)(ii) - Participate in the Statewide Accountability System.

Supporting Documents/Attachments:
None

Proposed Motions:
None

For questions or additional information:
Contact Megan Degenfelder at megan.degenfelder@wyo.gov or (307)777-3530 or Julie
Magee at julie.magee@wyo.gov or (307)777-8740.



mailto:megan.degenfelder@wyo.gov
mailto:julie.magee@wyo.gov

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

Creating Opportunities
for Students to Keep
Wyoming Strong

~_

Jillian Balow
Superintendent of Public Instruction

Dicky Shanor
Chief of Staff

Brent Bacon
Chief Academic Officer

Megan Degenfelder
Chief Policy Officer

Dianne Bailey
Chief Operations Officer

Cheyenne Office
Hathaway Building, Znd Floor
2300 Capitol Avenue
Cheyenne WY 82002-2060
Phone: (307 TT71-1675
Fax: (307) T77-6234

Riverton Office
320 West Main
Riverton, WY 82501
Phone: (307) 857-9250
Fax: (307) 857-9256

On the Web
edu.wyoming gov
Wwyomingmeasuresup.com
twitter.com/WYOEducation
facebook.com/WYOEducation

MEMORANDUM

To: State Board of Education
From: Megan Degenfelder, Chief Policy Officer
Julie Magee, Accountability Director
Date: November 7, 2017
Subject: 2016-17 Accreditation Status for Sweetwater #1

Meeting Date: November 17, 2017

Item Type:  Action: Informational: _ xx__

Background:

At the June 2017 meeting, the State Board of Education (SBE)
received recommendations about the status of each school’s
accreditation for the 2016-17 school year. At that time,
Sweetwater County School District #1 was under a corrective
action plan to address concerns around the Least Restrictive
Environment requirement under IDEA.

Sweetwater #1 satisfactorily completed their corrective action
plan as of September 22", and the Department is recommending
that their 2016-17 accreditation status be amended from
“Accrediation with Follow Up” to full accreditation.

Statutory Reference (if applicable):
. W.S. 21-2-202(c)

Supporting Documents/Attachments:
1 June 2017 SBE Meeting Packet
2_C-0117-16 Closure Letter

3_Oct 5" Email from IL Director

Proposed Motions:
None

For questions or additional information:
Contact Bill Pannell at bill.pannell@wyo.gov or (307)777-7322.



mailto:email@wyo.gov

O O WYOMING
STATE BOARD
OF EDUCATION

Wyoming education partners support a student-centered learning system in
which all Wyoming students graduate prepared and empowered to create and
own their futures.

June 22, 2017

201 North Connor Street
Sheridan
9:00 a.m.-9:30 a.m. State Board of Education
e Callto Order
e Pledge of Allegiance
e Roll Call
o Approval of Agenda Tab A
e Minutes Tab B
- May 18-19, 2017
e Treasurer's Report TabC
9:30 a.m.- 9:45 a.m. Wyoming State Superintendent Update TabD
9:45 a.m.- 10:00 a.m. Coordinator's Report TabE
10:00 a.m.- 1:45 p.m. Board Reports and Updates-
e Update on Chapters 6, 10, and 31 Tab F
e JEIC Reports Tab G
e Advisory Committee and Professional Judgement | Tab H
Panel
o Alternative Schedule and School Performance Tab |
Ratings
e Every Student Succeeds Act Update TabJ
1:45 p.m.- 2:00 p.m. Committee Updates: Tab K
e Administrative Committee
e Communications Committee Tab L
e Professional Education Positions
e Recalibration Advisory Committee
Action Item: Tab M
e Court Ordered Placement of Students Facility
e Accreditation TabN
Other issues, concerns, discussion, public comment:
Adjourn the State Board of Education




WYOMING

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

Accreditation
Recommendations to SBE

The Wyoming State Board of Education determines the
accreditation status of every Wyoming school district
and every Wyoming institutional school.



/ }1 t(‘}
" J
77—

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

Current Process

e Staffing Review

e School Improvement Plan & Assurances

e External Reviews

e Systems Review

e Recommendations discussed with Leadership

e



WYOMING

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

Current Process

e Staffing Review
— Personnel paid only when certification and assignment match
— Accreditation can be lowered for Misassignments
— Corrective Action Plan required
e School Improvement Plan & Assurances
— Review of calendars
— On site Assurances check
— Assurances submitted annually with improvement plans
e External Reviews — Advanc-Ed
* Systems Review — WDE Divisions

e Recommendations discussed with Leadership




)

e‘"",,' /
r u/
Yy

WYUMING

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

AdvancEd Recommendations

* Districts
— |EQs, based on External Reviews
— Under Review from past year — all Accredited

— Under Review current year — Uinta #6 based on
APR

e |nstitutional Schools
— Under Review from past year — all Accredited

e



/7] 0 0
/[ 07
(4 /4

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

Misassignments

e 1 district found with current misassignments

— Crook #1

e 1 Teacher
e 2 Coaches

e Recommend warning as ho misassignments have
occurred in past 7 years

e



U

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

Assurances

* All Assurances have been checked and verified
either through data reports submitted by
districts or during External Reviews on-site.

e



WPy
V”‘/ ' J

WYOMING

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

Systems Issues

e |Individual Learning

— Sweetwater #1 has had SPED concerns around Least
Restrictive Environment

— Recommend Accreditation with Follow-up for 2017-18
to complete a SPED Corrective Action Plan with TA

e Information Management
— Hot Springs #1 has had concerns re: untimely reports
— Recommend Full Accreditation with a warning letter

e


jmagee
Highlight

jmagee
Highlight


Corrective Action Plan

1. The District shall provide services to all special education students based on the unique,
individual needs of students in the least restrictive environment, including an appropriate
response to student progress. The plan shall comply with the following:

a. March 1, 2017: The District shall submit a Preliminary Corrective Action Plan in
writing containing the following elements —

I. IEPs that directly connect PLAAFP to students IEP goals;

i. IEPs that individualize service delivery to meet the unique needs of
students in order to progress toward meeting IEP goals and participation in
the general curriculum;

iii. IEPs that respond to student progress, evidencing review and
reconsideration when students exceed anticipated progress or fail to make
expected progress; and

iv. The elimination of any barriers to individualized service delivery, i.e.,
scheduling, grading, or the awarding of credits.

b. March 20, 2017: WDE shall review and provide feedback and/or approval for the
Preliminary Corrective Action Plan.

c. June 1, 2017: The District shall formally adopt a final Corrective Action Plan and
develop a Preliminary Implementation Plan to ensure all components (i.e. training,
staffing, scheduling) will be firmly established in preparation for implementation.
The Preliminary Implementation Plan shall include specific implementation steps
and a detailed timeline for completion.

d. August 1, 2017: The District shall provide a Final Implementation Plan to WDE,
verifying that all necessary steps have been taken to provide services consistent
with the Plan commencing with the 2017-2018 school year.

2. The District shall provide notice to the parent (or adult student) of each student enrolled in
the Edge Program during the 2015-2016 and 2016-2017 school years of the following:

a. For each student with a current IEP, still enrolled in the district. Those students
IEP teams shall conduct a detailed review of the students’ progress and the
educational benefit received during enroliment the Edge program. If the student
failed to make expected progress, the team shall provide remediation opportunities

based on the student’s unique needs;



b. For students who have exited special education, the District shall offer to meet with
the student and/or parent to review student’s progress, the educational benefit
received while enrolled in the Edge program, and the need to provide remediation
opportunities based on the student’s unique needs, if applicable and agreed upon
by both the district and the parents and or student;

c. A Prior Written Notice (PWN) shall be separately drafted for each student to
memorialize the review of this decision, the student’s progress and educational
benefit received while enrolled in the Edge program, and the options considered
to remediate the lack of educational benefit, if any; and

d. The PWN shall be submitted to WDE within five (5) days of the completion of each
IEP meeting.

3. All required documentation evidencing compliance with the above steps must be
submitted in a timely manner.

4. The District must continue to follow the recommendations and requirements of the ongoing
Compliance Agreement between the District and WDE. All corrective action requirements
herein are in addition to any requirements in the Compliance Agreement currently in effect

or as amended in the future.



2016-17 District Accreditation Recommendations,
Two Year Comparison/ 5/30/2017

ACCreditatic

2016-17 Recommendation

" WG }’/
Wt

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

ACCreditatio

2015-16 with Reason

Albany #1 Accreditation with Follow-up Misassignments in 2 of last 4 years Full Accreditation - IEQ 285
Big Horn #1 Full Accreditation IEQ 304 Full Accreditation
Big Horn #2 Full Accreditation IEQ 337 Full Accreditation
Big Horn #3 Full Accreditation IEQ 294 Full Accreditation
Bigt Horn #4 Full Accreditation IEQ 283 Full Accreditation
Campbell #1 Full Accreditation Full Accreditation
Carbon #1 Full Accreditation IEQ 283 Full Accreditation
Carbon #2 Full Accreditation IEQ 266 Full Accreditation

Converse #1

Full Accreditation

External Review IEQ 301

Full Accreditation

Converse #2

Full Accreditation

External Review IEQ 286

Full Accreditation

Crook #1 Full Accreditation Full Accreditation
Fremont #1 Full Accreditation IEQ 260 Full Accreditation
Accreditation with Follow-up - [EQ
Fremont #2 Full Accreditation APR Completed, IEQ 233 217, Making progress on APR
Fremont #6 Full Accreditation IEQ 302 Full Accreditation
Fremont #14 Full Accreditation IEQ 251 Full Accreditation
Fremont #21 Full Accreditation IEQ 245 Full Accreditation
Fremont #24 Full Accreditation IEQ 316 Full Accreditaiton
Fremont #25 Full Accreditation IEQ 275 Full Accreditaiton
Fremont #38 Full Accreditation IEQ 235 Full Accreditation
Goshen #1 Full Accreditation IEQ 237 Full Accreditation
External Review IEQ 280, Warning
Hot Springs #1 Full Accreditation letter re: Data Reporting System Full Accreditation
Johnson #1 Full Accreditation Full Accreditation
Laramie #1 Full Accreditation IEQ 283 Full Accreditation
Laramie #2 Full Accreditation IEQ 261 Full Accreditation
Lincoln #1 Full Accreditation IEQ 298 Full Accreditation
Lincoln #2 Full Accreditation IEQ 312 Full Accreditation
Natrona #1 Full Accreditation External Review IEQ 287 Full Accreditation
Niobrara #1 Full Accreditation IEQ 256 Full Accreditation




A 2ditatlico d

2016-17 Recommendation

A Yo

2015-16 with Reason

Park #1 Full Accreditation IEQ 306 Full Accreditation
Park #6 Full Accreditation IEQ 288 Full Accreditation
Park #16 Full Accreditation IEQ 308 Full Accreditation
Platte #1 Full Accreditation IEQ 232 Full Accreditation
Accreditation with Follow-up,
Platte #2 Full Accreditation APR completed, IEQ 249 Completing APR
Sheridan #1 Full Accreditation Full Accreditation
Sheridan #2 Full Accreditation Full Accreditation
Sheridan #3 Full Accreditation Full Accreditation
Sublette #1 Full Accreditation IEQ 321 Full Accreditation
Sublette #9 Full Accreditation IEQ 288 Full Accreditation
Recommended to complete Corrective
Action Plan for Individual Learning
Sweetwater #1 Accreditation with Follow-up with TA Full Accreditation - IEQ 278
Sweetwater #2 Full Accreditation IEQ 288 Full Accreditation
Teton #1 Full Accreditation IEQ 291 Full Accreditation
Uinta #1 Full Accreditation IEQ 298 Full Accreditation
Uinta #4 Full Accreditation IEQ 295 Full Accreditation
APR, making progress on 2 of 6
requirements, continuing work on 4 of
Uinta #6 Accreditation with Follow-up 6 Full Accreditation - IEQ 229
Washakie #1 Full Accreditation IEQ 319 Full Accreditation
Washakie #2 Full Accreditation IEQ 282 Full Accreditation
Weston #1 Full Accreditation Full Accreditation
Weston #7 Full Accreditation Full Accreditation

St. Stephens

Full Accreditation

APR completed, IEQ 193 (164 for HS,
203 for Elem.)

Accreditation with Follow-up,

Completing APR

For information on Accreditation contact Dianne Frazer at 307-777-8676 or dianne.frazer@wyo.gov



jmagee
Highlight

jmagee
Highlight


WYOMIN

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

Creating Opportunities
for Students to Keep
Wyoming Strong

e

Jillian Balow
Superintendent of Public Instruction

Dicky Shanor
Chief of Staff

Brent Bacon
Chief Academic Officer

Lisa Weigel
Chief Policy Officer

Dianne Bailey
Chief Operations Officer

Cheyenne Office
Hathaway Building, 2nd Floor

2300 Capitol Avenue
Cheyenne WY 82002-2060
Phone: (307) 771-1615
Fax: (307 T77-6234

Riverton Office
320 West Main
Riverton, WY 82501
Phone: (307) 857-9250
Fax: (307) 857-9256

On the Web
edu.wyoming.gov
wyomingmeasuresup.com

September 22, 2017

Steve Chasson

Rock Springs High School
1375 James Drive

Rock Springs, WY 82901

Kayci Arnoldi

Sweetwater County School District #1
3550 Foothill Blvd.

Rock Springs, WY 82901
arnoldik@sw1.k12.wy.us

Via Email and U.S. Malil
Re:  State Complaint #C-0117-16 Closure Letter
Dear Parties:
WODE concluded its investigation and issued a final decision with
an Order for Corrective Action on December 11, 2016. WDE finds
that all required corrective action is complete and satisfied.
Therefore, WDE shall formally close the file effective the date of
this letter.
If you have any questions or concerns regarding this

correspondence, please contact the Dispute Resolution Coordinator
at 307-777-2691 or Jordan.brock@wyo.gov

Sincerely,

AT BE

Jordan Brock,
Dispute Resolution Coordinator



Cc:

Kelly McGovern, Superintedent

Brady Baldwin, Board Chair

Anne-Marie Willams, WDE Individual Learning Division Director
Brent Bacon, Chief Academic Officer

Katherine Leuschel, Assistant Attorney General



Anne-Marie Williams Oct

to me, Bill, Brent

Hi Julie & Bill,

Sweetwater CSD #1 is recommended for Accreditation with Follow-up. The district has experienced ongoing
systems issues in Special Education services. WDE has conducted hearings and has developed a Corrective
Action Plan to improve the areas where issues have occurred.

Sweetwater #1 cleared their Corrective Action Plan dated September 22, 2017. The District is considered in
compliance with the Corrective Action Plan details. The closure letter is attached for your reference.

Annhe-Marie Williams

Director of Individual Learning
Wyoming Department of Education
307.777.3530 office
307.286.1440 cell

PLEASE NOTE E-Mail to and from me, in connection with the transaction of public business, is subject to the Wyoming
Public Records Act.


tel:(307)%20777-3530
tel:(307)%20286-1440

November 6, 2017

Administrative Committee Summary

Present: Belenda Willson, Ken Rathbun, Robin Schambler, Max Mickelson, Sue Belish, Tom Sachse, Kylie Taylor, Kari
Eakins, Julie Magee, Megan Degenfelder, Adam Leuschel, Mackenzie Williams

1. November Agenda Review

a.

We reviewed and revised the agenda topics, rearranged the order, and extended the meeting time from 1:00-
5:00.

2. Chapter 31 process

a.

Tom, Walt, a group of department representatives, and several district superintendents and curriculum
directors met with representatives of the Attorney General’s office and Mary Kay Hill from the Governor’s
Office to discuss the next steps in revising Chapter 31. The focus is on defining a set of graduation skills vs.
standards. Additionally the group is looking at the District Assessment System Guidance to determine what
aspects of that document are important to the graduation requirements discussion. The SBE will receive a
report at the next meeting.

3. Budget Discussion

a.

There was discussion about the SBE coordinator’s salary and the amount that was presented in the
department’s budget to the Governor and Joint Appropriations Committee (JAC). Members of the board have
received varying interpretations about exactly how much of the funds allocated by the legislature can actually
be used for the coordinator salary. This has a direct impact on the budget that has already been submitted on
behalf of the SBE by the WDE. Mackenzie Williams suggested that there were two issues: 1) how much of the
$84,500 allocated by the legislature can be used for salary and benefits; in other words, is the coordinator’s
salary capped at $65,000 per year; and 2) how does the Board proceed with advocating to have the full $84,500
(or $169,000 for the biennium) added to the WDE budget since it is not in there at the present time. One
option, should the Board act, would be to write letters to the Governor, the Joint Appropriations Committee
Chairmen, the State Superintendent, and the Chairmen of the Joint Education Committee stating the SBE's
position. Additionally it may be important for the SBE to advocate at the JAC agency budget review on
December 14", Treasurer Rathbun will be discussing this with the whole board at the next meeting.

According to Board Member Mickelson, the SBE Legislative Committee has identified that advocating for a fully-
funded SBE Coordinator is their number one legislative priority. We anticipate the whole board will need to
discuss this issue at our November meeting. It was suggested that Trent Carroll be invited to participate during
that discussion.

4. Accreditation

a.

The WDE has received a request from Sweetwater County School District #1 asking that their accreditation
status be changed from “Accreditation with Follow-Up” to “Full Accreditation” as a result of the progress they
have made on their corrective action plan. The WDE believes the district has successfully completed their plan.
Typically the SBE only approves accreditation status one time each year, usually in June. The Administrative
Committee would like to have the entire board discuss whether requests to change accreditation status once a
district’s status has been approved by the Board are appropriate and allowable. We asked that Mackenzie or
Adam be prepared to offer some guidance on the issue.

One of the State Board’s responsibilities is to work with WDE on revising Chapter 6 rules on accreditation. The
department has indicated that they are forming a Task Force on Accreditation. The committee briefly reviewed
a draft of a framework that could be given to the Accreditation Task Force to guide their work. The thought
was that having such a framework prior to beginning work would assist the Task Force. The committee
requests that the rest of the board review the framework at the next meeting, decide if it would be helpful, and
provide suggestions for revisions.

5. Informal hearing on Wyoming Accountability in Education Act (WAEA) Performance Rating

a.

The committee heard some discussion about the process for hearing the appeal by Weston County School
District #7. Kylie will work to have a separate phone number and/or Zoom account in the event that the Board
would need to go into executive session. As a precautionary measure, Mackenzie asked that the department
review the information that will become part of the public record, part of the meeting packet, and redact any
information that could identify individual students. Adam and Mackenzie will provide the chairman with a



6.

10.

script to use during the proceedings. Most of the deliberations should be done in open session, but should we
need advice from counsel, that advice should be given in executive session.
Protocols for improving processes between the department and the Board.

a. We have established that timesheets or travel preps for the SBE coordinator will be sent to the Chairman of the
Administrative Committee prior to being submitted to the department for final approval.

b. We discussed that the process of selecting SBE representation on committees or task forces is to make the
request to the SBE Chairman who is responsible for making such assignments.

c. We discussed the process for preparation of meeting packets. Since the agenda for meetings is set during the
Administrative Committee meeting, it was suggested that the committee meet at least two weeks, prior to
board meetings. This will allow Kylie to send out the final agenda and allow more time for materials to be
developed before sending the packet to all board members. The Administrative Committee will look at the
meeting schedule for the remainder of the year and determine dates for future meetings.

d. One of the Administrative Committee’s responsibilities is to monitor the SBE Coordinator’s contract and
performance. It was suggested that we perform that review at the committee meeting in December.
Committee members were asked to look at their December calendars so a date can be set.

Formally Adopting the Reporting Protocols for Legislature

a. Ifthe report is purely informational, the SBE will determine whether the department or SBE coordinator will
write the report, the SBE will receive a copy at the same time it is sent to the Legislative Services Office (LSO)

b. If the report contains recommendations or opinions of the SBE, the SBE coordinator will write the report, the
SBE will approve prior to sending it to the LSO.

Virtual SBE Meetings

a. The committee supports the suggestion to invite districts we might never visit in person to make presentations
about their districts during our virtual meetings by using the Zoom platform. The communications committee
might want to refine these presentations by asking the district for input on issues that are relevant to the Board
as well as for information about district work. We anticipate this beginning next year.

Reimbursement for Committee Work

a. Kylie requested that we discuss reimbursement for SBE members involved in SBE committee work. In past
years, SBE members have not receive reimbursement for work on SBE committees such as the Legislative
Committee, Communications Committee, Administrative Committee, or the Budget Committee since most of
that work is relatively limited in time and done virtually. SBE members who served on external committees and
incur travel expenses have been compensated. This is a discussion for the entire board to weigh in on.

Miscellaneous

a. We briefly discussed that some statutory language is difficult to interpret such as “through the department”.

We may seek clarification on that language.



SBE Communications Committee
November 9, 2017

Communications Committee members present via Zoom: Ryan Fuhrman, Robin Schamber, and
Scotty Ratliff.

Members absent: Kathryn Sessions

Also present: Kylie Taylor, WDE; Kari Eakins, WDE; and Kelly Pascal.

November 9, 2017

CALL TO ORDER
Chairman Fuhrman called the meeting to order at 4:01 p.m.
APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Minutes from the October 5th meeting were looked over, no objections or changed were
expressed, the minutes were approved.

Review Kelly’s Contract

Ryan noted that there is 69.9% remaining of Kelly’s contract to last through June 30th, 2018.
Kelly explained the work she did in October helping Tom with communications. Kelly also
shared about working with Kari and the WDE to update the SBE website.

Survey Results - Technology Devices

Kari presented the results of the technology device survey. There was acknowledgement that the
majority of the responders were satisfied using their own personal devices. The committee
agreed that there should be direct contact the board members that need new devices to see if
there is agreement on the platform with this smaller group. Kylie shared that she needs a newer
Ipad to fully support the board and the virtual component of our meetings. Finally, information
is still being gathered to make final decisions on how best to support the audio components of
virtual meetings.

Website Edits/Updates

Kelly made recommendations to Kari for the SBE website on areas that need to be edited. There
are two new sliders, new board members added with bios, still waiting on bios from Dan
McGlade and Dean Reutzel.



Key Stakeholder Initiative Update

The committee agreed to to start the initiative this January. The first topic will be Indian
Education. The committee brainstormed some individuals that could present to the board in
January. Scotty Ratliff suggested that we invite Superintendents or Curriculum Directors. Kelly
suggested a history teacher that has some experience in teaching this area. Kylie will reach out to
Nate Breen to discuss inviting a history teacher to present to the board.

The committee also discussed inviting an individual from Stride Learning Center to the February
meeting in Cheyenne, Kari will send Kylie the contact information for the Executive Director.

Upcoming Meeting - Communication Goals
Weston #7 performance rating appeal will be the biggest topic for this meeting. Accreditation is
on the agenda as well.

Future Items
Scotty suggested that we take a deeper look at how best to utilize social media at our next
meeting to maximize our reach and voice.



How important is having

B Very important @ Mot Important I Mo Preference

e

P

A Large Screen Size A Light Weight Device High Quality Audio

Please select your preference

B | needone M | dontwantone M | don't have a preference

Stylus Touchscreen Keyboard



Please select your preference regarding display:

L
B Traditional Tablet [ Tent/Flexible WM Traditional Laptop M | don't have a preference

Display Preference

Please select your preference regarding operating systems:

B Apple I Android B Chrome [ | do not have a preference

Operating Systems



Please select your preference regarding price:

B L ow (under 5350) M Mid ($350-5500) W High (over $500) I | do not have a preference

-k

Frice

Please rank the device options in order of preference (1 is top choice, 7 is bottom choice):

- N2 BN AN NS BN Em7

JhnlJulllullumLhnlL-L-L-lnlL

Apple iPad Air 4 Tablet (5th Gen) - $329 Apple iPad Pro Tablet - §659 Samsung Galaxy Tab S3 - $599 Samsung Galaxy Tab S3 wikeyboard - §729 Asus Chromebook Flip - $469 Samsung Chromebook 3 - $199 Samsung Chromebook Plus - $499

O 4 M W s oo O

Please add any comments or questions you may have on the device
options. 6 responses

| prefer to use my own device.

Prefer the apple product for durability, quality of life and format is already familiar

| don't have a preference on devices at this time. | would like to get rid of the IPAD | was issued as | tend
to just use my own device mostly.

| already have what | need.

| want us to get quality devices that are durable.

| like the apple product.



State Board of Education
Legislative Committee
October 23 Meeting Summary

The State Board of Education (SBE) Legislative Committee met via electronic conference on October 23,
beginning around 3:00 p.m. and concluding around 3:30 p.m.

Max Mickelson was facilitator for the meeting. No motions were made.

Nate Breen, Max Mickelson, Jim Rose, Tom Sachse, Kari Eakins, and Kylie Taylor attended the

duration.

Purpose: Report review, response to legislator inquiry, and legislative position paper development.

Meeting minutes from our September 20 committee meeting were reviewed with no changes suggested.

DISCUSSION:

1. The SBE has a request for information made by Representative JoOAnn Dayton regarding 18LSO-
0085, Representative Timothy Hallinan’s bill. Tom Sachse will write a response. Max Mickelson
sent Representative Dayton’s original request and mailing address to Tom via text.

2. Dr. Julie Magee’s table of required reports delineating informational versus recommendation
reports is held to be an excellent guide for the SBE and WDE to know which reports require SBE
approval as opposed to those we merely need be aware of. Barring an unforeseen issue, this
committee recommends its use for reporting purposes and expression of need regarding a
coordinator position.

3. Regarding a legislative priority statement

a.

Given the expectation of our legislature for the duties of the SBE, this committee
recommends a fully funded coordinator position be advocated for by the SBE.

Given the strong support by both the Governor’s office and Wyoming Department of
Education (WDE) for computer science/computational thinking, this committee
recommends an analysis of cost/benefits, impact on schools, and related areas be prepared.

In looking holistically at the state of Wyoming’s economy, educational challenges, and
many chapter revisions underway, a broad statement of adequate funding of education
broadly with a coordinator position, computer science, and other relevant topics included
as a subset is the final recommendation from this committee for a legislative priority
statement by the full SBE.

Jim Rose asked, noting the budget hearing for the WDE is scheduled for 10/24, if we knew
where the funding request stands for the SBE coordinator position. Kari Eakins responded
that the SBE coordinator position is included in the WDE budget request at its current
reduced funding level. Tom will connect with Walt Wilcox for guidance regarding reaching
out to the Governor’s office on this issue.



4. 2017-2018 School Performance Report

a. Julie had asked we include this in our agenda. She was unable to attend. Kari and Tom
surmised this is to see if the SBE will approach our legislature to shift the due date from
September 1 to a later date as a one off or ongoing change allowing for the needed
adjustments from the switch to WY-TOPP and limitations provided by the ACT. Tom will
follow up with Julie.

5. Mike O’Donnell, Assistant Attorney General, scheduled a meeting of relevant parties for October 26.
Walt, Tom, Kylie Taylor, various WDE staff, several superintendents and curriculum directors will
attend to address the ongoing challenges, both statutory and other, impacting chapter 31. Tom will
send a report to this committee.

Meeting was adjourned on that note.

Recommendation: A motion to be made, discussed, and acted on by our board as a whole to formalize
our legislative priorities and direct formulation of a written statement.



	Tab A- 1 Action Summary
	Tab A- 2 SBE November Agenda 11.9.17 FINAL
	November 17, 2017
	Teleconference 

	Tab B- 1 SBE MEMO_Weston 7 Informal Review_Redacted
	Tab B- 2 A_Weston 7 Request for Review_082417_Redacted
	Tab B- 3 B_Upton HS SPR 2016-17 (1) (1)
	Tab B- 4 C_2017 WAEA Implementation Guidebook
	Tab B- 5 D_Comprehensive Accountability Framework FINAL_013112
	Executive Summary
	Goals of the System
	The Wyoming School Accountability System
	School Accountability Indicators
	The Performance Levels: Ratings for Schools
	Reporting System
	Consequences and Supports

	Developing an Educator Accountability System
	Developing a Student Accountability System
	Implications for Standards and Assessments

	Section I: Background
	Introduction
	Senate File 70
	Statewide Assessment
	Statewide Accountability
	Longitudinal data systems and reporting
	Policies, consequences, and supports


	Section II: Conceptual Foundations
	Goals and Intended Outcomes
	Guiding Principles
	Instructional Core
	Coherence
	Equity
	Transparency
	Support and Improvement
	State-Local Partnership
	Shared Responsibility

	Theory of Action
	Major Goals (Intended Outcomes) of the System
	Antecedents
	Proximal indicators (numbers) and mechanisms (bullets)
	Intermediate indicators (numbers) and mechanisms (bullets)
	Distal indicators
	Consequences (intended and unintended)


	Section III: The Multiple Accountability Initiatives
	School Accountability Framework
	Introduction
	Indicators
	Achievement
	Achievement Design Illustrations
	Growth
	Readiness
	Readiness Design Illustration
	Equity
	Inclusion

	Growth
	Growth Alternatives
	Growth Expectations
	Student Growth Percentiles
	Catch-Up/ Keep-Up Growth
	Growth Design Illustration
	Growth and Equity

	Design Decisions
	Single or Multiple Ratings
	Recommendation: Trying to thread the needle
	Performance level descriptors (PLD) and Standard Setting
	Approaches for Combing Multiple Indicators
	Matrix Design Illustration
	Compensatory Design Illustration
	Professional Judgment and Appeals

	Reporting
	Consequences and Support

	Educator Evaluation
	Introduction
	Multiple Measures

	Measuring Student Performance
	Inclusion and Attribution
	Teacher/Leader of Record
	Missing/ Incomplete Data
	Multiple Educators
	Causal Attribution

	Reporting Outcomes of Educator Evaluation Determinations
	Sources of Error

	Student Accountability Considerations
	Introduction
	What is a Wyoming Graduate?
	A Process for Thinking About Student Accountability
	Relationship to the Full Assessment System
	A Process Note


	Section IV:  Support, Capacity Building, and Consequences
	Support, Interventions, and Capacity Building
	Building Capacity in Wyoming Schools
	Capacity Building for Schools and Districts
	Support/intervention for low performing students
	Support/Mentoring for Teachers Needing to Improve
	Support/Mentoring for School Leaders
	Capacity Building for the State as a Whole to Support Continuous Improvement

	The Relationship of Consequences (Response) and Supports


	Section V: validity and other technical issues
	Standards: The Foundation of the System
	Assessment Characteristics
	Technical Characteristics
	Alignment
	Reliability
	Scaling and Linking

	Other Assessment Considerations
	The High School Assessment System


	Accountability Uses of Benchmark Adaptive Assessment
	Purposes and Uses
	Technical Quality
	Campbell’s Law and Corruptibility
	Recommendations

	Evaluation of the Accountability System
	Evidence Supports Claims in the TOA
	Results are Reliable
	Results are Valid

	References


	Tab B- 6 E_Follow-up info from Weston 7_100417_Redacted
	Tab B- 8 G_Chapter 3 Rules
	Tab B- 9 H_WDE request for more info_092517
	Tab B- 10 I_Notification request is complete_100917
	Tab C- 1 Minutes Action Summary
	Tab C- 2 State Board of Education November 2017 Draft Minutes
	Tab D- SuptsUpdateSBE-11-17-17KE
	Tab E- 1 11-17 Coordinators Report Cover Letter
	Tab E- 2 Chapter 31 Progress Cover Letter
	Tab E- 3 Ch 31 Context
	Tab E- 4 Accrediation Issues Cover Letter (1)
	Tab E- 5 Concepts of Accreditation
	Tab E- 6 Accreditation Task Force Revised
	Tab E- 7 Miscellaneous Issues Cover Letter
	Tab F- 1 UPDATED SBE MEMO_Accreditation Update
	Tab F- 3 SBE MEMO_Sweetwater 1 2016-17 Accreditation Status
	Tab F- 4 1_June 2017 SBE Mtg Packet
	6.17 SBE Draft Agenda
	June 22, 2017
	201 North Connor Street
	Sheridan 

	Tab N- 2 Accreditation Recommendations Meeting
	Accreditation Recommendations to SBE
	Current Process
	Current Process
	AdvancEd Recommendations
	Misassignments
	Assurances
	Systems Issues

	Tab N- 5 Corrective Action PlanSweetwater
	Tab N- 8 District Accreditation Recommendations 2016-17

	Tab F- 5 2_C-0117-16  Closure Letter
	Tab F- 6 3_Oct 5th Email from IL Director
	Tab G- November 6 Administrative Committee Summary
	Tab H- 1 SBE Communications Committee Minutes 11.9.17
	Tab H- 2 Survey Results
	Tab I- 10 23 2017 Legislative Committee Meeting Recommendation
	State Board of Education
	Legislative Committee
	October 23 Meeting Summary




